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BOARD OF TRUSTEES ARPA WORKSHOP and REGULAR MEETING
Monday, May 9, 2022
7:00 PM
1401 W. Herbison Rd.
DeWitt, MI 48820
Public may choose to attend in person or listen and participate at the phone number below.
Meeting Dial-in: (623) 600-3750, PIN: 457968
The call will be muted to reduce interference with proceedings. The public will be invited to make comments during the public
comment sections of the meeting as well as before any vote. If you desire to comment, you will be invited to dial 5* so the Clerk can
unmute your line. Please contact the Clerk’s Office at (517) 668-0270 with any additional questions.

AGENDA
CALL TO ORDER – AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT (ARPA) Workshop 6:00 PM
1.

Overview of ARPA / Budget Process

2.

List of Priorities

3.

Timeline for Implementation

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS
Coronavirus State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds: Overview of Final Rule
Revenue Loss Calculation
Capital Improvement Plan 2022
ARPA Budget 2022
PUBLIC** & STAFF COMMENTS
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS
ADJOURNMENT

AGENDA
CALL TO ORDER – REGULAR BOARD MEETING 7:00 PM or immediately following
ARPA Workshop
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Monday, May 9, 2022

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
1.
2.

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting draft minutes, April 25, 2022
General Vouchers 74138-74194

AGENDA
May 9, 2022
Page 2
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS*
PRESENTATION
1.

2021 DeWitt Charter Township Audit Results
Aaron Stevens, CPA/Principal, Maner Costerisan

PUBLIC HEARING - None
COUNTY COMMISSIONER REPORT
CORRESPONDENCE
1.
2.
3.
4.

2022 Q1 Performance Dashboard
DeWitt Township Fire Department Letter of Thanks
DeWitt Township Resident, Irene Dunham
Consumers Energy Notice of Hearing

UNFINISHED BUSINESS - None
NEW BUSINESS
1.

Administrative Assistant I – Police Department Hire

2.

Metro Act Approval – DayStarr

3.

Election Inspector Wage Scale

PUBLIC** & STAFF COMMENTS
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS
ADJOURNMENT
Note:

Public Participation Policy adopted 9/11/89 provides:

*Public Comments on agenda items shall be limited to three (3) minutes. Any citizen may address the Board
regarding any agenda item at this time, or they may reserve the right to address the Board when the agenda item is
discussed. Each citizen is limited to a total of 3 minutes on any one issue.
**Extended Public Comments - limited to five (5) minutes. Any topic of Township interest can be addressed.
DeWitt Charter Township will provide to individuals with disabilities, reasonable auxiliary aids and services which are
needed to fully participate in any Township meeting, providing a 72-hour notice is received by phone or in writing.
Contact DeWitt Charter Township, Clerk’s office, 1401 W. Herbison Road, DeWitt, MI 48820, or phone (517) 668-0270
to request the necessary assistance.
Board policy prohibits the use of cellular phones, pagers, and the noise emitted from the same. Please disengage
ringers on cell phones and pagers, and leave the meeting room if you need to have a phone conversation.

Coronavirus State & Local
Fiscal Recovery Funds:
Overview of the Final Rule

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

January 2022

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

The Overview of the Final Rule provides a summary of major provisions of the final
rule for informational purposes and is intended as a brief, simplified user guide to the
final rule provisions.
The descriptions provided in this document summarize key provisions of the final rule
but are non-exhaustive, do not describe all terms and conditions associated with the use
of SLFRF, and do not describe all requirements that may apply to this funding. Any SLFRF
funds received are also subject to the terms and conditions of the agreement entered
into by Treasury and the respective jurisdiction, which incorporate the provisions of the
final rule and the guidance that implements this program.
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Introduction
The Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (SLFRF), a part of the American Rescue Plan,
delivers $350 billion to state, local, and Tribal governments across the country to support their response
to and recovery from the COVID-19 public health emergency. The program ensures that governments
have the resources needed to:
•
•
•

Fight the pandemic and support families and businesses struggling with its public health and
economic impacts,
Maintain vital public services, even amid declines in revenue, and
Build a strong, resilient, and equitable recovery by making investments that support long-term
growth and opportunity.

EARLY PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION
In May 2021, Treasury published the Interim final rule (IFR) describing eligible and ineligible uses of
funds (as well as other program provisions), sought feedback from the public on these program rules,
and began to distribute funds. The IFR went immediately into effect in May, and since then,
governments have used SLFRF funds to meet their immediate pandemic response needs and begin
building a strong and equitable recovery, such as through providing vaccine incentives, development of
affordable housing, and construction of infrastructure to deliver safe and reliable water.
As governments began to deploy this funding in their communities, Treasury carefully considered the
feedback provided through its public comment process and other forums. Treasury received over 1,500
comments, participated in hundreds of meetings, and received correspondence from a wide range of
governments and other stakeholders.
KEY CHANGES AND CLARIFICATIONS IN THE FINAL RULE
The final rule delivers broader flexibility and greater simplicity in the program, responsive to feedback in
the comment process. Among other clarifications and changes, the final rule provides the features
below.
Replacing Lost Public Sector Revenue
The final rule offers a standard allowance for revenue loss of up to $10 million, allowing recipients to
select between a standard amount of revenue loss or complete a full revenue loss calculation.
Recipients that select the standard allowance may use that amount – in many cases their full award – for
government services, with streamlined reporting requirements.
Public Health and Economic Impacts
In addition to programs and services, the final rule clarifies that recipients can use funds for capital
expenditures that support an eligible COVID-19 public health or economic response. For example,
recipients may build certain affordable housing, childcare facilities, schools, hospitals, and other projects
consistent with final rule requirements.
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In addition, the final rule provides an expanded set of households and communities that are presumed
to be “impacted” and “disproportionately impacted” by the pandemic, thereby allowing recipients to
provide responses to a broad set of households and entities without requiring additional analysis.
Further, the final rule provides a broader set of uses available for these communities as part of COVID19 public health and economic response, including making affordable housing, childcare, early learning,
and services to address learning loss during the pandemic eligible in all impacted communities and
making certain community development and neighborhood revitalization activities eligible for
disproportionately impacted communities.
Further, the final rule allows for a broader set of uses to restore and support government employment,
including hiring above a recipient’s pre-pandemic baseline, providing funds to employees that
experienced pay cuts or furloughs, avoiding layoffs, and providing retention incentives.
Premium Pay
The final rule delivers more streamlined options to provide premium pay, by broadening the share of
eligible workers who can receive premium pay without a written justification while maintaining a focus
on lower-income and frontline workers performing essential work.
Water, Sewer & Broadband Infrastructure
The final rule significantly broadens eligible broadband infrastructure investments to address challenges
with broadband access, affordability, and reliability, and adds additional eligible water and sewer
infrastructure investments, including a broader range of lead remediation and stormwater management
projects.
FINAL RULE EFFECTIVE DATE
The final rule takes effect on April 1, 2022. Until that time, the interim final rule remains in effect; funds
used consistently with the IFR while it is in effect are in compliance with the SLFRF program.
However, recipients can choose to take advantage of the final rule’s flexibilities and simplifications now,
even ahead of the effective date. Treasury will not take action to enforce the interim final rule to the
extent that a use of funds is consistent with the terms of the final rule, regardless of when the SLFRF
funds were used. Recipients may consult the Statement Regarding Compliance with the Coronavirus
State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds Interim Final Rule and Final Rule, which can be found on Treasury’s
website, for more information on compliance with the interim final rule and the final rule.
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Overview of the Program
The Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (SLFRF) program provides substantial flexibility
for each jurisdiction to meet local needs within the four separate eligible use categories. This Overview
of the Final Rule addresses the four eligible use categories ordered from the broadest and most flexible
to the most specific.
Recipients may use SLFRF funds to:
•

Replace lost public sector revenue, using this funding to provide government services up to the
amount of revenue loss due to the pandemic.
•

•

•

Recipients may determine their revenue loss by choosing between two options:
•

A standard allowance of up to $10 million in aggregate, not to exceed their
award amount, during the program;

•

Calculating their jurisdiction’s specific revenue loss each year using Treasury’s
formula, which compares actual revenue to a counterfactual trend.

Recipients may use funds up to the amount of revenue loss for government services;
generally, services traditionally provided by recipient governments are government
services, unless Treasury has stated otherwise.

Support the COVID-19 public health and economic response by addressing COVID-19 and its
impact on public health as well as addressing economic harms to households, small businesses,
nonprofits, impacted industries, and the public sector.
•

Recipients can use funds for programs, services, or capital expenditures that respond to
the public health and negative economic impacts of the pandemic.

•

To provide simple and clear eligible uses of funds, Treasury provides a list of
enumerated uses that recipients can provide to households, populations, or classes (i.e.,
groups) that experienced pandemic impacts.

•

Public health eligible uses include COVID-19 mitigation and prevention, medical
expenses, behavioral healthcare, and preventing and responding to violence.

•

Eligible uses to respond to negative economic impacts are organized by the type of
beneficiary: assistance to households, small businesses, and nonprofits.
•

Each category includes assistance for “impacted” and “disproportionately
impacted” classes: impacted classes experienced the general, broad-based
impacts of the pandemic, while disproportionately impacted classes faced
meaningfully more severe impacts, often due to preexisting disparities.

•

To simplify administration, the final rule presumes that some populations and
groups were impacted or disproportionately impacted and are eligible for
responsive services.

Coronavirus State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds: Overview of the Final Rule
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•

Eligible uses for assistance to impacted households include aid for reemployment, job training, food, rent, mortgages, utilities, affordable housing
development, childcare, early education, addressing learning loss, and many
more uses.

•

Eligible uses for assistance to impacted small businesses or nonprofits include
loans or grants to mitigate financial hardship, technical assistance for small
businesses, and many more uses.

•

Recipients can also provide assistance to impacted industries like travel, tourism, and
hospitality that faced substantial pandemic impacts, or address impacts to the public
sector, for example by re-hiring public sector workers cut during the crisis.

•

Recipients providing funds for enumerated uses to populations and groups that
Treasury has presumed eligible are clearly operating consistently with the final rule.
Recipients can also identify (1) other populations or groups, beyond those presumed
eligible, that experienced pandemic impacts or disproportionate impacts and (2) other
programs, services, or capital expenditures, beyond those enumerated, to respond to
those impacts.

Provide premium pay for eligible workers performing essential work, offering additional
support to those who have and will bear the greatest health risks because of their service in
critical sectors.
•

•

•

Recipients may provide premium pay to eligible workers – generally those working inperson in key economic sectors – who are below a wage threshold or non-exempt from
the Fair Labor Standards Act overtime provisions, or if the recipient submits justification
that the premium pay is responsive to workers performing essential work.

Invest in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure, making necessary investments to
improve access to clean drinking water, to support vital wastewater and stormwater
infrastructure, and to expand affordable access to broadband internet.
•

Recipients may fund a broad range of water and sewer projects, including those eligible
under the EPA’s Clean Water State Revolving Fund, EPA’s Drinking Water State
Revolving Fund, and certain additional projects, including a wide set of lead
remediation, stormwater infrastructure, and aid for private wells and septic units.

•

Recipients may fund high-speed broadband infrastructure in areas of need that the
recipient identifies, such as areas without access to adequate speeds, affordable
options, or where connections are inconsistent or unreliable; completed projects must
participate in a low-income subsidy program.

While recipients have considerable flexibility to use funds to address the diverse needs of their
communities, some restrictions on use apply across all eligible use categories. These include:
•

For states and territories: No offsets of a reduction in net tax revenue resulting from a change
in state or territory law.
Coronavirus State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds: Overview of the Final Rule
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•

For all recipients except for Tribal governments: No extraordinary contributions to a pension
fund for the purpose of reducing an accrued, unfunded liability.

•

For all recipients: No payments for debt service and replenishments of rainy day funds; no
satisfaction of settlements and judgments; no uses that contravene or violate the American
Rescue Plan Act, Uniform Guidance conflicts of interest requirements, and other federal, state,
and local laws and regulations.

Under the SLFRF program, funds must be used for costs incurred on or after March 3, 2021. Further,
funds must be obligated by December 31, 2024, and expended by December 31, 2026. This time period,
during which recipients can expend SLFRF funds, is the “period of performance.”
In addition to SLFRF, the American Rescue Plan includes other sources of funding for state and local
governments, including the Coronavirus Capital Projects Fund to fund critical capital investments
including broadband infrastructure; the Homeowner Assistance Fund to provide relief for our country’s
most vulnerable homeowners; the Emergency Rental Assistance Program to assist households that are
unable to pay rent or utilities; and the State Small Business Credit Initiative to fund small business credit
expansion initiatives. Eligible recipients are encouraged to visit the Treasury website for more
information.
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Replacing Lost Public Sector Revenue
The Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds provide needed fiscal relief for recipients that
have experienced revenue loss due to the onset of the COVID-19 public health emergency. Specifically,
SLFRF funding may be used to pay for “government services” in an amount equal to the revenue loss
experienced by the recipient due to the COVID-19 public health emergency.
Government services generally include any service traditionally provided by a government, including
construction of roads and other infrastructure, provision of public safety and other services, and health
and educational services. Funds spent under government services are subject to streamlined reporting
and compliance requirements.
In order to use funds under government services, recipients should first determine revenue loss. They
may, then, spend up to that amount on general government services.
DETERMINING REVENUE LOSS
Recipients have two options for how to determine their amount of revenue loss. Recipients must choose
one of the two options and cannot switch between these approaches after an election is made.
1. Recipients may elect a “standard allowance” of $10 million to spend on government services
through the period of performance.
Under this option, which is newly offered in the final rule Treasury presumes that up to $10
million in revenue has been lost due to the public health emergency and recipients are
permitted to use that amount (not to exceed the award amount) to fund “government services.”
The standard allowance provides an estimate of revenue loss that is based on an extensive
analysis of average revenue loss across states and localities, and offers a simple, convenient way
to determine revenue loss, particularly for SLFRF’s smallest recipients.
All recipients may elect to use this standard allowance instead of calculating lost revenue using
the formula below, including those with total allocations of $10 million or less. Electing the
standard allowance does not increase or decrease a recipient’s total allocation.
2. Recipients may calculate their actual revenue loss according to the formula articulated in the
final rule.
Under this option, recipients calculate revenue loss at four distinct points in time, either at the
end of each calendar year (e.g., December 31 for years 2020, 2021, 2022, and 2023) or the end
of each fiscal year of the recipient. Under the flexibility provided in the final rule, recipients can
choose whether to use calendar or fiscal year dates but must be consistent throughout the
period of performance. Treasury has also provided several adjustments to the definition of
general revenue in the final rule.
To calculate revenue loss at each of these dates, recipients must follow a four-step process:
Coronavirus State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds: Overview of the Final Rule
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a. Calculate revenues collected in the most recent full fiscal year prior to the public health
emergency (i.e., last full fiscal year before January 27, 2020), called the base year
revenue.
b. Estimate counterfactual revenue, which is equal to the following formula, where n is the
number of months elapsed since the end of the base year to the calculation date:
𝑛

𝑏𝑎𝑠𝑒 𝑦𝑒𝑎𝑟 𝑟𝑒𝑣𝑒𝑛𝑢𝑒 × (1 + 𝑔𝑟𝑜𝑤𝑡ℎ 𝑎𝑑𝑗𝑢𝑠𝑡𝑚𝑒𝑛𝑡)12
The growth adjustment is the greater of either a standard growth rate—5.2 percent—or
the recipient’s average annual revenue growth in the last full three fiscal years prior to
the COVID-19 public health emergency.
c. Identify actual revenue, which equals revenues collected over the twelve months
immediately preceding the calculation date.
Under the final rule, recipients must adjust actual revenue totals for the effect of tax
cuts and tax increases that are adopted after the date of adoption of the final rule
(January 6, 2022). Specifically, the estimated fiscal impact of tax cuts and tax increases
adopted after January 6, 2022, must be added or subtracted to the calculation of actual
revenue for purposes of calculation dates that occur on or after April 1, 2022.
Recipients may subtract from their calculation of actual revenue the effect of tax
increases enacted prior to the adoption of the final rule. Note that recipients that elect
to remove the effect of tax increases enacted before the adoption of the final rule must
also remove the effect of tax decreases enacted before the adoption of the final rule,
such that they are accurately removing the effect of tax policy changes on revenue.
d. Revenue loss for the calculation date is equal to counterfactual revenue minus actual
revenue (adjusted for tax changes) for the twelve-month period. If actual revenue
exceeds counterfactual revenue, the loss is set to zero for that twelve-month period.
Revenue loss for the period of performance is the sum of the revenue loss on for each
calculation date.
The supplementary information in the final rule provides an example of this calculation, which
recipients may find helpful, in the Revenue Loss section.
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SPENDING ON GOVERNMENT SERVICES
Recipients can use SLFRF funds on government services up to the revenue loss amount, whether that be
the standard allowance amount or the amount calculated using the above approach. Government
services generally include any service traditionally provided by a government, unless Treasury has
stated otherwise. Here are some common examples, although this list is not exhaustive:
✓ Construction of schools and hospitals
✓ Road building and maintenance, and
other infrastructure
✓ Health services
✓ General government administration,
staff, and administrative facilities

✓ Environmental remediation
✓ Provision of police, fire, and other public
safety services (including purchase of
fire trucks and police vehicles)

Government services is the most flexible eligible use category under the SLFRF program, and funds are
subject to streamlined reporting and compliance requirements. Recipients should be mindful that
certain restrictions, which are detailed further in the Restrictions on Use section and apply to all uses of
funds, apply to government services as well.

Coronavirus State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds: Overview of the Final Rule
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Responding to Public Health and Economic Impacts of COVID-19
The Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds provide resources for governments to meet the
public health and economic needs of those impacted by the pandemic in their communities, as well as
address longstanding health and economic disparities, which amplified the impact of the pandemic in
disproportionately impacted communities, resulting in more severe pandemic impacts.
The eligible use category to respond to public health and negative economic impacts is organized
around the types of assistance a recipient may provide and includes several sub-categories:
•
•
•
•
•
•

public health,
assistance to households,
assistance to small businesses,
assistance to nonprofits,
aid to impacted industries, and
public sector capacity.

In general, to identify eligible uses of funds in this category, recipients should (1) identify a COVID-19
public health or economic impact on an individual or class (i.e., a group) and (2) design a program that
responds to that impact. Responses should be related and reasonably proportional to the harm
identified and reasonably designed to benefit those impacted.
To provide simple, clear eligible uses of funds that meet this standard, Treasury provides a nonexhaustive list of enumerated uses that respond to pandemic impacts. Treasury also presumes that
some populations experienced pandemic impacts and are eligible for responsive services. In other
words, recipients providing enumerated uses of funds to populations presumed eligible are clearly
operating consistently with the final rule.1
Recipients also have broad flexibility to (1) identify and respond to other pandemic impacts and (2)
serve other populations that experienced pandemic impacts, beyond the enumerated uses and
presumed eligible populations. Recipients can also identify groups or “classes” of beneficiaries that
experienced pandemic impacts and provide services to those classes.

1

However, please note that use of funds for enumerated uses may not be grossly disproportionate to the harm. Further,
recipients should consult the Capital Expenditures section for more information about pursuing a capital expenditure; please
note that enumerated capital expenditures are not presumed to be reasonably proportional responses to an identified harm
except as provided in the Capital Expenditures section.

Coronavirus State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds: Overview of the Final Rule
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Step

1. Identify COVID-19 public health or
economic impact

Analysis

•

•

Simplifying
•
Presumptions

Can identify impact to a specific
household, business or nonprofit or
to a class of households, businesses,
or nonprofits (i.e., group)
Can also identify disproportionate
impacts, or more severe impacts, to
a specific beneficiary or to a class
Final Rule presumes certain
populations and classes are impacted
and disproportionately impacted

2. Design a response that addresses or
responds to the impact
• Types of responses can include a
program, service, or capital
expenditure
• Response should be related and
reasonably proportional to the harm
• Response should also be reasonably
designed to benefit impacted
individual or class
• Final Rule provides non-exhaustive
list of enumerated eligible uses that
respond to pandemic impacts and
disproportionate impacts

To assess eligibility of uses of funds, recipients should first determine the sub-category where their use
of funds may fit (e.g., public health, assistance to households, assistance to small businesses), based on
the entity that experienced the health or economic impact.2 Then, recipients should refer to the relevant
section for more details on each sub-category.
While the same overall eligibility standard applies to all uses of funds to respond to the public health
and negative economic impacts of the pandemic, each sub-category has specific nuances on its
application. In addition:
•

•

Recipients interested in using funds for capital expenditures (i.e., investments in property,
facilities, or equipment) should review the Capital Expenditures section in addition to the
eligible use sub-category.
Recipients interested in other uses of funds, beyond the enumerated uses, should refer to the
section on “Framework for Eligible Uses Beyond Those Enumerated.”

2

For example, a recipient interested in providing aid to unemployed individuals is addressing a negative economic impact
experienced by a household and should refer to the section on assistance to households. Recipients should also be aware of the
difference between “beneficiaries” and “sub-recipients.” Beneficiaries are households, small businesses, or nonprofits that can
receive assistance based on impacts of the pandemic that they experienced. On the other hand, sub-recipients are
organizations that carry out eligible uses on behalf of a government, often through grants or contracts. Sub-recipients do not
need to have experienced a negative economic impact of the pandemic; rather, they are providing services to beneficiaries that
experienced an impact.

Coronavirus State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds: Overview of the Final Rule
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RESPONDING TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY
While the country has made tremendous progress in the fight against COVID-19, including a historic
vaccination campaign, the disease still poses a grave threat to Americans’ health and the economy.
Providing state, local, and Tribal governments the resources needed to fight the COVID-19 pandemic is a
core goal of the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, as well as addressing the other ways
that the pandemic has impacted public health. Treasury has identified several public health impacts of
the pandemic and enumerated uses of funds to respond to impacted populations.
•

COVID-19 mitigation and prevention. The pandemic has broadly impacted Americans and recipients
can provide services to prevent and mitigate COVID-19 to the general public or to small businesses,
nonprofits, and impacted industries in general. Enumerated eligible uses include:
✓ Vaccination programs, including vaccine
incentives and vaccine sites
✓ Testing programs, equipment and sites
✓ Monitoring, contact tracing & public
health surveillance (e.g., monitoring for
variants)
✓ Public communication efforts
✓ Public health data systems
✓ COVID-19 prevention and treatment
equipment, such as ventilators and
ambulances
✓ Medical and PPE/protective supplies
✓ Support for isolation or quarantine
✓ Ventilation system installation and
improvement
✓ Technical assistance on mitigation of
COVID-19 threats to public health and
safety
✓ Transportation to reach vaccination or
testing sites, or other prevention and
mitigation services for vulnerable
populations

✓ Support for prevention, mitigation, or
other services in congregate living
facilities, public facilities, and schools
✓ Support for prevention and mitigation
strategies in small businesses, nonprofits,
and impacted industries
✓ Medical facilities generally dedicated to
COVID-19 treatment and mitigation (e.g.,
ICUs, emergency rooms)
✓ Temporary medical facilities and other
measures to increase COVID-19 treatment
capacity
✓ Emergency operations centers &
emergency response equipment (e.g.,
emergency response radio systems)
✓ Public telemedicine capabilities for COVID19 related treatment

Coronavirus State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds: Overview of the Final Rule
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•

Medical expenses. Funds may be used for expenses to households, medical providers, or others that
incurred medical costs due to the pandemic, including:
✓ Unreimbursed expenses for medical care
for COVID-19 testing or treatment, such
as uncompensated care costs for
medical providers or out-of-pocket costs
for individuals
✓ Paid family and medical leave for public
employees to enable compliance with
COVID-19 public health precautions

•

Behavioral health care, such as mental health treatment, substance use treatment, and other
behavioral health services. Treasury recognizes that the pandemic has broadly impacted Americans’
behavioral health and recipients can provide these services to the general public to respond.
Enumerated eligible uses include:
✓ Prevention, outpatient treatment,
inpatient treatment, crisis care,
diversion programs, outreach to
individuals not yet engaged in
treatment, harm reduction & long-term
recovery support
✓ Enhanced behavioral health services in
schools
✓ Services for pregnant women or infants
born with neonatal abstinence
syndrome

•

✓ Emergency medical response expenses
✓ Treatment of long-term symptoms or effects
of COVID-19

✓ Support for equitable access to reduce
disparities in access to high-quality
treatment
✓ Peer support groups, costs for residence in
supportive housing or recovery housing, and
the 988 National Suicide Prevention Lifeline
or other hotline services
✓ Expansion of access to evidence-based
services for opioid use disorder prevention,
treatment, harm reduction, and recovery
✓ Behavioral health facilities & equipment

Preventing and responding to violence. Recognizing that violence – and especially gun violence –
has increased in some communities due to the pandemic, recipients may use funds to respond in
these communities through:
✓ Referrals to trauma recovery services for
victims of crime
✓ Community violence intervention
programs, including:
• Evidence-based practices like
focused deterrence, with
wraparound services such as
behavioral therapy, trauma
recovery, job training, education,
housing and relocation services, and
financial assistance

✓ In communities experiencing increased
gun violence due to the pandemic:
• Law enforcement officers focused
on advancing community policing
• Enforcement efforts to reduce gun
violence, including prosecution
• Technology & equipment to support
law enforcement response

Coronavirus State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds: Overview of the Final Rule
U.S. Department of the Treasury

15

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

RESPONDING TO NEGATIVE ECONOMIC IMPACTS
The pandemic caused severe economic damage and, while the economy is on track to a strong recovery,
much work remains to continue building a robust, resilient, and equitable economy in the wake of the
crisis and to ensure that the benefits of this recovery reach all Americans. While the pandemic impacted
millions of American households and businesses, some of its most severe impacts fell on low-income
and underserved communities, where pre-existing disparities amplified the impact of the pandemic and
where the most work remains to reach a full recovery.
The final rule recognizes that the pandemic caused broad-based impacts that affected many
communities, households, and small businesses across the country; for example, many workers faced
unemployment and many small businesses saw declines in revenue. The final rule describes these as
“impacted" households, communities, small businesses, and nonprofits.
At the same time, the pandemic caused disproportionate impacts, or more severe impacts, in certain
communities. For example, low-income and underserved communities have faced more severe health
and economic outcomes like higher rates of COVID-19 mortality and unemployment, often because preexisting disparities exacerbated the impact of the pandemic. The final rule describes these as
“disproportionately impacted” households, communities, small businesses, and nonprofits.
To simplify administration of the program, the final rule presumes that certain populations were
“impacted” and “disproportionately impacted” by the pandemic; these populations are presumed to be
eligible for services that respond to the impact they experienced. The final rule also enumerates a nonexhaustive list of eligible uses that are recognized as responsive to the impacts or disproportionate
impacts of COVID-19. Recipients providing enumerated uses to populations presumed eligible are clearly
operating consistently with the final rule.
As discussed further in the section Framework for Eligible Uses Beyond Those Enumerated, recipients
can also identify other pandemic impacts, impacted or disproportionately impacted populations or
classes, and responses.
However, note that the final rule maintains that general infrastructure projects, including roads, streets,
and surface transportation infrastructure, would generally not be eligible under this eligible use
category, unless the project responded to a specific pandemic public health need or a specific negative
economic impact. Similarly, general economic development or workforce development – activities that
do not respond to negative economic impacts of the pandemic but rather seek to more generally
enhance the jurisdiction’s business climate – would generally not be eligible under this eligible use
category.
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Assistance to Households
Impacted Households and Communities

Treasury presumes the following households and communities are impacted by the pandemic:
✓ Low- or-moderate income households or
communities
✓ Households that experienced
unemployment
✓ Households that experienced increased
food or housing insecurity
✓ Households that qualify for the Children’s
Health Insurance Program, Childcare
Subsidies through the Child Care
Development Fund (CCDF) Program, or
Medicaid

✓ When providing affordable housing programs:
households that qualify for the National Housing
Trust Fund and Home Investment Partnerships
Program
✓ When providing services to address lost
instructional time in K-12 schools: any student
that lost access to in-person instruction for a
significant period of time

Low- or moderate-income households and communities are those with (i) income at or below 300
percent of the Federal Poverty Guidelines for the size of the household based on the most recently
published poverty guidelines or (ii) income at or below 65 percent of the area median income for the
county and size of household based on the most recently published data. For the vast majority of
communities, the Federal Poverty Guidelines are higher than the area’s median income and using the
Federal Poverty Guidelines would result in more households and communities being presumed eligible.
Treasury has provided an easy-to-use spreadsheet with Federal Poverty Guidelines and area median
income levels on its website.
Recipients can measure income for a specific household or the median income for the community,
depending on whether the response they plan to provide serves specific households or the general
community. The income thresholds vary by household size; recipients should generally use income
thresholds for the appropriate household size but can use a default household size of three when easier
for administration or when measuring income for a general community.
The income limit for 300 percent of the Federal Poverty Guidelines for a household of three is $65,880
per year.3 In other words, recipients can always presume that a household earning below this level, or a
community with median income below this level, is impacted by the pandemic and eligible for services
to respond. Additionally, by following the steps detailed in the section Framework for Eligible Uses
Beyond Those Enumerated, recipients may designate additional households as impacted or
disproportionately impacted beyond these presumptions, and may also pursue projects not listed below
in response to these impacts consistent with Treasury’s standards.

3

For recipients in Alaska, the income limit for 300 percent of the Federal Poverty Guidelines for a household of three is $82,350
per year. For recipients in Hawaii, the income limit for 300 percent of the Federal Poverty Guidelines for a household of three is
$75,780 per year.
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Treasury recognizes the enumerated projects below, which have been expanded under the final rule, as
eligible to respond to impacts of the pandemic on households and communities:
✓ Food assistance (e.g., child nutrition
programs, including school meals) & food
banks
✓ Emergency housing assistance: rental
assistance, mortgage assistance, utility
assistance, assistance paying delinquent
property taxes, counseling and legal aid to
prevent eviction and homelessness &
emergency programs or services for homeless
individuals, including temporary residences
for people experiencing homelessness
✓ Health insurance coverage expansion
✓ Benefits for surviving family members of
individuals who have died from COVID-19
✓ Assistance to individuals who want and are
available for work, including job training,
public jobs programs and fairs, support for
childcare and transportation to and from a
jobsite or interview, incentives for newlyemployed workers, subsidized employment,
grants to hire underserved workers,
assistance to unemployed individuals to start
small businesses & development of job and
workforce training centers
✓ Financial services for the unbanked and
underbanked

✓ Burials, home repair & home weatherization
✓ Programs, devices & equipment for internet
access and digital literacy, including subsidies
for costs of access
✓ Cash assistance
✓ Paid sick, medical, and family leave programs
✓ Assistance in accessing and applying for
public benefits or services
✓ Childcare and early learning services, home
visiting programs, services for child welfareinvolved families and foster youth & childcare
facilities
✓ Assistance to address the impact of learning
loss for K-12 students (e.g., high-quality
tutoring, differentiated instruction)
✓ Programs or services to support long-term
housing security: including development of
affordable housing and permanent
supportive housing
✓ Certain contributions to an Unemployment
Insurance Trust Fund4

4

Recipients may only use SLFRF funds for contributions to unemployment insurance trust funds and repayment of the principal
amount due on advances received under Title XII of the Social Security Act up to an amount equal to (i) the difference between
the balance in the recipient’s unemployment insurance trust fund as of January 27, 2020 and the balance of such account as of
May 17, 2021, plus (ii) the principal amount outstanding as of May 17, 2021 on any advances received under Title XII of the
Social Security Act between January 27, 2020 and May 17, 2021. Further, recipients may use SLFRF funds for the payment of
any interest due on such Title XII advances. Additionally, a recipient that deposits SLFRF funds into its unemployment insurance
trust fund to fully restore the pre-pandemic balance may not draw down that balance and deposit more SLFRF funds, back up
to the pre-pandemic balance. Recipients that deposit SLFRF funds into an unemployment insurance trust fund, or use SLFRF
funds to repay principal on Title XII advances, may not take action to reduce benefits available to unemployed workers by
changing the computation method governing regular unemployment compensation in a way that results in a reduction of
average weekly benefit amounts or the number of weeks of benefits payable (i.e., maximum benefit entitlement).
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Disproportionately Impacted Households and Communities
Treasury presumes the following households and communities are disproportionately impacted by the
pandemic:
✓ Low -income households and communities
✓ Households residing in Qualified Census
Tracts
✓ Households that qualify for certain federal
benefits5

✓ Households receiving services provided by
Tribal governments
✓ Households residing in the U.S. territories or
receiving services from these governments

Low-income households and communities are those with (i) income at or below 185 percent of the
Federal Poverty Guidelines for the size of its household based on the most recently published poverty
guidelines or (ii) income at or below 40 percent of area median income for its county and size of
household based on the most recently published data. For the vast majority of communities, the Federal
Poverty Guidelines level is higher than the area median income level and using this level would result in
more households and communities being presumed eligible. Treasury has provided an easy-to-use
spreadsheet with Federal Poverty Guidelines and area median income levels on its website.
Recipients can measure income for a specific household or the median income for the community,
depending on whether the service they plan to provide serves specific households or the general
community. The income thresholds vary by household size; recipients should generally use income
thresholds for the appropriate household size but can use a default household size of three when easier
for administration or when measuring income for a general community.

The income limit for 185 percent of the Federal Poverty Guidelines for a household of three is $40,626
per year.6 In other words, recipients can always presume that a household earning below this level, or a
community with median income below this level, is disproportionately impacted by the pandemic and
eligible for services to respond.

5

These programs are Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF), Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP),
Free- and Reduced-Price Lunch (NSLP) and/or School Breakfast (SBP) programs, Medicare Part D Low-Income Subsidies,
Supplemental Security Income (SSI), Head Start and/or Early Head Start, Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women,
Infants, and Children (WIC), Section 8 Vouchers, Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP), and Pell Grants. For
services to address educational disparities, Treasury will recognize Title I eligible schools as disproportionately impacted and
responsive services that support the school generally or support the whole school as eligible.
6 For recipients in Alaska, the income limit for 185 percent of the Federal Poverty Guidelines for a household of three is $50,783
per year. For recipients in Hawaii, the income limit for 185 percent of the Federal Poverty Guidelines for a household of three is
$46,731 per year
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Treasury recognizes the enumerated projects below, which have been expanded under the final rule, as
eligible to respond to disproportionate impacts of the pandemic on households and communities:
✓ Pay for community health workers to help
households access health & social services
✓ Remediation of lead paint or other lead
hazards
✓ Primary care clinics, hospitals, integration of
health services into other settings, and other
investments in medical equipment & facilities
designed to address health disparities
✓ Housing vouchers & assistance relocating to
neighborhoods with higher economic
opportunity
✓ Investments in neighborhoods to promote
improved health outcomes

✓ Improvements to vacant and abandoned
properties, including rehabilitation or
maintenance, renovation, removal and
remediation of environmental contaminants,
demolition or deconstruction, greening/vacant lot
cleanup & conversion to affordable housing7
✓ Services to address educational disparities,
including assistance to high-poverty school
districts & educational and evidence-based
services to address student academic, social,
emotional, and mental health needs
✓ Schools and other educational equipment &
facilities
✓ Responses available to respond to impacts of the
pandemic on households and communities
(including those listed on page 18)

7

Please see the final rule for further details and conditions applicable to this eligible use. This includes Treasury’s presumption
that demolition of vacant or abandoned residential properties that results in a net reduction in occupiable housing units for
low- and moderate-income individuals in an area where the availability of such housing is lower than the need for such housing
is ineligible for support with SLFRF funds.
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Assistance to Small Businesses
Small businesses have faced widespread challenges due to the pandemic, including periods of
shutdown, declines in revenue, or increased costs. The final rule provides many tools for recipients to
respond to the impacts of the pandemic on small businesses, or disproportionate impacts on businesses
where pre-existing disparities like lack of access to capital compounded the pandemic’s effects.
Small businesses eligible for assistance are those that experienced negative economic impacts or
disproportionate impacts of the pandemic and meet the definition of “small business,” specifically:
1. Have no more than 500 employees, or if applicable, the size standard in number of employees
established by the Administrator of the Small Business Administration for the industry in which
the business concern or organization operates, and
2. Are a small business concern as defined in section 3 of the Small Business Act8 (which includes,
among other requirements, that the business is independently owned and operated and is not
dominant in its field of operation).
Impacted Small Businesses
Recipients can identify small businesses impacted by the pandemic, and measures to respond, in many
ways; for example, recipients could consider:

✓ Decreased revenue or gross receipts
✓ Financial insecurity
✓ Increased costs

✓ Capacity to weather financial hardship
✓ Challenges covering payroll, rent or
mortgage, and other operating costs

Assistance to small businesses that experienced negative economic impacts includes the following
enumerated uses:
✓

Loans or grants to mitigate financial
hardship, such as by supporting payroll
and benefits, costs to retain employees,
and mortgage, rent, utility, and other
operating costs

✓ Technical assistance, counseling, or other
services to support business planning

Disproportionately Impacted Small Businesses
Treasury presumes that the following small businesses are disproportionately impacted by the
pandemic:

8

15 U.S.C. 632.
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✓ Small businesses operating in Qualified
Census Tracts
✓ Small businesses operated by Tribal
governments or on Tribal lands

✓ Small businesses operating in the U.S.
territories

Assistance to disproportionately impacted small businesses includes the following enumerated uses,
which have been expanded under the final rule:
✓ Rehabilitation of commercial properties,
storefront improvements & façade
improvements
✓ Technical assistance, business incubators &
grants for start-up or expansion costs for
small businesses

✓ Support for microbusinesses, including
financial, childcare, and transportation costs

Coronavirus State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds: Overview of the Final Rule
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Assistance to Nonprofits
Nonprofits have faced significant challenges due to the pandemic’s increased demand for services and
changing operational needs, as well as declines in revenue sources such as donations and fees.
Nonprofits eligible for assistance are those that experienced negative economic impacts or
disproportionate impacts of the pandemic and meet the definition of “nonprofit”—specifically those
that are 501(c)(3) or 501(c)(19) tax-exempt organizations.
Impacted Nonprofits
Recipients can identify nonprofits impacted by the pandemic, and measures to respond, in many ways;
for example, recipients could consider:
✓ Decreased revenue (e.g., from donations
and fees)
✓ Financial insecurity
✓ Increased costs (e.g., uncompensated
increases in service need)

✓ Capacity to weather financial hardship
✓ Challenges covering payroll, rent or
mortgage, and other operating costs

Assistance to nonprofits that experienced negative economic impacts includes the following
enumerated uses:
✓ Loans or grants to mitigate financial
hardship

✓ Technical or in-kind assistance or other
services that mitigate negative economic
impacts of the pandemic

Disproportionately Impacted Nonprofits
Treasury presumes that the following nonprofits are disproportionately impacted by the pandemic:
✓ Nonprofits operating in Qualified Census
Tracts
✓ Nonprofits operated by Tribal
governments or on Tribal lands

✓ Nonprofits operating in the U.S. territories

Recipients may identify appropriate responses that are related and reasonably proportional to
addressing these disproportionate impacts.
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Aid to Impacted Industries
Recipients may use SLFRF funding to provide aid to industries impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.
Recipients should first designate an impacted industry and then provide aid to address the impacted
industry’s negative economic impact.
This sub-category of eligible uses does not separately identify disproportionate impacts and
corresponding responsive services.
1. Designating an impacted industry. There are two main ways an industry can be designated as
“impacted.”
1. If the industry is in the travel, tourism, or hospitality sectors (including Tribal development
districts), the industry is impacted.
2. If the industry is outside the travel, tourism, or hospitality sectors, the industry is impacted
if:
a. The industry experienced at least 8 percent employment loss from pre-pandemic
levels,9 or
b. The industry is experiencing comparable or worse economic impacts as the national
tourism, travel, and hospitality industries as of the date of the final rule, based on
the totality of economic indicators or qualitative data (if quantitative data is
unavailable), and if the impacts were generally due to the COVID-19 public health
emergency.
Recipients have flexibility to define industries broadly or narrowly, but Treasury encourages
recipients to define narrow and discrete industries eligible for aid. State and territory recipients
also have flexibility to define the industries with greater geographic precision; for example, a
state may identify a particular industry in a certain region of a state as impacted.
2. Providing eligible aid to the impacted industry. Aid may only be provided to support
businesses, attractions, and Tribal development districts operating prior to the pandemic and
affected by required closures and other efforts to contain the pandemic. Further, aid should be
generally broadly available to all businesses within the impacted industry to avoid potential
conflicts of interest, and Treasury encourages aid to be first used for operational expenses, such
as payroll, before being used on other types of costs.

9

Specifically, a recipient should compare the percent change in the number of employees of the recipient’s identified industry
and the national Leisure & Hospitality sector in the three months before the pandemic’s most severe impacts began (a straight
three-month average of seasonally-adjusted employment data from December 2019, January 2020, and February 2020) with
the latest data as of the final rule (a straight three-month average of seasonally-adjusted employment data from September
2021, October 2021, and November 2021). For parity and simplicity, smaller recipients without employment data that measure
industries in their specific jurisdiction may use data available for a broader unit of government for this calculation (e.g., a
county may use data from the state in which it is located; a city may use data for the county, if available, or state in which it is
located) solely for purposes of determining whether a particular industry is an impacted industry.
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Treasury recognizes the enumerated projects below as eligible responses to impacted
industries.
✓ Aid to mitigate financial hardship, such
as supporting payroll costs, lost pay and
benefits for returning employees,
support of operations and maintenance
of existing equipment and facilities

✓ Technical assistance, counseling, or
other services to support business
planning
✓ COVID-19 mitigation and infection
prevention measures (see section Public
Health)

As with all eligible uses, recipients may pursue a project not listed above by undergoing the steps
outlined in the section Framework for Eligible Uses Beyond Those Enumerated.
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PUBLIC SECTOR CAPACITY
Recipients may use SLFRF funding to restore and bolster public sector capacity, which supports
government’s ability to deliver critical COVID-19 services. There are three main categories of eligible
uses to bolster public sector capacity and workforce: Public Safety, Public Health, and Human Services
Staff; Government Employment and Rehiring Public Sector Staff; and Effective Service Delivery.
Public Safety, Public Health, and Human Services Staff
SLFRF funding may be used for payroll and covered benefits for public safety, public health, health care,
human services and similar employees of a recipient government, for the portion of the employee’s
time spent responding to COVID-19. Recipients should follow the steps below.
1. Identify eligible public safety, public health, and human services staff. Public safety staff include:
✓ Police officers (including state police
officers)
✓ Sheriffs and deputy sheriffs
✓ Firefighters
✓ Emergency medical responders

✓ Correctional and detention officers
✓ Dispatchers and supervisor personnel
that directly support public safety staff

Public health staff include:
✓ Employees involved in providing medical
and other physical or mental health
services to patients and supervisory
personnel, including medical staff
assigned to schools, prisons, and other
such institutions
✓ Laboratory technicians, medical
examiners, morgue staff, and other
support services essential for patient
care

✓ Employees of public health
departments directly engaged in
public health matters and related
supervisory personnel

Human services staff include:
✓ Employees providing or administering
social services and public benefits
✓ Child welfare services employees

✓ Child, elder, or family care employees

2. Assess portion of time spent on COVID-19 response for eligible staff.
Recipients can use a variety of methods to assess the share of an employees’ time spent responding
to COVID-19, including using reasonable estimates—such as estimating the share of time based on
discussions with staff and applying that share to all employees in that position.
For administrative convenience, recipients can consider public health and safety employees entirely
devoted to responding to COVID-19 (and their payroll and benefits fully covered by SLFRF) if the
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employee, or his or her operating unit or division, is “primarily dedicated” to responding to COVID19. Primarily dedicated means that more than half of the employee, unit, or division’s time is
dedicated to responding to COVID-19.
Recipients must periodically reassess their determination and maintain records to support their
assessment, although recipients do not need to track staff hours.
3. Use SLFRF funding for payroll and covered benefits for the portion of eligible staff time spent on
COVID-19 response. SLFRF funding may be used for payroll and covered benefits for the portion of
the employees’ time spent on COVID-19 response, as calculated above, through the period of
performance.
Government Employment and Rehiring Public Sector Staff
Under the increased flexibility of the final rule, SLFRF funding may be used to support a broader set of
uses to restore and support public sector employment. Eligible uses include hiring up to a pre-pandemic
baseline that is adjusted for historic underinvestment in the public sector, providing additional funds for
employees who experienced pay cuts or were furloughed, avoiding layoffs, providing worker retention
incentives, and paying for ancillary administrative costs related to hiring, support, and retention.
•

Restoring pre-pandemic employment. Recipients have two options to restore pre-pandemic
employment, depending on the recipient’s needs.
•

If the recipient simply wants to hire back employees for pre-pandemic positions: Recipients
may use SLFRF funds to hire employees for the same positions that existed on January 27,
2020 but that were unfilled or eliminated as of March 3, 2021. Recipients may use SLFRF
funds to cover payroll and covered benefits for such positions through the period of
performance.

•

If the recipient wants to hire above the pre-pandemic baseline and/or would like to have
flexibility in positions: Recipients may use SLFRF funds to pay for payroll and covered
benefits associated with the recipient increasing its number of budgeted FTEs up to 7.5
percent above its pre-pandemic baseline. Specifically, recipients should undergo the
following steps:
a. Identify the recipient’s budgeted FTE level on January 27, 2020. This includes all
budgeted positions, filled and unfilled. This is called the pre-pandemic baseline.
b. Multiply the pre-pandemic baseline by 1.075. This is called the adjusted prepandemic baseline.
c. Identify the recipient’s budgeted FTE level on March 3, 2021, which is the beginning
of the period of performance for SLFRF funds. Recipients may, but are not required
to, exclude the number of FTEs dedicated to responding to the COVID-19 public
health emergency. This is called the actual number of FTEs.
d. Subtract the actual number of FTEs from the adjusted pre-pandemic baseline to
calculate the number of FTEs that can be covered by SLFRF funds. Recipients do not
have to hire for the same roles that existed pre-pandemic.
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Recipients may use SLFRF funds to cover payroll and covered benefits through the period of
performance; these employees must have begun their employment on or after March 3,
2021. Recipients may only use SLFRF funds for additional FTEs hired over the March 3, 2021
level (i.e., the actual number of FTEs).
•

•

Supporting and retaining public sector workers. Recipients can also use funds in other ways
that support the public sector workforce.10 These include:
o

Providing additional funding for employees who experienced pay reductions or were
furloughed since the onset of the pandemic, up to the difference in the employee’s pay,
taking into account unemployment benefits received.

o

Maintaining current compensation levels to prevent layoffs. SLFRF funds may be used
to maintain current compensation levels, with adjustments for inflation, in order to
prevent layoffs that would otherwise be necessary.

o

Providing worker retention incentives, including reasonable increases in
compensation to persuade employees to remain with the employer as compared to
other employment options. Retention incentives must be entirely additive to an
employee’s regular compensation, narrowly tailored to need, and should not exceed
incentives traditionally offered by the recipient or compensation that alternative
employers may offer to compete for the employees. Treasury presumes that retention
incentives that are less than 25 percent of the rate of base pay for an individual
employee or 10 percent for a group or category of employees are reasonably
proportional to the need to retain employees, as long as other requirements are met.

Covering administrative costs associated with administering the hiring, support, and retention
programs above.

Effective Service Delivery
SLFRF funding may be used to improve the efficacy of public health and economic programs through
tools like program evaluation, data, and outreach, as well as to address administrative needs caused or
exacerbated by the pandemic. Eligible uses include:
•

Supporting program evaluation, data, and outreach through:

10

Recipients should be able to substantiate that these uses of funds are substantially due to the public health emergency or its
negative economic impacts (e.g., fiscal pressures on state and local budgets) and respond to its impacts. See the final rule for
details on these uses.
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✓ Program evaluation and evidence
resources
✓ Data analysis resources to gather,
assess, share, and use data
✓ Technology infrastructure to improve
access to and the user experience of
government IT systems, as well as
technology improvements to increase
public access and delivery of
government programs and services
•

✓ Community outreach and engagement
activities
✓ Capacity building resources to support
using data and evidence, including
hiring staff, consultants, or technical
assistance support

Addressing administrative needs, including:
✓ Administrative costs for programs
responding to the public health
emergency and its economic impacts,
including non-SLFRF and non-federally
funded programs

✓ Address administrative needs caused
or exacerbated by the pandemic,
including addressing backlogs caused
by shutdowns, increased repair or
maintenance needs, and technology
infrastructure to adapt government
operations to the pandemic (e.g.,
video-conferencing software, data and
case management systems)
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
As described above, the final rule clarifies that recipients may use funds for programs, services, and
capital expenditures that respond to the public health and negative economic impacts of the pandemic.
Any use of funds in this category for a capital expenditure must comply with the capital expenditure
requirements, in addition to other standards for uses of funds.
Capital expenditures are subject to the same eligibility standard as other eligible uses to respond to the
pandemic’s public health and economic impacts; specifically, they must be related and reasonably
proportional to the pandemic impact identified and reasonably designed to benefit the impacted
population or class.
For ease of administration, the final rule identifies enumerated types of capital expenditures that
Treasury has identified as responding to the pandemic’s impacts; these are listed in the applicable subcategory of eligible uses (e.g., public health, assistance to households, etc.). Recipients may also identify
other responsive capital expenditures. Similar to other eligible uses in the SLFRF program, no preapproval is required for capital expenditures.
To guide recipients’ analysis of whether a capital expenditure meets the eligibility standard, recipients
(with the exception of Tribal governments) must complete and meet the requirements of a written
justification for capital expenditures equal to or greater than $1 million. For large-scale capital
expenditures, which have high costs and may require an extended length of time to complete, as well as
most capital expenditures for non-enumerated uses of funds, Treasury requires recipients to submit
their written justification as part of regular reporting. Specifically:
If a project has
total capital
expenditures
of
Less than $1
million
Greater than or
equal to $1
million, but
less than $10
million
$10 million or
more

and the use is enumerated by Treasury
as eligible, then

and the use is beyond those
enumerated by Treasury as eligible,
then

No Written Justification required

No Written Justification required

Written Justification required but
recipients are not required to submit as
part of regular reporting to Treasury
Written Justification required and
recipients must submit as part of regular
reporting to Treasury

Written Justification required and
recipients must submit as part of regular
reporting to Treasury

A Written Justification includes:
•

Description of the harm or need to be addressed. Recipients should provide a description of the
specific harm or need to be addressed and why the harm was exacerbated or caused by the
public health emergency. Recipients may provide quantitative information on the extent and the
type of harm, such as the number of individuals or entities affected.
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•

•

Explanation of why a capital expenditure is appropriate. For example, recipients should include
an explanation of why existing equipment and facilities, or policy changes or additional funding
to pertinent programs or services, would be inadequate.
Comparison of proposed capital project against at least two alternative capital expenditures and
demonstration of why the proposed capital expenditure is superior. Recipients should consider
the effectiveness of the capital expenditure in addressing the harm identified and the expected
total cost (including pre-development costs) against at least two alternative capital
expenditures.

Where relevant, recipients should consider the alternatives of improving existing capital assets already
owned or leasing other capital assets.
Treasury presumes that the following capital projects are generally ineligible:




Construction of new correctional
facilities as a response to an increase in
rate of crime
Construction of new congregate
facilities to decrease spread of COVID-19
in the facility



Construction of convention centers,
stadiums, or other large capital projects
intended for general economic
development or to aid impacted
industries

In undertaking capital expenditures, Treasury encourages recipients to adhere to strong labor standards,
including project labor agreements and community benefits agreements that offer wages at or above
the prevailing rate and include local hire provisions. Treasury also encourages recipients to prioritize in
their procurements employers with high labor standards and to prioritize employers without recent
violations of federal and state labor and employment laws.
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FRAMEWORK FOR ELIGIBLE USES BEYOND THOSE ENUMERATED
As described above, recipients have broad flexibility to identify and respond to other pandemic impacts
and serve other populations that experienced pandemic impacts, beyond the enumerated uses and
presumed eligible populations. Recipients should undergo the following steps to decide whether their
project is eligible:
Step

1. Identify COVID-19 public health or
economic impact

Analysis

•

•

Can identify impact to a specific
household, business or nonprofit or to
a class of households, businesses or
nonprofits (i.e., group)
Can also identify disproportionate
impacts, or more severe impacts, to a
specific beneficiary or to a class

2. Design a response that addresses or
responds to the impact
• Types of responses can include a
program, service, or capital
expenditure
• Response should be related and
reasonably proportional to the harm
• Response should also be reasonably
designed to benefit impacted
individual or class

1. Identify a COVID-19 public health or negative economic impact on an individual or a class.
Recipients should identify an individual or class that is “impacted” or “disproportionately
impacted” by the COVID-19 public health emergency or its negative economic impacts as well as
the specific impact itself.
•

“Impacted” entities are those impacted by the disease itself or the harmful
consequences of the economic disruptions resulting from or exacerbated by the COVID19 public health emergency. For example, an individual who lost their job or a small
business that saw lower revenue during a period of closure would both have
experienced impacts of the pandemic.

•

“Disproportionately impacted” entities are those that experienced disproportionate
public health or economic outcomes from the pandemic; Treasury recognizes that preexisting disparities, in many cases, amplified the impacts of the pandemic, causing more
severe impacts in underserved communities. For example, a household living in a
neighborhood with limited access to medical care and healthy foods may have faced
health disparities before the pandemic, like a higher rate of chronic health conditions,
that contributed to more severe health outcomes during the COVID-19 pandemic.

The recipient may choose to identify these impacts at either the individual level or at a class
level. If the recipient is identifying impacts at the individual level, they should retain
documentation supporting the impact the individual experienced (e.g., documentation of lost
revenues from a small business). Such documentation can be streamlined in many cases (e.g.,
self-attestation that a household requires food assistance).
Recipients also have broad flexibility to identify a “class” – or a group of households, small
businesses, or nonprofits – that experienced an impact. In these cases, the recipients should
Coronavirus State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds: Overview of the Final Rule
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first identify the class and the impact that it faced. Then, recipients only need to document that
the individuals served fall within that class; recipients do not need to document a specific impact
to each individual served. For example, a recipient could identify that restaurants in the
downtown area faced substantial declines in revenue due to decreased foot traffic from
workers; the recipient could develop a program to respond to the impact on that class and only
needs to document that the businesses being served are restaurants in the downtown area.
Recipients should keep the following considerations in mind when designating a class:
•

•

•

•

•

There should be a relationship between the definition of the class and the proposed
response. Larger and less-specific classes are less likely to have experienced similar
harms, which may make it more difficult to design a response that appropriately
responds to those harms.
Classes may be determined on a population basis or on a geographic basis, and the
response should be appropriately matched. For example, a response might be designed
to provide childcare to single parents, regardless of which neighborhood they live in, or
a response might provide a park to improve the health of a disproportionately impacted
neighborhood.
Recipients may designate classes that experienced disproportionate impact, by
assessing the impacts of the pandemic and finding that some populations experienced
meaningfully more severe impacts than the general public. To determine these
disproportionate impacts, recipients:
o May designate classes based on academic research or government research
publications (such as the citations provided in the supplementary information in
the final rule), through analysis of their own data, or through analysis of other
existing data sources.
o May also consider qualitative research and sources to augment their analysis, or
when quantitative data is not readily available. Such sources might include
resident interviews or feedback from relevant state and local agencies, such as
public health departments or social services departments.
o Should consider the quality of the research, data, and applicability of analysis to
their determination in all cases.
Some of the enumerated uses may also be appropriate responses to the impacts
experienced by other classes of beneficiaries. It is permissible for recipients to provide
these services to other classes, so long as the recipient determines that the response is
also appropriate for those groups.
Recipients may designate a class based on income level, including at levels higher than
the final rule definition of "low- and moderate-income." For example, a recipient may
identify that households in their community with incomes above the final rule threshold
for low-income nevertheless experienced disproportionate impacts from the pandemic
and provide responsive services.

2. Design a response that addresses or responds to the impact. Programs, services, and other
interventions must be reasonably designed to benefit the individual or class that experienced
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the impact. They must also be related and reasonably proportional to the extent and type of
impact experienced. For example, uses that bear no relation or are grossly disproportionate to
the type or extent of the impact would not be eligible.
“Reasonably proportional” refers to the scale of the response compared to the scale of the
harm, as well as the targeting of the response to beneficiaries compared to the amount of harm
they experienced; for example, it may not be reasonably proportional for a cash assistance
program to provide a very small amount of aid to a group that experienced severe harm and a
much larger amount to a group that experienced relatively little harm. Recipients should
consider relevant factors about the harm identified and the response to evaluate whether the
response is reasonably proportional. For example, recipients may consider the size of the
population impacted and the severity, type, and duration of the impact. Recipients may also
consider the efficacy, cost, cost-effectiveness, and time to delivery of the response.
For disproportionately impacted communities, recipients may design interventions that address
broader pre-existing disparities that contributed to more severe health and economic outcomes
during the pandemic, such as disproportionate gaps in access to health care or pre-existing
disparities in educational outcomes that have been exacerbated by the pandemic.

Coronavirus State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds: Overview of the Final Rule
U.S. Department of the Treasury

34

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

Premium Pay
The Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds may be used to provide premium pay to eligible
workers performing essential work during the pandemic. Premium pay may be awarded to eligible
workers up to $13 per hour. Premium pay must be in addition to wages or remuneration (i.e.,
compensation) the eligible worker otherwise receives. Premium pay may not exceed $25,000 for any
single worker during the program.
Recipients should undergo the following steps to provide premium pay to eligible workers.
1. Identify an “eligible” worker. Eligible workers include workers “needed to maintain continuity
of operations of essential critical infrastructure sectors.” These sectors and occupations are
eligible:
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓

Health care
Emergency response
Sanitation, disinfection & cleaning
Maintenance
Grocery stores, restaurants, food
production, and food delivery
Pharmacy
Biomedical research
Behavioral health
Medical testing and diagnostics
Home and community-based health care
or assistance with activities of daily living
Family or child care
Social services
Public health
Mortuary
Critical clinical research, development,
and testing necessary for COVID-19
response

✓
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓

✓ State, local, or Tribal government
workforce
✓ Workers providing vital services to
Tribes
✓ Educational, school nutrition, and other
work required to operate a school
facility
✓ Laundry
✓ Elections
✓ Solid waste or hazardous materials
management, response, and cleanup
✓ Work requiring physical interaction with
patients
✓ Dental care
✓ Transportation and warehousing
✓ Hotel and commercial lodging facilities
that are used for COVID-19 mitigation
and containment

Beyond this list, the chief executive (or equivalent) of a recipient government may designate
additional non-public sectors as critical so long as doing so is necessary to protecting the health
and wellbeing of the residents of such jurisdictions.
2. Verify that the eligible worker performs “essential work,” meaning work that:
•
•

Is not performed while teleworking from a residence; and
Involves either:
a. regular, in-person interactions with patients, the public, or coworkers of the
individual that is performing the work; or
b. regular physical handling of items that were handled by, or are to be handled by,
patients, the public, or coworkers of the individual that is performing the work.
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3. Confirm that the premium pay “responds to” workers performing essential work during the
COVID-19 public health emergency. Under the final rule, which broadened the share of eligible
workers who can receive premium pay without a written justification, recipients may meet this
requirement in one of three ways:
•

Eligible worker receiving premium pay is earning (with the premium included) at or below
150 percent of their residing state or county’s average annual wage for all occupations, as
defined by the Bureau of Labor Statistics’ Occupational Employment and Wage Statistics,
whichever is higher, on an annual basis; or

•

Eligible worker receiving premium pay is not exempt from the Fair Labor Standards Act
overtime provisions; or

•

If a worker does not meet either of the above requirements, the recipient must submit
written justification to Treasury detailing how the premium pay is otherwise responsive to
workers performing essential work during the public health emergency. This may include a
description of the essential worker’s duties, health, or financial risks faced due to COVID-19,
and why the recipient determined that the premium pay was responsive. Treasury
anticipates that recipients will easily be able to satisfy the justification requirement for
front-line workers, like nurses and hospital staff.

Premium pay may be awarded in installments or lump sums (e.g., monthly, quarterly, etc.) and may be
awarded to hourly, part-time, or salaried or non-hourly workers. Premium pay must be paid in addition
to wages already received and may be paid retrospectively. A recipient may not use SLFRF to merely
reimburse itself for premium pay or hazard pay already received by the worker, and premium pay may
not be paid to volunteers.
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Water & Sewer Infrastructure
The Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds may be used to make necessary investments in
water and sewer infrastructure. State, local, and Tribal governments have a tremendous need to
address the consequences of deferred maintenance in drinking water systems and removal,
management, and treatment of sewage and stormwater, along with additional resiliency measures
needed to adapt to climate change.
Recipients may undertake the eligible projects below:
PROJECTS ELIGIBLE UNDER EPA’S CLEAN WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND (CWSRF)
Eligible projects under the CWSRF, and the final rule, include:
✓ Construction of publicly owned
treatment works
✓ Projects pursuant to implementation
of a nonpoint source pollution
management program established
under the Clean Water Act (CWA)
✓ Decentralized wastewater treatment
systems that treat municipal
wastewater or domestic sewage
✓ Management and treatment of
stormwater or subsurface drainage
water
✓ Water conservation, efficiency, or
reuse measures

✓ Development and implementation of a
conservation and management plan
under the CWA
✓ Watershed projects meeting the
criteria set forth in the CWA
✓ Energy consumption reduction for
publicly owned treatment works
✓ Reuse or recycling of wastewater,
stormwater, or subsurface drainage
water
✓ Security of publicly owned treatment
works

Treasury encourages recipients to review the EPA handbook for the CWSRF for a full list of eligibilities.
PROJECTS ELIGIBLE UNDER EPA’S DRINKING WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND (DWSRF)
Eligible drinking water projects under the DWSRF, and the final rule, include:
✓ Facilities to improve drinking water
quality
✓ Transmission and distribution,
including improvements of water
pressure or prevention of
contamination in infrastructure and
lead service line replacements
✓ New sources to replace contaminated
drinking water or increase drought
resilience, including aquifer storage
and recovery system for water storage

✓ Green infrastructure, including green
roofs, rainwater harvesting collection,
permeable pavement
✓ Storage of drinking water, such as to
prevent contaminants or equalize
water demands
✓ Purchase of water systems and
interconnection of systems
✓ New community water systems

Treasury encourages recipients to review the EPA handbook for the DWSRF for a full list of eligibilities.
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ADDITIONAL ELIGIBLE PROJECTS
With broadened eligibility under the final rule, SLFRF funds may be used to fund additional types of
projects— such as additional stormwater infrastructure, residential wells, lead remediation, and certain
rehabilitations of dams and reservoirs — beyond the CWSRF and DWSRF, if they are found to be
“necessary” according to the definition provided in the final rule and outlined below.
✓ Culvert repair, resizing, and removal,
replacement of storm sewers, and
additional types of stormwater
infrastructure
✓ Infrastructure to improve access to
safe drinking water for individual
served by residential wells, including
testing initiatives, and
treatment/remediation strategies that
address contamination
✓ Dam and reservoir rehabilitation if
primary purpose of dam or reservoir is
for drinking water supply and project
is necessary for provision of drinking
water
A “necessary” investment in infrastructure must be:

✓ Broad set of lead remediation projects
eligible under EPA grant programs
authorized by the Water
Infrastructure Improvements for the
Nation (WIIN) Act, such as lead
testing, installation of corrosion
control treatment, lead service line
replacement, as well as water quality
testing, compliance monitoring, and
remediation activities, including
replacement of internal plumbing and
faucets and fixtures in schools and
childcare facilities

(1) responsive to an identified need to achieve or maintain an adequate minimum level of service,
which may include a reasonable projection of increased need, whether due to population
growth or otherwise,
(2) a cost-effective means for meeting that need, taking into account available alternatives, and
(3) for investments in infrastructure that supply drinking water in order to meet projected
population growth, projected to be sustainable over its estimated useful life.
Please note that DWSRF and CWSRF-eligible projects are generally presumed to be necessary
investments. Additional eligible projects generally must be responsive to an identified need to achieve
or maintain an adequate minimum level of service. Recipients are only required to assess costeffectiveness of projects for the creation of new drinking water systems, dam and reservoir
rehabilitation projects, or projects for the extension of drinking water service to meet population
growth needs. Recipients should review the supplementary information to the final rule for more details
on requirements applicable to each type of investment.
APPLICABLE STANDARDS & REQUIREMENTS
Treasury encourages recipients to adhere to strong labor standards, including project labor agreements
and community benefits agreements that offer wages at or above the prevailing rate and include local
hire provisions. Treasury also encourages recipients to prioritize in their procurements employers with
high labor standards and to prioritize employers without recent violations of federal and state labor and
employment laws.
Coronavirus State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds: Overview of the Final Rule
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Broadband Infrastructure
The Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds may be used to make necessary investments in
broadband infrastructure, which has been shown to be critical for work, education, healthcare, and civic
participation during the public health emergency. The final rule broadens the set of eligible broadband
infrastructure investments that recipients may undertake.
Recipients may pursue investments in broadband infrastructure meeting technical standards detailed
below, as well as an expanded set of cybersecurity investments.
BROADBAND INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENTS
Recipients should adhere to the following requirements when designing a broadband infrastructure
project:
1. Identify an eligible area for investment. Recipients are encouraged to prioritize projects that
are designed to serve locations without access to reliable wireline 100/20 Mbps broadband
service (meaning service that reliably provides 100 Mbps download speed and 20 Mbps upload
speed through a wireline connection), but are broadly able to invest in projects designed to
provide service to locations with an identified need for additional broadband investment.
Recipients have broad flexibility to define need in their community. Examples of need could
include:
✓

Lack of access to a reliable high-speed
broadband connection

✓ Lack of affordable broadband
✓ Lack of reliable service

If recipients are considering deploying broadband to locations where there are existing and
enforceable federal or state funding commitments for reliable service of at least 100/20 Mbps,
recipients must ensure that SLFRF funds are designed to address an identified need for
additional broadband investment that is not met by existing federal or state funding
commitments. Recipients must also ensure that SLFRF funds will not be used for costs that will
be reimbursed by the other federal or state funding streams.
2. Design project to meet high-speed technical standards. Recipients are required to design
projects to, upon completion, reliably meet or exceed symmetrical 100 Mbps download and
upload speeds. In cases where it is not practicable, because of the excessive cost of the project
or geography or topography of the area to be served by the project, eligible projects may be
designed to reliably meet or exceed 100/20 Mbps and be scalable to a minimum of symmetrical
100 Mbps download and upload speeds.
Treasury encourages recipients to prioritize investments in fiber-optic infrastructure wherever
feasible and to focus on projects that will achieve last-mile connections. Further, Treasury
encourages recipients to prioritize support for broadband networks owned, operated by, or
affiliated with local governments, nonprofits, and co-operatives.
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3. Require enrollment in a low-income subsidy program. Recipients must require the service
provider for a broadband project that provides service to households to either:
✓

Participate in the FCC’s Affordable
Connectivity Program (ACP)

✓ Provide access to a broad-based
affordability program to low-income
consumers that provides benefits
commensurate to ACP

Treasury encourages broadband services to also include at least one low-cost option offered
without data usage caps at speeds sufficient for a household with multiple users to
simultaneously telework and engage in remote learning. Recipients are also encouraged to
consult with the community on affordability needs.
CYBERSECURITY INVESTMENTS
SLFRF may be used for modernization of cybersecurity for existing and new broadband infrastructure,
regardless of their speed delivery standards. This includes modernization of hardware and software.
APPLICABLE STANDARDS & REQUIREMENTS
Treasury encourages recipients to adhere to strong labor standards, including project labor agreements
and community benefits agreements that offer wages at or above the prevailing rate and include local
hire provisions. Treasury also encourages recipients to prioritize in their procurements employers with
high labor standards and to prioritize employers without recent violations of federal and state labor and
employment laws.
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Restrictions on Use
While recipients have considerable flexibility to use Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds to
address the diverse needs of their communities, some restrictions on use of funds apply.
OFFSET A REDUCTION IN NET TAX REVENUE
•

States and territories may not use this funding to directly or indirectly offset a reduction in net
tax revenue resulting from a change in law, regulation, or administrative interpretation
beginning on March 3, 2021, through the last day of the fiscal year in which the funds
provided have been spent. If a state or territory cuts taxes during this period, it must
demonstrate how it paid for the tax cuts from sources other than SLFRF, such as by enacting
policies to raise other sources of revenue, by cutting spending, or through higher revenue due to
economic growth. If the funds provided have been used to offset tax cuts, the amount used for
this purpose must be repaid to the Treasury.

DEPOSITS INTO PENSION FUNDS
•

No recipients except Tribal governments may use this funding to make a deposit to a pension
fund. Treasury defines a “deposit” as an extraordinary contribution to a pension fund for the
purpose of reducing an accrued, unfunded liability. While pension deposits are prohibited,
recipients may use funds for routine payroll contributions connected to an eligible use of funds
(e.g., for public health and safety staff). Examples of extraordinary payments include ones that:


Reduce a liability incurred prior to the
start of the COVID-19 public health
emergency and occur outside the
recipient's regular timing for making the
payment



Occur at the regular time for pension
contributions but is larger than a regular
payment would have been

ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIONS AND REQUIREMENTS
Additional restrictions and requirements that apply across all eligible use categories include:
•

No debt service or replenishing financial reserves. Since SLFRF funds are intended to be used
prospectively, recipients may not use SLFRF funds for debt service or replenishing financial
reserves (e.g., rainy day funds).

•

No satisfaction of settlements and judgments. Satisfaction of any obligation arising under or
pursuant to a settlement agreement, judgment, consent decree, or judicially confirmed debt
restructuring in a judicial, administrative, or regulatory proceeding is itself not an eligible use.
However, if a settlement requires the recipient to provide services or incur other costs that are
an eligible use of SLFRF funds, SLFRF may be used for those costs.

•

Additional general restrictions. SLFRF funds may not be used for a project that conflicts with or
contravenes the purpose of the American Rescue Plan Act statute (e.g., uses of funds that
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undermine COVID-19 mitigation practices in line with CDC guidance and recommendations) and
may not be used in violation of the Award Terms and Conditions or conflict of interest
requirements under the Uniform Guidance. Other applicable laws and regulations, outside of
SLFRF program requirements, may also apply (e.g., laws around procurement, contracting,
conflicts-of-interest, environmental standards, or civil rights).
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Program Administration
The Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds final rule details a number of administrative
processes and requirements, including on distribution of funds, timeline for use of funds, transfer of
funds, treatment of loans, use of funds to meet non-federal match or cost-share requirements,
administrative expenses, reporting on use of funds, and remediation and recoupment of funds used for
ineligible purposes. This section provides a summary for the most frequently asked questions.
TIMELINE FOR USE OF FUNDS
Under the SLFRF, funds must be used for costs incurred on or after March 3, 2021. Further, costs must
be obligated by December 31, 2024, and expended by December 31, 2026.
TRANSFERS
Recipients may undertake projects on their own or through subrecipients, which carry out eligible uses
on behalf of a recipient, including pooling funds with other recipients or blending and braiding SLFRF
funds with other sources of funds. Localities may also transfer their funds to the state through section
603(c)(4), which will decrease the locality’s award and increase the state award amounts.
LOANS
Recipients may generally use SLFRF funds to provide loans for uses that are otherwise eligible, although
there are special rules about how recipients should track program income depending on the length of
the loan. Recipients should consult the final rule if they seek to utilize these provisions.
NON-FEDERAL MATCH OR COST-SHARE REQUIREMENTS
Funds available under the “revenue loss” eligible use category (sections 602(c)(1)(C) and 603(c)(1)(C) of
the Social Security Act) generally may be used to meet the non-federal cost-share or matching
requirements of other federal programs. However, note that SLFRF funds may not be used as the nonfederal share for purposes of a state’s Medicaid and CHIP programs because the Office of Management
and Budget has approved a waiver as requested by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services
pursuant to 2 CFR 200.102 of the Uniform Guidance and related regulations.
SLFRF funds beyond those that are available under the revenue loss eligible use category may not be
used to meet the non-federal match or cost-share requirements of other federal programs, other than
as specifically provided for by statute. As an example, the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act
provides that SLFRF funds may be used to meet the non-federal match requirements of authorized
Bureau of Reclamation projects and certain broadband deployment projects. Recipients should consult
the final rule for further details if they seek to utilize SLFRF funds as a match for these projects.
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
SLFRF funds may be used for direct and indirect administrative expenses involved in administering the
program. For details on permissible direct and indirect administrative costs, recipients should refer to
Treasury’s Compliance and Reporting Guidance. Costs incurred for the same purpose in like
circumstances must be treated consistently as either direct or indirect costs.
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REPORTING, COMPLIANCE & RECOUPMENT
Recipients are required to comply with Treasury’s Compliance and Reporting Guidance, which includes
submitting mandatory periodic reports to Treasury.
Funds used in violation of the final rule are subject to remediation and recoupment. As outlined in the
final rule, Treasury may identify funds used in violation through reporting or other sources. Recipients
will be provided with an initial written notice of recoupment with an opportunity to submit a request for
reconsideration before Treasury provides a final notice of recoupment. If the recipient receives an initial
notice of recoupment and does not submit a request for reconsideration, the initial notice will be
deemed the final notice. Treasury may pursue other forms of remediation and monitoring in conjunction
with, or as an alternative to, recoupment.

REVISIONS TO THE OVERVIEW OF THE FINAL RULE:
•

•

January 18, 2022 (p. 4, p. 16): Clarification that the revenue loss standard allowance is “up to”
$10 million under the Replacing Lost Public Sector Revenue eligible use category; addition of
further information on the eligibility of general infrastructure, general economic development,
and worker development projects under the Public Health and Negative Economic Impacts
eligible use category.
March 17, 2022 (p. 18): Specified that provision of child nutrition programs is available to
respond to impacts of the pandemic on households and communities.
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ARPA Revenue Replacement Calculator
Background Information
1) Fiscal Year End

Notes:

December

Base Year Revenue Period

12/31/2019

2) Calculation Date

FY used for base year calculation

12/31/2020

Number of Months

12

Months between Base Year and Calculation Date

Estimate Revenue
3) Base Year Revenue

$

4) Growth Rate
Counterfactual Revenue
5) Actual Revenue

Reduction in Revenue
Revenue Reduction

9,571,882
4.4%

$

9,992,505

$

10,518,793

Use Worksheet to Calculate
Use Worksheet to Calculate
Estimated Revenue Without Pandemic
Use Worksheet to Calculate

Fiscal Year Ended
$

-

12/31/2020

Capital Improvement Plan
P urpose and Scope

This document represents the 31th Capital Improvement Program (CIP) adopted by
DeWitt Charter Township. The preparation of this document is part of the Township’s
growth management program. The CIP is an important component of this program as it
identifies public improvements necessary to serve the Township’s expanding population
and serves as a useful planning document to manage Township growth. Planning for
capital improvements is a matter of prudent financial management as well as sound
development practices. Capital improvement projects are generally defined as a onetime expenditure with an estimated cost in excess of $15,000 that has a useful life of
more than one year. Examples of capital improvement projects are park improvements,
road resurfacing, government buildings, and sewer and water projects.
This Capital Improvement Program covers the period from 2022 through 2027, with
2022 representing the capital improvement budget. To ensure the best long term
planning, the Township has included known projects beyond the 2027 time period.

It is important to note that just because an item is listed on the CIP, it does not mean
that it will be funded. This document is a planning tool. Funding decisions for specific

projects are made on a yearly basis on a project-by-project basis.

The CIP lists all major projects, their costs, and their priority for implementation. This
Plan is intended to link the Township’s Comprehensive Plan, Strategic Plan, Sewer Rehab
Plan, Non-Motorized Transportation Plan, and fiscal plan and provides a mechanism for:
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

Systematically evaluating all potential projects in the following categories:
o Motorized and Non-Motorized Transportation
o Public Works (Sewer)
o Public Safety Equipment
o Parks & Recreation
o Facilities
Funding of reserve for future capital purchases
Stabilize debt and consolidate projects to reduce borrowing costs
Planning, prioritizing, scheduling, and implementing projects
Developing financing and/or revenue policy for proposed improvements
Budgeting high priority projects
Informing the public of planned capital improvements

Priorities are based on cost, availability of funds, benefits to the populace of the
Township, and the relative need for the project. The highest priority projects are then
included in the first year of the CIP and the other lower priority projects are then listed
in what is called the capital improvement schedule. Some projects are spread over
several years.
By listing a project in the CIP, the Township is recognizing that a need does exist for this
project and that steps need to be taken to implement this project. In this sense, then,
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the CIP represents both a planning and budgeting document as future costs must be
kept in line with projected Township revenues so that the projects can be implemented
as planned within the constraints of a balanced Township budget. It is recognized that
priorities may not necessarily correspond to funding sequence because of limited
general revenue streams, the availability of restricted sources, and other possible
limitations. Therefore, priority of projects will be a governing guideline, subject to
extenuating, justifiable reasons for out-of-sequence expectations.
The Township Planning Commission has the legal responsibility to adopt the annual
Capital Improvement Program. This document is then used by the Township Board in
adopting the General Fund and Enterprise Fund budgets. Based upon available
resources, the highest priority projects are integrated into these budgets.

P rocess

The following sections contain the General Fund and Sewer Fund projects ranked in
order of priority by the Capital Improvement Program Committee and approved by the
DeWitt Township Planning Commission.
During the budget process, all Department Heads are requested to submit CIP requests
for any items that they recommend to be considered. The Manager then submits these
items to the CIP Committee for inclusion in the 2022-2027 CIP. The Committee initially
uses the following criteria and weighting to rank and sort the identified projects:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Maintain existing service or infrastructure
Public Safety and Health
Impact on operating cost or revenue
Timing/Location
Quality of life
Economic Development and Growth
Useful Life

(20%)
(20%)
(15%)
(15%)
(13%)
(12%)
(5%)

Ultimately, the projects are prioritized by the Committee based on the rankings as
defined above, cost(s), availability of funds, benefits to the populace of the Township,
and the relative need for the project. The Manager’s Office then prepares the
recommendation of the CIP Committee, which is sent to the Planning Commission for
approval. These rankings are then used by the Township Board as a guide in preparing
the annual Township budget and help in making project-funding decisions.
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CI P History
Following is a status report of the CIP items that were funded in the 2021 budget:
A. Roads – 2021

Project Status: In Progress

Late in 2020, the Manager’s Office and Road Commission worked to identify the best
use of these allocated funds. Below is a summary of the projects that were ultimately
identified for 2021:

Preventative Maintenance





Brush spraying
Gravel Roads (7.17 Miles)
o 3 passes of brine on all gravel, 4th application on
Howe and Norris Roads
Overband crack seal
Preventive Maintenance Sub Total

$2,124
$12,296
$24,800
$39,220

Capital Projects


Boichot Road – Clark Rd to Northcrest Rd
o Mill and Fill (2.03 miles)



Stoll Road – Boichot to Wood Rd
o Mill and Fill (.49 miles)

$273,514
$97,385

Capital Project Sub Total

$370,899

Total

$410,119
$99,848
$286,346
$23,925

RC Share
General Fund Share
Sewer Fund Share

B. Patrol Car Replacement

Project Status: Completed

The 2021 budget allocated dollars to replace one vehicle. Vehicle 5 has been replaced in
2021.
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C. Police Car Radios

Project Status: Completed

In 2020, Clinton County voters approved a 911 millage for enhancements to the Clinton
County Central Dispatch. Currently, the Police Department has 18 portable radios and 9
patrol car radios with 12 of the portable radios and 5 of the patrol car radios needing to
be replaced. These radios are all 20-30 years old and are not compatible with the new
radio system that will be put into place in 2021. The County 911 millage will be
providing monetary assistance to the department for the purchases of these radios;
however, the full cost will not be covered.
D. Fire Department SCBA Replacement

Project Status: Completed

The 2021 budget included 10 Scott 4.5 Air Packs with 4500 psi carbon fiber cylinders(20
bottles) at a cost of $75,500 as phase one of SCBA replacement for the Fire
Department.
E. New or Remodel Fire Station One

Project Status: In Progress

The Township Board approved an update to the 2009 Feasibility Study of Fire Station No
1 and approved an expenditure not to exceed $85,000 for engineering and design
services. The Township is vetting and interviewing firms to conduct this work at the
current time.
F. Granger Meadows Inline Hockey Rink

Project Status: In Progress

The Inline Hockey Rink at Granger Meadows is scarcely used and has long term
maintenance concerns. A renovation and retrofitting of the facility would extend the
usability of the facility and allow more of the community to participate. The Township
has begun the process of exploring firms for the rink redesign and conversion to
pickleball courts.
G. Sewer Master Plan

Project Status: In Progress

The DeWitt Charter Township sewer system is 30 years old in many areas. The system
is aging and is in need of repairs. We have completed a collection system rehab plan,
but have not evaluated the complete deficiencies in our system. We are in need of
reviewing and developing a long term plan for upgrade and growth of the system. This
plan would also help identify areas with high inflow and infiltration, allowing us to fix
them and reduce costs for the Township and its customers. The Township is utilizing a
Qualifications Based Selection progress to determine a firm for this work. QBS packets
have been issued to firms to later be evaluated later by Township Staff.
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2022 CIP Requests
Summary
General Fund
Project
Patrol Car Replacements
New or Remodel Fire Station One
SCBA Replacement
Road Maintenance\Construction
Future Apparatus Replacement
Community Center Parking Expansion
LUCAS Chest Compression system
Expanded sidewalk/biking/trail system
Comp Plan update
Gunnisonville Cemetery Expansion
Maintenance Vehicles Replacements
Valley Farms (Parking Expansion)
Building Dept Vehicles Replacements
Valley Farms (Playground)
Miracle League Field
Granger Meadows Park Enhancements
Public Swimming/County Wide Park
Waters Edge Park Improvements
Park Monument Signs
Placemaking Art Sculptures

Department
Police
Fire
Fire
Roads
Fire
Community Center
Fire
Parks and Rec
Planning
Physical Plant
Maintenance
Parks and Rec
Building
Parks and Rec
Parks and Rec
Parks and Rec
Parks and Rec
Parks and Rec
Parks and Rec
Parks and Rec

Priority
for 2022

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

$

2022
2023
2024
108,000 $
72,000 $ 108,000 $
$ 2,685,000
86,000
350,000 $ 350,000 $ 1,000,000 $
$
40,000 $ 100,000
$ 352,000
$
17,000
200,000 $ 200,000 $
50,000 $
52,000
$
90,000 $ 120,000
$
20,000 $
40,000 $
200,000

$
$

167,400
802,700

$

220,000

$
$
$

$
$
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$

2025
36,000

350,000 $

50,000 $

40,000

2026

∞

2027+

350,000 ∞
$ 3,290,000

50,000 ∞
$

120,000

415,000

Unknown
$
$

30,000
30,000

General Fund
Project
Redevelopment Old US27 and Sheridan Road
Padgett Park Pavilion
New Park Assets/Green Space
Valley Turner Park Playground
Expansion of Public Water
Expansion of Dog Park Parking

Department
Township
Parks and Rec
Parks and Rec
Parks and Rec
Township
Parks and Rec

Priority
for 2022

2022

21
22
23
24
25
26

2023
$

2024

2026

2025
179,870 $

2026
2027+
179,870 $ 200,000

35,000
$

$

2025

100,000

60,000

2027+
No cost
$
45,000
Unknown
$ 100,000
$ 3,500,000

Sewer
Project
Sewer Rehabilitation
102 Interceptor Project Phase 3
Sanitary Sewer Service Area #1
Stoll Rd Repairs/DeWitt Road Pump Station

Department
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer

Priority
for 2022

1
2
3
4

$

2022
184,843 $
$

2023
179,632 $
500,000

2024
179,870 $

$ 1,300,000
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$ 4,950,000

2022 CIP Project Requests- General Fund
Project Details

A. Patrol Car Replacements
The Police Department currently has a fleet of nine cars assigned as follows:
Car #
5
3
8
2
6
7
9
4

Current Use
Patrol
Patrol
Detective
Patrol
Patrol
Patrol
K9
Court/Training

Type
Ford SUV
Ford SUV
Ford SUV
Charger
Charger
Ford SUV
Tahoe
Charger

Mileage
3,464
102,940
88,472
62,077
91,693
27,525
68,115
76,554

Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project (2022 only):

Acquired
2021
2018
2014
2019
2019
2020
2016
2018

Replacement
2025
2022
2023
2023
2023
2024
2024
2022

2022 to ∞
$108,000

Funding Source: General Fund
Effect on Future Operating Costs: Patrol Car replacement is more of an operational
replacement. By replacing vehicles periodically, it reduces maintenance costs and ensures that
officers are safe and can respond as needed.
Strategic Initiative: Public Safety
Strategy: No specific strategy or objective identified
Strategic Initiative: Fiscal and Organizational Excellence
Strategy: Continue/expand long-term planning related to revenue and expense, and
ensure that the Township continues to invest in and maintain its existing
assets.
Objective: Increase the proactive planning through a strong Capital Improvement Plan
(CIP)
B. New or Remodel Fire Station One
Fire Station One is beginning to become obsolete. The building was originally designed as the
primary fire station. With the building of Fire Station Two, most of the administrative offices
have been moved to Fire Station Two. The current interior and exterior building décor is
outdated and is in need of many updates. Additionally, the building’s three HVAC systems are
old and not very energy efficient, the roof is in need of replacing, the windows are not energy
efficient, and the driveway surrounding the building is in need of replacement. The Maintenance
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Department utilizes space in two of the bays by a partition wall. While this has met their needs,
it does create inefficiency with heating and lighting.
In 2009, the Township had an analysis done to determine if it makes more sense to renovate
the existing building, build a new building at the existing site, or build a new building at a new
site. The Township Board is in the process of vetting firms to conduct a update to the 2009
feasibility study of Fire Station No. 1. Below are the preliminary opinions of probable project
costs:
Renovation:
New Building at new site:
New Building at existing site:

$2,380,000
$2,559,500*
$2,685,000

* Does not include the purchase of land
Building a new Fire Station at a new site does provide additional advantages. Currently, parking
at Valley Farms Park is very limited. This is especially true when you have a Miracle League
game and DARA t-ball games all happening at the same time. By building the Fire Station at a
new location, it will open this area up to parking. Additionally, if the Township were to build the
new fire station on Old US-27 or State Road, it would help the South Central Area Plan. This
Plan calls for additional development in this area to help with the stabilization and revitalization.
A new high quality government building would provide significant aesthetic improvement and
help encourage additional private development in this area. Prior to construction of a new
building, an architect would need to be commissioned to design the building. We have
estimated a cost of $85,000 for building design.
Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project:
Unknown

2022

Funding Source: General Fund, Parks and Facilities Reserve, Grants, Loans
Effect on Future Operating Costs: Reduction. With a more energy efficient building and less
HVAC units, the operational costs should be reduced.
Strategic Initiative: Public Safety
Strategy: Planning/Development of safe community
Objective: Plan for replacement of Fire Station One
Strategic Initiative: Community & Economic Development
Strategy: Stabilize and increase the South Central Tier
Objective: Create a sense of place.
Strategic Initiative: Fiscal and Organizational Excellence
Strategy: Continue/expand long-term planning related to revenue and expense, and ensure that
the Township continues to invest in and maintain its existing assets.
Objective: Increase the proactive planning through a strong Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)
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C. Fire Department SCBA Replacement
The current SCBA packs were purchased through on a grant in 2001. At that time, DeWitt
Township purchased 20 air packs (Scott 2.2 system with a carbon fiber cylinders) and 50 air
bottles (2216 psi, 30-minute bottle). The carbon fiber cylinders have a 15-year life cycle per the
NFPA standard. Replacement of air packs has become difficult with the age of the equipment
and the inability to obtain parts.
Best practice of current operations would be a move toward a 4.5 air pack system that holds a
smaller cylinder making it more mobile and a 4500 psi air pack system which will hold 45
minutes of air.
When purchasing 10 air pack systems, Scott will add 10 additional bottles at no cost.
Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project:

2022
$86,000

10 Scott 4.5 Air Packs with 4500 psi carbon fiber cylinders(20 bottles)
10 Additional 4500 psi carbon fiber cylinders
Effect on Future Operating Costs: The replacement of the SCBA packs and air bottles is more
of an operational replacement. Other than normal repairs, this purchase is not expected to
affect future operation costs.
Funding Source: General Fund, Grants
Strategic Initiative: Public Safety
Strategy: No specific strategy or objective identified
Strategic Initiative: Fiscal and Organizational Excellence
Strategy: Continue/expand long-term planning related to revenue and expense
and ensure that the Township continues to invest in and maintain its existing assets.
Objective: Increase the proactive planning through a strong Capital Improvement Plan
(CIP)
D. Roads – 2022
Every year, the Township works with the Road Commission to identify maintenance issues that
need to be addressed on our local road system. At this point, we have not identified the specific
roads for the 2022 budget year. At the beginning of 2022, we will meet with the Road
Commission and review the Township’s local road network. Using data from a standardized road
rating system, we allocate the budgeted funds to maintenance projects that help extend the
useful life of our infrastructure, and to repaving projects.
Years ago, the Township started a proactive preventative maintenance program; and in 2014, a
Road Capital Improvement Plan was adopted. This, along with increased investment, has
helped slow the decline in the quality of the roads.
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The “Pavement Management Program,” adopted in 2014, recommends that the Township invest
$350,000 a year in routine asphalt maintenance. In addition, the Township should set aside
$300,000 a year to allow for +/- $1 million total reconstruction projects in future years.
Recommended Year for Implementation:
2022 to ∞
Estimated Cost of Project:
$350,000
Reserve Funding:
$300,000
Effect on Future Operating Costs: Well planned investment in the Township’s roads today will
reduce the long term investment necessary to maintain the roads in the future. By using sound
preventative maintenance practices, it lengthens the life of the roads and ensures that limited
financial resources are used wisely.
Funding Source: General Fund, Road Commission
Strategic Initiative: Fiscal and Organizational Excellence
Strategy: Continue/expand long-term planning related to revenue and expense, and ensure that
the Township continues to invest in and maintain its existing assets.
Objective: Increase the proactive planning through a strong Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)
Strategic Initiative: Infrastructure
Strategy: Maintain high quality transportation network
Objective: Create Road Asset Management Plan
E. Fire Apparatus Purchase
The Fire Apparatus Master Plan, approved by the Board of Trustees in 2003, outlines the
schedule for the purchase, replacement, and refurbishment of fire apparatus in the Township.
This Plan was updated in 2009. Timeframes and estimates of cost are addressed in the Master
Plan. The following table is based on the 2009 Plan, but has been updated by the Fire Chief to
reflect the current needs for replacement.
Equipment

Purchased

Heavy Rescue
Medical 1st Response
Brush Fire Truck
Medical 1st Response
Quint – Engine & Ladder
Water Tanker
Pumper Engine 1
Pumper Engine 2
Command Car-MFR

2020
2013
2004
2014
2005
2011
2011
2016
2021

Life

Replacement

Cost

20
10
20
10
25
20
25
25
10

2040
2023
2024
2024
2030
2031
2036
2041
2031

$230,000
$50,000
$60,000
$50,000
$1,750,000
$250,000
$550,000
$600,000
$40,000

Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project (2022 only):

2022 to ∞
$0
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Effect on Future Operating Costs: Apparatus replacement is more of an operational
replacement. By replacing vehicles periodically, it reduces maintenance costs and ensures that
firefighters are safe and can respond as needed.
Funding Source: General Fund, Equipment Fund, Grants
Strategic Initiative: Public Safety
Strategy: No specific strategy or objective identified
Strategic Initiative: Fiscal and Organizational Excellence
Strategy: Continue/expand long-term planning related to revenue and expense, and
ensure that the Township continues to invest in and maintain its existing
assets.
Objective: Increase the proactive planning through a strong Capital Improvement Plan
(CIP)
F. Community Center Parking Expansion
As use of the Township Community Center and the athletic facilities located at Valley Farms
Park continues to increase, the need for additional parking is becoming evident. In 2009, a
parcel of property was acquired along State Road. This parcel abuts the Community Center
parking lot. Because of its location, this parcel can be used for additional parking, also creating
an additional entrance to allow for more effective traffic flow. Furthermore, this location will
allow for better visibility of the Community Center by providing an entrance sign along a major
primary road, State Road. This project would also entail the replacement of parking lot trees
and renovation of parking lot islands (estimated cost of $2,000).
Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project:

2023
$352,000

Effect on Future Operating Costs: $1,500 additional salt and plowing.
Funding Source: General Fund, Parks and Facilities Reserve
Strategic Initiative: Quality of Life
Strategy: No specific strategy identified
Strategic Initiative: Infrastructure
Strategy: No specific strategy identified
Strategic Initiative: Community & Economic Development
Strategy: Stabilize and increase the South Central Tier
Objective: Create a sense of place.
Strategic Initiative: Fiscal and Organizational Excellence
Strategy: Continue/expand long-term planning related to revenue and expense, and
ensure that the Township continues to invest in and maintain its existing
assets.
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Objective: Increase the proactive planning through a strong Capital Improvement Plan
(CIP)
G. LUCAS Chest Compression System
DeWitt Township Fire Department responds to numerous chest pain and cardiac arrest incidents
every year. CPR is initiated on several patients. The LUCAS device improves operational
efficiencies by reducing fatigue, individual variations, and the switching of CPR providers every
two minutes to accomplish the high-performance CPR.
LUCAS enables and facilitates extended CPR and high-quality CPR during transport to the
hospital. The device delivers safe and effective chest compressions with consistent dept of 2.1
inches and a rate of 102 per minute.
Recommended Year of Implementation:
Estimated Total Cost of Project:

2023
$17,000

Future Operating Costs: Product maintenance
Funding Source: Grants, General Fund
Strategic Initiative: Public Safety
Strategy: No specific strategy or objective identified
H. Expanding Sidewalk, Biking and Trail System
Communities with extensive non-motorized transportation assets are becoming more desirable
places to live, work, learn, worship and play. Having a highly walkable/bikeable community is
also one principal element of smart growth. In 2014, the Township adopted the Non-Motorized
Transportation Plan. This Plan identifies 60 projects that would provide an interconnected
system of non-motorized transportation assets, and provides a comprehensive rank plan to help
prioritize projects. In 2019, the Planning Department along with the Planning Commission went
through the process of a major update to the Non-Motorized Transportation Plan.
Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project (2022 only):

2022 to ∞
$200,000

Effect on Future Operating Costs: path maintenance on shared use pathways.
Funding Source: General Fund, Transportation Reserve, Grants, Special Assessments
Strategic Initiative: Quality of Life
Strategy: Provide bike lanes, sidewalks, pathways, and waterways that promote healthy
lifestyles and provide adequate connections within the entire community for
transportation, health, wellness and safety.
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I. Comprehensive Development Plan Update
Our most recent update to the Township’s Comprehensive Development Plan was in 2018 and
this update was a minor revision. This Plan is intended to be a long range plan to cover over a
20-year period. The State of Michigan recommends that this Plan be reviewed every five years
and minor updates be made if necessary. A large scale review takes a significant amount of
public input over an extended period of time. Because of the importance in guiding the future of
the Township, an outside consultant with expertise in Comprehensive Development Plans is
normally used.
Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project:

2022
$52,000

Effect on Future Operating Costs: No additional impact on operating costs
Funding Source: General Fund
Strategic Initiative: Community & Economic Development
Strategy: Utilize strong planning principles and a policy of managed growth
Objective: Review/update Comp Plan

J. Gunnisonville Cemetery Improvement
The Township owns approximately 7 acres of land directly east of Gunnisonville Cemetery. This
property was acquired to allow for the expansion of the Cemetery. Prior to selling any lots in
the expansion, the land must have proper grading for drainage, drives must be laid out, grass
seeding accomplished, and a survey of individual lots with corner markers completed. This item
also includes the placement of trees and landscaping in the 7 acre addition area. This project
would be a three-phase project.
In 2009, a master plan was created for the expansion and approved by the Board. Originally,
the first phase of this project had been planned to be completed in 2009. Because of budget
constraints and new analysis for the future space needs, it was decided to hold off on
construction. Gunnisonville Cemetery has approximately 8 more years (2027) until we no longer
have sufficient lots to sell. Hurd Cemetery has an undetermined number of years, with
approximately 550 lots available.
Phase one of Gunnisonville Cemetery Improvement was to clear and seed 2 acres of land for
potential use in 2022. The 2 acres were cleared in 2021 and land preparations are taking place
to prepare for 2022.
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Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project (Phase two):
Estimated Cost of Project (Phase three):

2023
$90,000
$120,000

Funding Source: General Fund or 425 dollars
Effect on Future Operating Costs: $9,000 yearly. Additional mowing, fertilization, and drive
maintenance would be required.
Strategic Initiative: Quality of Life
Strategy: Review and develop a long term plan for expansion and maintenance of cemeteries in
the Township.

K. Replacement of Maintenance Vehicles
The Maintenance Department currently has a fleet
Vechicle
Current Use
Mileage
Truck F150
Daily
131,678
Truck F250
Daily/Plow
3,585
Truck F250
Daily/Plow
101,575
Truck F250
Daily/Plow
21,305
Lawn Mower
Lawn Mower
Lawn Mower
Tractor
Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project (2022 only):

of 8 vehicles assigned as follows:
Acquired
Replacement
2005
2025
2020
2035
2009
2024
2019
2034
2020
2023
2020
2023
2020
2023
2015
2024
2022 to ∞
$0

Funding Source: General Fund
Effect on Future Operating Costs: Lawn Mower replacement is more of an operational
replacement. By replacing the mowers periodically, it reduces maintenance costs and maintains
manufacturer warranty.
Strategic Initiative: Fiscal and Organizational Excellence
Strategy: Continue/expand long-term planning related to revenue and expense, and ensure that
the Township continues to invest in and maintain its existing assets.
Objective: Increase the proactive planning through a strong Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)
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L. Valley Farms Park – Parking Expansion
Parking is limited near the pavilions, playground and Miracle League Field at Valley Farms Park.
When the Miracle League and DARA have games at the same time, people are required to park
on Brook and Wieland Roads. In 2009, a master plan was created for the park. This included
two options for parking lot expansion.
Option A would add 37 new parking spaces. This would require moving the basketball court and
volleyball court. Option B assumes that the Fire Station One would not be replaced at the
current location and allow for 66 additional spaces where the Fire Station now sits.
Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project:

2022
$200,000

Effect on Future Operating Costs: $1,500 additional salt and plowing.
Funding Source: General Fund, Grants/foundations, Miracle League of Mid-Michigan, 425 dollars
Strategic Initiative: Quality of Life
Strategy: No specific strategy identified.
Strategic Initiative: Infrastructure
Strategy: No specific strategy identified.
Strategic Initiative: Community & Economic Development
Strategy: Stabilize and increase the South Central Tier
Objective: Create a sense of place.
Strategic Initiative: Fiscal and Organizational Excellence
Strategy: Continue/expand long-term planning related to revenue and expense, and
ensure that the Township continues to invest in and maintain its existing
assets.
Objective: Increase the proactive planning through a strong Capital Improvement Plan
(CIP)
M. Replacement of Building Department Vehicles
The Building Department currently has a fleet of 2 vehicles assigned as follows:
Vechicle
Truck F250
SUV

Current Use
Inspections
Inspections

Mileage
38,226
15,037

Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project (2022 only):

Acquired
2019
2020

Replacement
2029
2030
2022 to ∞
$0

Funding Source: General Fund
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Effect on Future Operating Costs: Vehicle replacement is more of an operational replacement.
By replacing the vehicles periodically, it reduces maintenance costs and maintains manufacturer
warranty.
Strategic Initiative: Fiscal and Organizational Excellence
Strategy: Continue/expand long-term planning related to revenue and expense, and
ensure that the Township continues to invest in and maintain its existing
assets.
Objective: Increase the proactive planning through a strong Capital Improvement Plan
(CIP)
N. Valley Farms Park – Playground
In 2013 and 2014, the first phase of this project was completed. Because of age and safety
concerns, the existing equipment was replaced by six new pieces of equipment. The next
phase of the project includes installing pathways and a new larger accessible play structure.
These additions would make the playground more accessible for children with disabilities and
improve the aesthetics. This is especially important with the recent upgrades with the new
Miracle League Field and the new restroom/concession facility.
The Township in cooperation with a non-profit, CASE Cares, has applied for Michigan Natural
Resources Trust Fund Grant for the installation of new larger accessible play structure,
pathways, and other amenities at Valley Farms Park. We have applied for these grants in
previous years and have not been successful. The State of Michigan has also changed their
grant evaluation making this particular project more difficult to fund with grant dollars
Recommended Year for Implementation:
2022 +
Estimated Cost of Project:
$415,000
Effect on Future Operating Costs: $500 power washing equipment
Funding Source: General Fund, Grants/Foundations, Case Cares, 425 Dollars
Strategic Initiative: Quality of Life
Strategy: Enhance Township recreation amenities and opportunities
Objective: no specific objective identified
Strategic Initiative: Community & Economic Development
Strategy: Stabilize and increase the South Central Tier
Objective: Create a sense of place.
O.

Valley Farms Park - Miracle League Field

The Miracle Field which is constructed with a rubberized surface, provides no barriers for
wheelchairs, walkers, braces etc. and was installed in March of 2012. The field and its operation
is a public/private partnership with DeWitt Township, CASE Cares, The Miracle league of MidMichigan and DeWitt Area Recreation Authority (DARA). Construction of the original field utilized
a Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Grant.
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Over the years, the field has taken some damage from the outside elements and is in need of
replacement.
Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project:

2022
$167,400

Effect on Future Operating Costs: Will increase facility maintenance needs
Funding Source: General Fund, Grants, Parks and Facilities Reserve
Strategic Initiative: Quality of Life
Strategy: Enhance Township recreation amenities and opportunities
P. Granger Meadows Park Enhancements
For a number of years, participants in sports such as softball/baseball have been seeing a
decline in the region, State and across the Country. This has left the Township’s and City’s
softball/baseball fields underutilized. At the same time, the need for general use field space has
risen. This space can be used for a wider variety of sports, including soccer, football, and
lacrosse. Because of the limited use of the Granger Meadows baseball field, we would like to
convert this field to general use field space.
The second area for enhancement to the recreation amenities at Granger Meadows Park is
related to an active senior program. “In the coming decades, the United States is going to look
a lot greyer. By 2050, the number of Americans over 65 will almost double to 81.7 million, with
their share of the overall population rising to 21 percent from roughly 15 percent now,
according to Census projections. More than 10,000 baby boomers are turning 65 every day.
Virtually every part of America will become more senior-dominated, but some more than others.
(Source www.forbes.com).”
To enhance offerings for the growing older population in the DeWitt community, we can convert
a portion of Granger Park to pickleball courts and bocce ball. By offering these facilities, it gives
other recreation opportunities for seniors other than more intense sports traditionally offered.
In 2019, Spicer Group was retained to provide cost estimates for this project.
Field Renovation: Convert ballfield to soccer/multi-purpose field
Recommended Year for Implementation:
2022
Estimated Cost of Project:
$360,700
Bocce Ball/Pickleball Courts
Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project:

2022
$253,700

Additional Pavilion
Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project:

2022
$188,300
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Effect on Future Operating Costs: The conversion of the baseball field to sports fields would
reduce operation expenses by not needing to maintain and
apply diamond dust. The new pickleball and bocce courts will
require monthly maintenance during the summer.
Additionally, a pickleball court will have to be resurfaced
approximately every 9 years at a cost of $5,000 to $10,000.
Funding Source: General Fund
Strategic Initiative: Quality of Life
Strategy: Enhance Township recreation amenities and opportunities
Objectives: Expand services and opportunities for senior citizens
Strategic Initiatives: Community & Economic Development
Strategies: Stabilize and increase the South Central Tier
Objectives: Create a unique sense of place
Q. Public Swimming/County Wide Park
The DeWitt area does not currently have any readily available public swimming opportunities.
This could be a public pool, splash pad, or beach. The 2010 DeWitt Area Recreation Plan
identifies the creation of a swimming feature as one of the action plan items. Additionally,
Clinton County has said that they are interested in seeing a park similar to Motz Park open up in
the Southern Tier of the County that includes a swimming feature.
Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project:

Beyond 2023
unknown

Effect on Future Operating Costs: $85,000 annually. Dependent upon how the park is
developed. At a minimum there will be electrical costs, staff
costs for grounds and facility maintenance, and routine repair
work.
Funding Source: General Fund, Parks and Facilities Reserve, Grants
Strategic Initiative: Quality of Life
Strategy: Enhance Township recreation amenities and opportunities
Strategic Initiative: Fiscal and Organizational Excellence
Strategy: Continue/expand long-term planning related to revenue and expense, and
ensure that the Township continues to invest in and maintain its existing
assets.
Objective: Increase the proactive planning through a strong Capital Improvement Plan
(CIP)
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R. Water’s Edge Park Improvements
The Township finalized the purchase of Water’s Edge Park in 2005. The 11 acre park, located
at Round Lake and Wood Roads, provides approximately 700’ of frontage along the Looking
Glass River. Cost estimate is based on potential park amenities like a canoe launch, parking
area, fishing decks, and community gardens. In 2009, a tree grant was acquired to install 24
trees. In 2010, the Road Commission and a neighbor in the area put in a small parking lot to
gain access to the property.
Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project:

2022
$220,000

Effect on Future Operating Costs: $12,500 annually. Dependent upon how the park is
developed. At a minimum, there will be electrical costs, staff
costs for grounds and facility maintenance, and routine repair
work.
Funding Source: General Fund, Parks and Facilities Reserve, Grants
Strategic Initiative: Quality of Life
Strategy: Enhance Township recreation amenities and opportunities
Strategic Initiative: Fiscal and Organizational Excellence
Strategy: Continue/expand long-term planning related to revenue and expense, and
ensure that the Township continues to invest in and maintain its existing
assets.
Objective: Increase the proactive planning through a strong Capital Improvement Plan
(CIP)

S. Park Monument Signs
Signs marking the entrance to the Township’s parks not only ensure that our public is aware of
these valuable community assets, but also provide a positive image to the community by
highlighting DeWitt Charter Township and our facilities that bring quality of life to our
community.
Our largest and most used park is Granger Meadows Park. While we have a sign on Granger
Meadows Lane and Wood Road, there is not a sign on Granger Meadows Lane and Old US-27. A
number of park users have indicated that a sign on Old US-27 is needed to make the park
easier to find. This would require an easement from private property owners.
In 2014, DeWitt Township updated the Looking Glass River Front Park with a new canoe/kayak
launch and expanded parking area. Unfortunately, this facility has no signage.
Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project:

2024
$30,000
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Effect on Future Operating Costs: $600 a year per location if lighting is installed. Small increase
in the physical plant budget for general maintenance and
repair.
Funding Source: General Fund, 425 reserves
Strategic Initiative: Quality of Life
Strategy: Enhance Townships recreation amenities and opportunities
Objective: No specific objective identified
T. Placemaking/Art Sculptures
DeWitt Township is in competition to attract and retain residents and businesses in the MidMichigan area. Art has the ability to create a unique sense of place that adds to the quality-oflife of a community. In 2013, the Township received a Lansing Economic Area Partnership
(LEAP) Placemaking grant for installation of the “A Great Place To Start” art sculpture located
on Old US-27 and Sheridan Road. These pieces, and others like it, can be an economic
development drive for our community. The goal would be to place a number of significant,
surprising and unexpected elements along major corridors in the community to help define and
create a unique local and regional identity. This effort will help create energy to rejuvenate
certain areas of the Township and help other areas grow.
Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project:

2024
$30,000 a piece

Effect on Future Operating Costs: $2,000 annually. Lights and additional grounds
maintenance.
Funding Source: General Fund, Grants, Parks and Facilities Reserve
Strategic Initiative: Quality of Life
Strategy: Enhance Township recreation amenities and opportunities
Strategic Initiative: Community & Economic Development
Strategy: Enhance aesthetic quality of major gateways to the Township
Objective: Add landscaping, lighting, street trees, art installation, etc.
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U. Redevelopment Old US27 and Sheridan Road
The Township currently owns six parcels just
north and west of the Old US27 and Sheridan
Road intersection. This is the entryway into the
Township and the beginning of the Valley Farms
Corridor. The redevelopment of this area would
help to continue the stabilization and growth of
the South Central Area of the Township. The
exact plan for this area is unknown at this time.
Ideas could include senior housing, low income
housing, commercial/retail or a combination of
these uses. It is not expected that the Township
would undertake the development, but instead
turn the property over to private developers that
would meet the established goals and objectives
of the Township.

Recommended Year for Implementation:

Beyond 2023

Estimated Cost of Project:

unknown

Effect on Future Operating Costs: None. It is expected the property will be sold to a private
developer. The property then would begin to generate tax revenue.
Funding Source: General Fund, 425 Reserves
Strategic Initiatives: Community & Economic Development
Strategies: Stabilize and increase the South Central Tier
Objectives: Create a unique sense of place
V. Padgett Park Pavilion
The pavilions currently located at Valley Farms Park and Granger Meadows Park are highly
utilized during the summer months. Adding a pavilion at Padgett Park would extend the
usability of this park by allowing residents to have an additional place to rest or to rent for
parties. This would also generate a small amount of revenue.
Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project:

Beyond 2023
$35,000

Effect on Future Operating Costs: Neutral to increase in revenue. Will increase facility
maintenance needs, but revenues from rental would offset
costs.
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Funding Source: General Fund, Grants, Parks and Facilities Reserve
Strategic Initiative: Quality of Life
Strategy: Enhance Township recreation amenities and opportunities
W. New Park Assets /Green Space
The number and types of parks available to citizens has a direct impact on their quality of life.
Both the 2015 DeWitt Area Recreation Plan and 2007 Open Space Report recognize not only the
value of maintaining our existing assets, but also expanding assets when they present
themselves to the Township.
Recommended Year for Implementation:

When possibilities present
themselves.
unknown

Estimated Cost of Project:

Effect on Future Operating Costs: Unknown. Dependent upon if the park is designed for active
or passive recreation.
Funding Source: General Fund, Parks and Facilities Reserve, Grants
Strategic Initiative: Quality of Life
Strategy: Enhance Township recreation amenities and opportunities
Strategic Initiative: Fiscal and Organizational Excellence
Strategy: Continue/expand long-term planning related to revenue and expense, and
ensure that the Township continues to invest in and maintain its existing
assets.
Objective: Increase the proactive planning through a strong Capital Improvement Plan
(CIP)
X. Valley Turner Park Playground
Valley Turner Park is an older, smaller neighborhood Township park located at the intersection
of Valley and Turner Roads. Most of the playground equipment has been removed due to being
obsolete and in a state of disrepair. This project, as proposed, would remove the remaining
pieces of equipment and replace them with a modular play structure and swings similar to those
installed at Stationhouse Park (next to the Township Hall). The project would also include the
necessary play surfacing and be compliant with ADA standards.
The upgrade of Valley Turner Park serves a local neighborhood population, provides good
aesthetics from Turner Road, and should help with our long term goal of neighborhood
stabilization in the area.
At some point in the future, the Township may also wish to consider the placement of sidewalks
along the Valley and Turner Road frontages of the Park.
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This project was originally planned for 2007. Because of budget constraints, only a few
additions were made to the Park. This included expansion of parking, a picnic table and a new
grill.
Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project:

Beyond 2024
$35,000-$100,000

Funding Source: General Fund, Parks and Facilities Reserve, Grants
Effect on Future Operating Costs: Unknown. Dependent upon if the park is designed for active
or passive recreation.
Funding Source: General Fund, Parks and Facilities Reserve, Grants
Strategic Initiative: Quality of Life
Strategy: Enhance Township recreation amenities and opportunities
Strategic Initiatives: Community & Economic Development
Strategies: Stabilize and increase the South Central Tier
Objectives: Create a unique sense of place
Strategic Initiative: Fiscal and Organizational Excellence
Strategy: Continue/expand long-term planning related to revenue and expense, and
ensure that the Township continues to invest in and maintain its existing
assets.
Objective: Increase the proactive planning through a strong Capital Improvement Plan
(CIP)
Y. Expansion of Public Water in Southern Tier
In March of 2009, DeWitt Charter Township adopted its South Central Area Plan. This urban
area in the Township has faced significant decline in the last decade. The South Central Area
Plan defines ways in which the Township can stabilize and expand this area. During the creation
of this Plan, one concern was the lack of public water. The addition of public water would not
only provide this crucial public service, but also increase our ability to provide fire protection.
The addition of fire hydrants would decrease the need and amount of water that the Fire
Department would have to carry.
Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project:

Beyond 2023
$3,500,000

Effect on Future Operating Costs: No direct costs to the Township
Funding Source: Special Assessment, Grants, developers, other resources that will not result in
a special assessment to the residential taxpayers.
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Strategic Initiatives: Community & Economic Development
Strategies: Stabilize and increase the South Central Tier
Z. Expansion of Dog Park Parking
In 2017, the Dog Park was opened and since its inception the Park has been regularly well
attended. Parking at this location is limited and in need of expansion to continue growth.
Recommended Year of Implementation:
Estimated Total Cost of Project:

2023
$60,000

Future Operating Costs: No direct costs to the Township
Strategic Initiative: Quality of Life
Strategy: Enhance Township recreation amenities and opportunities
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2022 CIP Project Requests – Sewer Fund
Project Detail
A. Sanitary Sewer Rehab (collection system, manholes, and pump stations)
In 2011/12, DeWitt Township, SCCMUA, and C2AE collaborated to develop a Capital
Improvement Plan to address sanitary sewer, sanitary manhole, and lift station improvements
for a ten year period beginning in 2012. The following provided the basis for development of
this CIP:
•
•
•
•
•

2007 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Program, as updated
501 Lift Station Enhancements
Lift Station Enhancements
CCTV and manhole inspections
Information/data from SCCMUA’s asset management program

The Plan was updated again in 2014 to reflect repairs completed and incorporate new defects
that were identified in more recent cleaning and televising.
Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project:

2022 to 2025
$1,500,000

Effect on Future Operating Costs: Reduction. Reducing I&I will reduce Township’s share of
process costs at the sewer plant.
Funding Source: Sewer Fund, Bonding
Strategic Initiative: Infrastructure
Strategy: Maintain quality sewer system
Objective: Continue to fund and implement 10 Year Capital Improvement Plan
Strategic Initiative: Fiscal and Organizational Excellence
Strategy: Continue/expand long-term planning related to revenue and expense, and
ensure that the Township continues to invest in and maintain its existing
assets.
Objective: Increase the proactive planning through a strong Capital Improvement Plan
(CIP)
B. 102 Interceptor Project Phase 3
In 2015, DeWitt Township completed an “S2 Grant” that helped develop a project plan for the
southern tier of the Township’s sewer system. This plan identified a number of repairs needed
for our system. One of those projects was the creation of a 102 Interceptor to be constructed in
3 phases.
In 2018, the 102 Interceptor Project Phase 1 was constructed and completed. This project ran a
second (parallel) 24” PVC sewer line next to our the existing 18” concrete interceptor. The
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distance of phase 1 was approximately 3,411 feet which started just north of I-69, ran north
past Wellman Road and stopped just south of the 501 pump station. The project was identified
to be used primarily during high wet weather flow events adding capacity within the system.
In 2019, the 102 Interceptor Project Phase 2 was awarded with an anticipated start date of
August, 2019 with completion expected in August, 2020. This project will continue 2,300 feet of
24-inch sanitary interceptor across the proposed Eastbrook Development.
102 Interceptor Project Phase 3
Continue 3,225 feet of 24-inch sanitary interceptor from Solon Road to the discharge point of
Lift Station 102.
Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project:

2023+
$500,000

Effect on Future Operating Costs: Unknown at this time. There will be increased maintenance
on the sewer collection system, but not significant in the first
15-20 years, but revenues should also increase because of
increased growth.
Funding Source: Developer, Sewer Fund, Bonding
Strategic Initiative: Infrastructure
Strategy: Maintain quality sewer system
Objective: No specific Objective identified
Strategic Initiative: Community & Economic Development
C. Sanitary Sewer Service Area #1
During the Comprehensive Development Plan Major Update in 2005, the Township Board
determined that the installation of sanitary sewers in this area should be delayed. Placement of
sanitary sewers may cause premature development in this area. Although the project could still
be developed privately, the Township’s contribution to the project would likely be withheld until
other areas currently zoned for commercial use develop. The schedule of implementation of
this project is unknown at this time; however, it will continue to be shown in the CIP.
This service area generally includes all property between the north Township line and Webb
Road, including the US 27 corridor. The main system includes approximately 9,500 lineal feet
of 12" interceptor sewer, 670 gpm pump station, and 5,800 lineal feet of 12" ductile iron force
main. The estimated cost for the complete project is $3,500,000.
A smaller initial phase would construct 2,400 feet of gravity sewer to the high point along BR127 (near the Draft House). This would open approximately 60 acres of land to commercial
development. The current estimate of the total project is $750,000.
Water would also be needed for this project.
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Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Phase 1 (Sewer)
Estimated Cost of Phase 1 (Water)

2025
$750,000
$700,000

Estimated Cost of Phase 2 (Sewer)
Estimated Cost of Phase 2 (Water)

$2,750,000
$2,200,000

Effect on Future Operating Costs: Increase revenues. This will encourage more development
which will lead to increased tax collection and additional
sewer rate payers. There will be increased maintenance on
sewer collection system, but not significant in the first 15-20
years.
Funding Source: Developer, Sewer Fund, Bonding
Strategic Initiative: Infrastructure
Strategy: Maintain quality sewer system
Objective: No specific Objective identified
Strategic Initiative: Community & Economic Development
Strategy: Encourage a variety of businesses and a diverse housing stock
Objective: Develop a plan for expansion of sewer north of Webb Road
D. Stoll Road Repairs/DeWitt Road Pump Station
This project addresses a number of issues with sewer capacity in the DeWitt and Stoll Road
areas. It eliminates some very expensive collection system repairs, provides capacity for future
growth in the area, and takes pressure off of other parts of the collection system that are
stressed. A new pump station would be installed near the intersection of DeWitt and Stoll
Roads and discharge into the Township’s line at DeWitt and Herbison Roads. A developer
would cover the base cost of the pump station and force main with the Township paying for
oversizing and some additional system improvements in that area.
Recommended Year for Implementation:
Estimated Cost of Project:

Beyond 2024
$1,300,000

Effect on Future Operating Costs: Unknown at this time. There will be increased maintenance
on sewer collection system, but not significant in the first 1520 years, but revenues should also increase because of
increased growth.
Funding Source: Developer, Sewer Fund, Bonding
Strategic Initiative: Infrastructure
Strategy: Maintain quality sewer system
Objective: No specific Objective identified

71

AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT FUND
285-000
528-000
665-000
699-000

285-000
803-000
804-000
900-000
956-000
977-000
995-000

REVENUES
OTHER FEDERAL GRANTS/ARPA
INTEREST
TRANSFERS IN

2018
ACTUAL
$
-

2019
ACTUAL
$
-

2020
ACTUAL
$
-

2021
ESTIMATE
$
770,555
-

2022
PROPOSED
$
770,555
-

TOTAL REVENUES

$

$

$

$

$

2018
ACTUAL
-

EXPENSES
LEGAL
AUDIT
PRINTING/PUBLISHING/POSTAGE
MISCELLANEOUS
CAPITAL EXPENSE
TRANSFERS OUT
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

-

$

-

-

2019
ACTUAL
$

-

-

2020
ACTUAL
$

-

770,555

2021
ESTIMATE
$

-

BUDGETED YEAR END 2022 (Revenues - Expenditures)
YEAR END 2021 ESTIMATED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (2021 Revenues - 2021 Expenditures)

$

UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE AS OF 12-31-20

$

770,555
+
-

PROJECTED FUND BALANCE AS OF 12-31-21

$

770,555

PROJECTED FUND BALANCE AS OF 12-31-22

770,555

2022
PROPOSED
$

-

$

770,555

$

770,555

$ 1,541,110

1401 W. Herbison Road, DeWitt, MI 48820
April 25, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes

The Regular Meeting of the DeWitt Charter Township Board of Trustees was called to order by Supervisor
Galardi at 6:59 PM with the Pledge of Allegiance.
MEMBERS PRESENT Supervisor Rick Galardi, Clerk Adam Cramton, and Trustees David Seeger, Brian Ross,
David Fedewa, and Steven Smith.
MEMBERS ABSENT Treasurer Sandy Stump.
ALSO PRESENT

Manager Andrew Dymczyk, Police Chief Mike Gute, Fire Chief Dave DeKorte,
Township Attorney Helen Mills, and several citizens.

AGENDA

Fedewa moved, Seeger seconded, to approve the agenda.
AYES: Ross, Seeger, Fedewa, Cramton, Smith, Galardi.
NAYS: None.
ABSENT: None.
Motion carried.

CONSENT AGENDA Ross moved, Smith seconded, to approve the Consent Agenda which included the
following: Board of Trustees Regular Meeting draft minutes, April 11, 2022;
Planning Commission Regular Meeting draft minutes, April 4, 2022; and General
Vouchers 74090-74137.
AYES: Cramton, Seeger, Smith, Fedewa, Ross, Galardi.
NAYS: None.
ABSENT: None.
Motion carried.

PUBLIC COMMENT None.
PRESENTATION

None.

PUBLIC HEARING

None.

COUNTY
COMMISSIONER
REPORT

Clinton County Commissioner, Ken Mitchell, was present to answer any Board
questions. Commissioner Mitchell offered his assistance in resolving a resident traffic
concern on Solon Road.

CORRESPONDENCE Correspondence included the following: Q1 2022 Cash and Investments; Q1 2022
Financial Reports; DeWitt Township Police Department March 2022 Activity Report;
DeWitt Township Fire Department March 2022 Activity Report; and Clinton County
Sheriff’s Office March 2022 Jail Billing.
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UNFINISHED
BUSINESS
Second Reading Rezoning 22-880001 –
TCOA Land
Investments

TCOA Land Investments, LLC is requesting to rezone approximately 38.5 acres from the
A (Agricultural) zoning district to the R-2 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district.
The subject site is located west of Kalamata Drive, south of Cutler Road, north Howe
Road, and east of Airport Road, part of the southwest ¼ of Section 6 of DeWitt Charter
Township (Parcel # 050-006-300-015-51 & # 050-006-300-017- 00).
Presently, TCOA Land Investments, LLC own the subject property, sized at
approximately 38.5 acres, and is currently vacant. In February 2022, a rezoning
application was submitted to the DeWitt Township Planning Department for the reason
being to take the first necessary step to eventually develop the site as a single-family
residential subdivision.
The subject property is designated for Low Density Single-Family Residential (SF-L) use
on the Future Land Use Map. All other adjacent parcels are planned for Low Density
Single-Family Residential (SF-L). The proposed change from A (Agricultural) to the R-2
(Single-Family Residential) zoning district is compatible with the existing land uses in
the area.
A public hearing was conducted on the proposed rezoning request on March 7, 2022 in
which the Planning Commission voted to unanimously recommended approval. At the
meeting, there was one public comment received regarding the request which sought to
address the drainage concerns on site. Prior to the Planning Commission meeting, staff
received four (4) inquiries regarding the project. Each inquirer had no issues with the
rezoning request and the only concern raised again was the on-site drainage, however,
drainage is not addressed with a rezoning request. There were no further public
comments received regarding the request and the Township Board approved the first
reading at their March 28, 2022 meeting.
Seeger moved, Smith seconded, based on a unanimous recommendation from the
Planning Commission, approve the second reading of rezoning request 22-880001,
from TCOA Land Investments, LLC as legally described on the application
materials and survey documents, from A (Agricultural) to the R-2 (Single-Family
Residential) zoning district based on the fact that the request is not in conflict
with recommendations of the Comprehensive Development Plan and is consistent
with the existing land use pattern in the immediate area.
AYES: Seeger, Cramton, Smith, Fedewa, Ross, Galardi.
NAYS: None.
ABSENT: None.
Motion carried.

NEW BUSINESS
Resolution 2022-04-08
– Thomas Farms – Set
Public Hearing for
Lighting District

Clerk Cramton presented a resolution establishing a Public Hearing at 7:00 PM on
Monday, May 23, 2022. The purpose for the Public Hearing is to hear questions and
comments regarding the establishment of a Special Lighting District known as Thomas
Farms.
Galardi moved, Ross seconded, to set a Public Hearing for establishment of a
Special Lighting District known as Thomas Farms on Monday, May 23, 2022 at 7:00
PM and Clerk to provide notice of same.
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AYES: Cramton, Smith, Fedewa, Ross, Seeger, Galardi.
NAYS: None.
ABSENT: None.
Motion carried.

Resolution 2022-04-09 Building Safety Month is a sponsored awareness campaign by the International Code
– Building Safety
Council to remind the public of the critical role of safely built, affordable, and sustainable
Month
buildings, and the professional individuals who ensure these goals are achieved. The
Building Department works diligently every day to ensure the buildings in this
community meet set standards, and all community members live and work in a safe and
code compliant structure. Manager Dymczyk recommends adoption of resolution
#R2022-04-09 proclaiming the month of May 2022 as Building Safety Month.
Smith moved, Fedewa seconded, to adopt resolution #R2022-04-09 proclaiming the
month of May 2022 as Building Safety Month.
AYES: Smith, Cramton, Fedewa, Seeger, Ross, Galardi.
NAYS: None.
ABSENT: None.
Motion carried.

ARPA Workshop

Since the original allocation of funds by the federal government through the American
Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) of 2021, many discussions and much feedback has been
received about how these funds should be spent. Manager Dymczyk recommends a
Board Workshop to be held on Monday, May 9th at 5:30 PM for the purpose of
discussing ARPA fund allocations.
The Township Auditor will attend the Board workshop to aid in the discussion of proper
use of funds. The US Treasury has updated guidance on the legal use of these funds and
require each jurisdictions’ executive to “certify” that the funds will be used for eligible
purposes.
ARPA funding must be spent by the end of calendar year 2024 and cannot be deposited
into any pension fund.
Board discussion resulted in the time of the proposed workshop being changed from 5:30
PM to 6:00 PM.
Smith moved, Galardi seconded, to set a Board Workshop on Monday, May 9th at
6:00 PM for the purpose of discussing ARPA fund allocations.
AYES: Cramton, Fedewa, Ross, Seeger, Smith, Galardi.
NAYS: None.
ABSENT: None.
Motion carried.

Interim Chief of Police Chief Gute’s last day of employment will be May 6th. In preparation for his departure,
Manager Dymczyk recommends Lieutenant Jason Jones to act as Interim Chief of Police
until the impending position vacancy is filled. In discussions with Lt. Jones, he is willing
to fill this capacity until a proper search and interview process can be conducted. Lt.
Jones previously held the Interim Chief of Police responsibilities in 2018-2019 and did a
tremendous job in this capacity.

DeWitt Charter Township Board Minutes
April 25, 2022
Page 4
There was much Board discussion about Chief Gute’s service to DeWitt Township. The
Board is thankful for his hard work and accomplishments, and wishes him the best in his
new assignment. The Board also stated its confidence in Lieutenant Jones to effectively
lead the Police Department during the search for a new Chief.
Attorney Helen Mills stated her appreciation for Chief Gute and looks forward to
continued collaboration with him.
Galardi moved, Smith seconded, to appoint Lt. Jason Jones to Interim Chief of
Police until the current vacancy is filled.
AYES: Smith, Cramton, Seeger, Ross, Fedewa, Galardi.
NAYS: None.
ABSENT: None.
Motion carried.

Resolution 2022-04-07 Chief Gute presented a Resolution honoring Debra Saylor for her 43 years of service to
– Debra Saylor
the Township upon the occasion of her retirement.
Smith moved, Seeger seconded, to adopt Resolution of Appreciation #R2022-04-07
thanking Debra Saylor for her service to DeWitt Township.
AYES: Ross, Seeger, Fedewa, Cramton, Smith, Galardi.
NAYS: None.
ABSENT: None.
Motion carried.

CLOSED SESSION:
Attorney
Correspondence

A closed session of the Board of Trustees is permissible under Section 8(h) of the Open
Meetings Act, MCL 15.268(h) to consider and receive Attorney correspondence.
Manager Dymczyk recommends that the Board enter closed session to discuss Attorney
correspondence dated April 21, 2022.
Cramton moved, Galardi seconded, to enter the Board in closed session at 7:34 PM
under the Open Meetings Act, to consider a letter from its attorneys dated April 21,
2022, for the reason that the letter is exempt from disclosure under State law due to
the attorney-client privilege.
AYES: Cramton, Ross, Seeger, Fedewa, Smith, Galardi.
NAYS: None.
ABSENT: None.
Motion carried.

Cramton moved, Ross seconded, to return to regular session at 9:15 PM.
Motion voted and carried.

EXTENDED PUBLIC, Police Chief Mike Gute informed the Board that the Body Worn Camera sub committee
STAFF, & BOARD
met last week and is prepared to submit a final recommendation. He believes that this
COMMENTS
recommendation will be presented by Lieutenant Jones. Additionally, Chief Gute is
appreciative of the support that he has been given from the Board and the Manager’s
Office, and he feels that the Police Department is in good hands with command staff and
Lieutenant Jones’ leadership.
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Fire Chief Dave DeKorte reported on a recent successful deployment of the LUCAS
lifesaving device. The Fire Department has received a gift of thanks from the family of a
resident that received responsive care. Chief DeKorte also detailed a recent apartment
fire where the Township’s building codes prevented a much larger loss of property.
Lastly, Chief DeKorte informed the Board that there is joint training with Bath Township
this evening at Fire Station 1.
Manager Dymczyk offered updates on the following:
• Audit meeting last week
• DeWitt Public Schools Community Showcase
• CAPCOG meeting
• Sanitary Sewer Master Plan
• ARPA reporting due April 30
• eNews
• MTA conference panel
Trustee Ross informed the Board that there is a scheduled Board of Water and Light
meeting on April 26th.
ADJOURNMENT

Seeger moved, Ross seconded, to adjourn 9:18 PM.
Motion voted and carried.

Respectfully submitted,

Adam Cramton, Clerk

Rick Galardi, Supervisor

SUPERVISOR
Rick Galardi

TRUSTEES
David Fedewa
Brian Ross
David Seeger
Steven Smith

CLERK
Adam Cramton
TREASURER
Sandy Stump

1401 W. Herbison Road, DeWitt, MI 48820-7900

TO:

Board of Trustees
Andrew Dymczyk, Township Manager

FROM:

Sandy Stump, Treasurer and Adam Cramton, Clerk

SUBJECT:

2021 DeWitt Charter Township Audit Results

DATE:

May 5, 2022

MANAGER
Andrew Dymczyk

Maner Costerisan has completed their audit of the DeWitt Charter Township’s 12/31/2021
financial statements. Aaron Stevens, CPA, and Principal with Maner Costerisan will present the
reports and review financial highlights at the Board of Trustees meeting.
An annual financial audit provides an independent opinion of the township’s financial
statements, operations, and cash flows. The audit provides reassurance to the community that
the township’s financial statements provide a clear and accurate picture of the DeWitt Charter
Township’s finances.
STRATEGIC PLAN:
Strategic: Fiscal and Organizational Excellence
Strategies: Maintain sound fiscal policy and budgets that allow the Township to
address service needs and maintain community quality.
SUGGESTED ACTION:
Receive and file the 12/31/2021 audited financial statements and related documents, and
authorize its submission to the State of Michigan Department of Treasury.
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DeWitt Charter Township
Audit Presentation for the Year Ended December 31, 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Statements
Governmental Funds Financial
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Proprietary Funds Financial
Statements
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Overview

Upcoming Accounting
Pronouncements
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Pages 1-3

©2021 Maner Costerisan. All Rights Reserved.

Opinions
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of DeWitt Charter
Township, Michigan (the Township), as of and for the year ended December 31,
2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the Township’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of DeWitt Charter Township,
Michigan, as of December 31, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

©2021 Maner Costerisan. All Rights Reserved.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial
Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

©2021 Maner Costerisan. All Rights Reserved.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements,
including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.
©2021 Maner Costerisan. All Rights Reserved.

Government-wide Financial Statements
Pages 11-12
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Governmental Activities
Current Ratio
•

Current Assets/Current Liabilities

•

$9,889,335/$1,276,464

•

7.75

Unrestricted Net Position/Expenses
•

$6,478,419/$7,661,913

•

84.6%

•

Approximately 10 months of operations
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Business-type Activities
Current Ratio
•

Current Assets/Current Liabilities

•

$3,616,820/$691,574

•

5.23

Unrestricted Net Position/Expenses
•

$10,775,390/$2,374,068

•

454%

•

Approximately 4 ½ years of operations
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Statement of Activities
Page 12
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Statement of Activities
• Reads left-to-right, then top-to-bottom
• Starts with expenses
• Change in Net Position (third line from the bottom)
➢ Governmental Activities improved total net position by $179,905
➢ Business-type Activities improved total net position by $465,976
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Governmental Fund Financial Statements
Pages 13 and 15
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Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
Snapshot

General Fund

As of December
31, 2021

Total Fund
Balance

• Assets

• $7,501,941

Fund Balance
Classifications

Five Possible
Classifications
• Nonspendable

• Liabilities

• Restricted

• DIOR

• Committed

• Fund Balance

• Assigned
• Unassigned

Unrestricted Fund
Balance

Unrestricted Fund
Balance/Expenditures

Assigned +
Unassigned

5.9 Months of
Operations

• Assigned fund balance
$1,330,570

• $3,319,498/($3,911,026
+ $2,867,230)

• Unassigned fund
balance = $1,988,928

• 49%

• GFOA recommends
maintaining a minimum
fund balance in the
General Fund equal to 2
months of normal
operations
• 2/12 ~ 17%
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Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

General Fund
Total Revenues = $6,189,700
Expenditures = $3,911,026
Other Financing Sources (Uses) = ($2,852,249)
Net Change in Fund Balance = ($573,575)

©2021 Maner Costerisan. All Rights Reserved.

❖

FUND BALANCE INCLUDES OPERATING, 425 RESERVE, PARKS AND FACILITIES RESERVE, TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM RESERVE,
EQUIPMENT RESERVE, AND BUDGET STABILIZATION
©2021 Maner Costerisan. All Rights Reserved.
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Proprietary Funds Financial Statements
Pages 17-20
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Sewer System Fund
Total Net Position
•

$25,995,210 – two components
•

Invested in capital assets $16,249,347

•

Unrestricted $9,745,863

•

Investment in Joint Venture (SCCMUA) - $7,604,213

•

Available for future use → $2,141,650

Operating Expenses = $2,310,428
(less depreciation expense of $279,864)
➢ $2,141,650/($2,310,428 - $279,864) = 105%
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©2021 Maner Costerisan. All Rights Reserved.

Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements
Page 46
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters
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Comments and Recommendations

Budgetary Noncompliance
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Note 9
Upcoming Accounting
Pronouncements
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Questions?
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Thank You for the Opportunity to
Provide Services for DeWitt Charter Township!

©2021 Maner Costerisan. All Rights Reserved.

April 18, 2022
To the Members of the Township Board of
DeWitt Charter Township
Clinton County, Michigan
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of DeWitt
Charter Township, Michigan (the Township), for the year ended December 31, 2021. Professional standards
require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing
standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have
communicated such information in our letter to you dated March 2, 2022. Professional standards also require
that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.
Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the Township are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting
policies were adopted, and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2021. We noted no
transactions entered into by the Township during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based
on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future
events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those
expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, and the Sewer System Fund is:
Management’s calculation of the depreciation expense for the current period is based on an estimate of the
useful lives of the capital assets.
The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements of the governmental activities are:
Management’s allocation of current and noncurrent compensated absences is based on an estimate of the
percentage of employees’ use of compensated absences.
The calculation of the net pension liability and related deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources
is based on an actuarial study which utilized certain actuarial assumptions.

The most sensitive estimate affecting the governmental-activities, business-type activities, General Fund, Sewer
System Fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information is:
Investments are carried at fair value, which is defined as the amount that the Township could reasonably
expect to receive for an investment in a current sale between a willing buyer and a willing seller and is
generally measured by quoted market prices.
We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these accounting estimates in determining that
they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result
of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each
opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole.
Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the
auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.
Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated April 18, 2022.
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of
an accounting principle to the Township’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there
were no such consultations with other accountants.
Other Audit Findings or Issues
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Township’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.
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Other Matters
We applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison
schedule, schedule of changes in employer’s net pension liability and related ratios, and schedule of employer
contributions, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplement the basic financial
statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.
We were engaged to report on the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, which
accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made
certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate
and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves.
Restriction on Use
This information is intended solely for the use of the members of the Township Board and management of
DeWitt Charter Township, Michigan, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than
these specified parties.
Very truly yours,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Members of the Township Board of
DeWitt Charter Township
Clinton County, Michigan
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of DeWitt Charter Township,
Michigan (the Township) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Township’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Township’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Township’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the organization’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency
is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Township’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws and regulations,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit,
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of
noncompliance that is required to be reported.

BUDGETARY NONCOMPLIANCE
We noted that the Township’s amended budget for the Police Fund projected a deficit ending fund balance at
December 31, 2021.
Michigan Public Act 621 of 1978, as amended, provides that the Township adopt formal budgets for all
applicable funds, and shall not incur expenditures in excess of the amounts appropriated. Also, the Public Act
requires amendments to be performed prior to incurring additional expenditures. The Act also prohibits
deficit spending by local units of government.
We recommend the Township review budgets to ensure that the Township is not budgeting for a deficit
position.
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the members of the Township Board of
DeWitt Charter Township, others within the Township, and applicable departments of the State of Michigan,
and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.
Very truly yours,

April 18, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of the Township Board
DeWitt Charter Township
Clinton County, Michigan
Opinions
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of DeWitt Charter Township, Michigan (the Township), as of and for the year ended December 31,
2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Township’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component
unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of DeWitt Charter Township, Michigan, as of
December 31, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Basis for Opinions
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of DeWitt Charter
Township and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about DeWitt Charter Township’s ability to continue as
a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
➢ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
➢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
➢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of DeWitt Charter Township’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
➢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
➢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about DeWitt Charter Township’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison schedule, schedule of changes in employer’s net pension liability
and related ratios, and schedule of employer contributions, as identified in the table of contents, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Township’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.
The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

April 18, 2022
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DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Financial Reporting
This discussion and analysis of DeWitt Charter Township’s (the Township) financial performance provides an
overview of the Township’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021. Please read it in
conjunction with the Township’s financial statements.
Financial Highlights
As discussed in further detail in this analysis, the following represents the most significant financial issues for
the year ended December 31, 2021:
➢ Property tax revenue related to the Township’s governmental activities increased by $130,875.
➢ The Township continues the practice of funding reserves for nonoperating expenditures. These include
setting aside money from 425 Agreements, funding for future vehicle and equipment replacement, road
improvements, and other general sewer system improvements.
➢ The Township increased net position in 2021 by $645,881.
Using this Annual Report
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Township’s basic financial statements.
The Township’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information, in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.
Government-wide Financial Statements. The statement of net position and the statement of activities provide
information about the activities of the Township as a whole and present a longer-term view of the Township’s
finances. This longer-term view uses the accrual basis of accounting so that it can measure the cost of providing
services during the current year, and whether the taxpayers have funded the full cost of providing government
services.
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Township that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). In addition, both government-wide financial statements include a column for the Township’s
discretely presented component unit.
Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements present a short-term view; they tell us how the
taxpayers’ resources were spent during the year, as well as how much is available for future spending. Fund
financial statements also report the operations of the Township in more detail than the government-wide
financial statements by providing information about the Township’s most significant funds. The fiduciary fund
statements provide financial information about activities for which the Township acts solely as a trustee or agent
for the benefit of those outside the government.
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DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities.
The Township maintains seven individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Fire Fund, Police Fund, and ARPA Grant Fund, which are
considered to be major funds. Data for the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of
combining statements in the Other Supplementary Information section of this report.
The Township adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. A
budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund and the major special revenue funds
to demonstrate compliance with this budget.
Proprietary Funds. The Township maintains two proprietary funds. Enterprise Funds are used to report the
same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
Township uses Enterprise Funds to account for its sewer system and water system activity.
Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary Funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary Funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the Township’s own programs.
Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 23-47 of this report.
Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information, such as this MD&A, budgetary comparison schedules,
schedule of changes in employer’s net pension liability and related rations, and schedule of employer
contributions. Combining and individual fund financial statements referred to earlier in connection with
nonmajor governmental funds are presented as other supplementary information.
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DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The Township as a Whole
The following table shows, in a condensed format, a comparative analysis of the net position, as of December 31,
2021 and December 31, 2020:
Governmental
Activities
2021
2020
ASSETS
Current and other assets
Capital assets

Business-type
Activities
2021
2020

Total Primary
Government
2021
2020

$ 12,590,343
7,817,035

$ 12,335,605
8,046,778

$ 11,466,964
16,249,347

$ 11,016,943
16,529,211

$ 24,057,307
24,066,382

$ 23,352,548
24,575,989

20,407,378

20,382,383

27,716,311

27,546,154

48,123,689

47,928,537

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

1,959,750

795,709

-

-

1,959,750

795,709

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

1,276,464
2,509,220

649,280
2,470,179

691,574
-

987,393
-

1,968,038
2,509,220

1,636,673
2,470,179

3,785,684

3,119,459

691,574

987,393

4,477,258

4,106,852

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

3,885,160

3,542,254

-

-

3,885,160

3,542,254

NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

7,817,035
400,830
6,478,419

8,046,778
386,214
6,083,387

16,249,347
10,775,390

16,529,211
10,029,550

24,066,382
400,830
17,253,809

24,575,989
386,214
16,112,937

$ 14,696,284

$ 14,516,379

$ 27,024,737

$ 26,558,761

$ 41,721,021

$ 41,075,140

TOTAL ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL NET POSITION

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The Township’s
assets exceeded liabilities by $41,721,021 as of December 31, 2021. The most significant portion of the
Township’s net position (58%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, equipment) less any
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding (currently none). The Township used these
capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the Township’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
An additional portion of the Township’s net position (less than 1%) represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance unrestricted net position of $17,253,809
may be used to meet the Township’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.
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DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The Township as a Whole (continued)
At the end of the current fiscal year, the Township is able to report positive balances in all three categories of
net position, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type
activities. The Township’s net position increased by $645,881 during the current year as indicated below.
REVENUE
Program Revenue
Charges for service
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General Revenue
Property taxes
425 Agreement
State shared revenue
Investment earnings
Change in SCCMUA equity
Reimbursements
Sale of capital assets
Miscellaneous

Governmental
Activities
2021
2020
$

1,979,315
83,648
-

$

Business-type
Activities
2021
2020

1,849,546
212,141
36,424

3,431,990
668,570
1,593,362
35,584
34,223
14,981
145

3,301,115
643,618
1,309,867
122,181
347,578
3,099
25

7,841,818

7,825,594

PROGRAM EXPENSES
General government
Public safety
Public works
Community and economic development
Recreation and culture
Sewer system
Water system
Interest on long-term debt

1,915,586
3,192,561
1,408,217
761,158
384,391
-

TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENSES

7,661,913

TOTAL REVENUE

Change in net position

$

179,905

$

$

2,633,513
42,000

$

$

4,612,828
83,648
42,000

2020
$

4,395,350
212,141
648,424

46,224
122,482
143,479
-

3,431,990
668,570
1,593,362
30,515
108,577
95,246
14,981
145

3,301,115
643,618
1,309,867
168,405
122,482
491,057
3,099
25

2,840,044

3,469,989

10,681,862

11,295,583

1,962,956
3,021,914
689,193
700,653
428,571
3,586

2,354,867
19,201
-

2,467,510
41,428
-

1,915,586
3,192,561
1,408,217
761,158
384,391
2,354,867
19,201
-

1,962,956
3,021,914
689,193
700,653
428,571
2,467,510
41,428
3,586

6,806,873

2,374,068

2,508,938

10,035,981

9,315,811

1,018,721

(5,069)
108,577
61,023
-

2,545,804
612,000

Totals
2021

$

465,976

$

961,051

$

645,881

$

1,979,772

Governmental Activities
Governmental activities increased the Township’s net position by $179,905 during fiscal year 2021. Key
elements of this increase are as follows:
The Township’s governmental activities’ revenues totaled $7,841,818, an increase from the prior year
governmental activities’ revenue of $7,825,594. The Township’s revenue sources increased less than 1%.
There was an increase in charges for services of $129,769, and State shared revenue of $283,495 due, in
part, to changes in population.
The Township incurred governmental expenses of $7,661,913 during 2021, an increase of approximately
13% from 2020. The majority of these expenses are associated with providing general government services
and public safety, which includes fire and police services.
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DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Business-type Activities
Business-type activities increased the Township’s net position by $465,976 during fiscal year 2021. The primary
reason for this increase in net position includes increases in user charges. The majority (93%) of the revenue of
the business-type activities is generated through user charges. The water system only generates interest and
rental income and expenses to the water system are minimal.
The Township’s Funds
Governmental Funds. The analysis of the Township’s major funds begins on page 13, following the
government-wide financial statements. The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the
most significant funds, not the Township as a whole. The Township’s Board of Trustees creates funds to help
manage money for specific purposes. The Township’s major governmental funds for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2021, were the General Fund, Fire Fund, Police Fund, and ARPA Grant Fund.
The General Fund pays for most of the Township’s governmental services. Historically, public safety
expenditures were recorded in the General fund, but in 2021, the Township decided to separate these out into
their own funds. The most significant service provided during the fiscal year was for general government, which
incurred expenditures of $1,868,587 for the fiscal year. Public Safety services are partially supported by police
and fire mileages.
The Fire Fund ended the year with a fund balance of $605. The Fire Fund recognized expenditures of $819,192
and recognized property tax revenue of $660,086,
The Police Fund ended the year with a fund balance of $0. The Police Fund recognized expenditures of
$3,370,850 for the fiscal year and property tax revenue of $660,086. During the year, the Township contributed
an additional $1,015,000 towards its unfunded pension liability in additional to the required contributions.
The ARPA Grant Fund ended the year with a fund balance of $31. The ARPA Grant Fund did not incur any
expenditures as the Township is still evaluating how to properly utilize this funding. The APRA Grant Fund has
received $31 in interest revenue as of December 31, 2021.
Proprietary Funds. The Township’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.
Unrestricted net position of the Sewer System and the Water System at the end of the year amounted to
$9,745,863 and $1,029,527 respectively. The increase in net position for the Sewer System for the fiscal year
was $400,007. Net position for the Water System increased by $65,969 in 2021. Other factors concerning the
finances of these two funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the Township’s business-type
activities.
General Fund Budgetary Highlights
Over the course of the fiscal year, the Township’s Board made necessary budget adjustments to fund
unanticipated expenditures during the year. Budgetary-basis revenues and other financing sources increased
by $122,850 to account for additional state grants and operating transfers in. Actual revenues and other
financing sources came in $676,310 more than the amended budget. Budgetary basis expenditures and other
financing uses were increased $1,961,044, primarily for additional road improvements and transfers out. Actual
expenditures and other financing uses came in $459,913 under budget, due primarily to general government
expenditures and transfers out expending less than projected amounts.
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DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets. At the end of the fiscal year, the Township had approximately $24,066,382 invested in a broad
range of governmental and business-type capital assets, including buildings, land, equipment, and utilities. In
addition, the Township has made certain investments in roads within DeWitt Charter Township. These assets
are not reported in DeWitt Charter Township’s financial statements as capital assets because under Michigan
law these roads are the property of the Clinton County Road Commission. Refer to Note 4 on pages 36 and 37
for further details related to the Township’s capital assets.
Long-term Obligations. The carrying amount of the Township’s obligation for compensated absences
decreased by $27,693. Refer to Note 5 on page 37 for further details related to the Township’s long-term
obligations.
Current Economic Factors
Assessed property values throughout the Township remain stable and we should see inflationary and
incremental increases in taxable value over the next few years, provided the current coronavirus pandemic
stabilizes in 2022 without lasting impact to property values. Robust single and multi-unit residential
development projects will add new tax revenue.
The Township anticipates receiving American Rescue Plan Act funding of $1.5 million in support of local
operations through 2023. The Township has not yet identified or prioritized its use for these funds.
Contacting the Township’s Management
This financial report is intended to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors with a general
overview of the Township’s finances and demonstrate the Township’s accountability for the money it receives.
If you have questions about this report or need additional information, we welcome you to contact the Township
Manager or Treasurer at the Township Hall.
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DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2021
Primary Government

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Due from other governmental units
Prepaids
Total current assets

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

$

$

7,141,600
354,020
1,836,909
501,084
55,722

2,744,208
258,731
613,881
-

Component
Unit
(CIA)

Total

$

9,885,808
612,751
2,450,790
501,084
55,722

$

135,843
42,311
-

9,889,335

3,616,820

13,506,155

178,154

1,513,611
56,897
1,130,500
2,937,738
4,879,297

1,376,431
7,604,213
(1,130,500)
30,224
16,219,123

2,890,042
7,661,110
2,967,962
21,098,420

-

Total noncurrent assets

10,518,043

24,099,491

34,617,534

-

TOTAL ASSETS

20,407,378

27,716,311

48,123,689

178,154

1,959,750

-

1,959,750

-

123,521
179,847
816,834
156,262

46,670
644,904
-

170,191
179,847
1,461,738
156,262

-

1,276,464

691,574

1,968,038

-

2,469,107
40,113

-

2,469,107
40,113

-

Total noncurrent liabilities

2,509,220

-

2,509,220

-

TOTAL LIABILITIES

3,785,684

691,574

4,477,258

-

246,309
3,638,851

-

246,309
3,638,851

26,706

3,885,160

-

3,885,160

26,706

7,817,035
400,830
6,478,419

16,249,347
10,775,390

24,066,382
400,830
17,253,809

151,448

$ 14,696,284

$ 27,024,737

$ 41,721,021

Noncurrent assets
Investments
Equity interest in joint ventures
Internal balances
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources related to pension
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue
Current portion of compensated absences
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Net pension liability
Noncurrent portion of compensated absences

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources related to pension
Property taxes levied for subsequent year
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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$

151,448

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Functions/Programs
Primary Government
Governmental activities
General government
Public safety
Public works
Community and economic development
Recreation and culture

$

$ 1,058,150
41,220
254,497
592,457
32,991

7,661,913

1,979,315

83,648

-

2,354,867
19,201

2,543,967
89,546

-

42,000
-

-

231,100
70,345

231,100
70,345

-

2,374,068

2,633,513

-

42,000

-

301,445

301,445

-

$

10,035,981

$ 4,612,828

$

83,648

$

42,000

$

-

$

$

-

$

-

Business-type activities
Sewer system
Water system
Total business-type activities

Component Unit
Corridor Improvement Authority

-

$

22,031
61,617
-

$

-

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Primary Government
Component
Governmental
Business-type
Unit
Activities
Activities
Total
(CIA)

1,915,586
3,192,561
1,408,217
761,158
384,391

Total governmental activities

Total primary government

Charges for
Services

Expenses

Program Revenues
Operating
Capital
Grants and
Grants and
Contributions
Contributions

$

(835,405)
(3,089,724)
(1,153,720)
(168,701)
(351,400)
(5,598,950)

(5,598,950)

-

$

-

301,445

-

$

(835,405)
(3,089,724)
(1,153,720)
(168,701)
(351,400)

$

(5,598,950)

-

(5,297,505)

-

-

-

General revenues
Property taxes
425 Agreement
State shared revenues
Investment earnings (loss)
Change in SCCMUA equity
Reimbursements
Gain on sale of capital assets
Miscellaneous

3,431,990
668,570
1,593,362
35,584
34,223
14,981
145

(5,069)
108,577
61,023
-

3,431,990
668,570
1,593,362
30,515
108,577
95,246
14,981
145

39,678
-

Total general revenues

5,778,855

164,531

5,943,386

39,678

Change in net position

179,905

465,976

645,881

39,678

14,516,379

26,558,761

41,075,140

111,770

$ 14,696,284

$ 27,024,737

$ 41,721,021

Net position, beginning of the year
Net position, end of the year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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$

151,448

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2021

General
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Accounts
Taxes
Special assessments
Due from other governmental units
Advance to other funds
Prepaids
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue

$

$

158,550
995,001
501,084
1,130,500
12,165

Police

398,786
-

$

295,388
15,630

ARPA Grant

455,062
-

$

10,067
295,388
27,927

816,865
-

$

-

139,386
-

709,804

$

788,444

$

816,865

$

221,901

$

84,758
60,661
-

$

3,834
25,745
-

$

15,383
93,441
-

$

816,834

$

19,546
-

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
TOTAL FUND BALANCES

$

123,521
179,847
816,834

145,419

29,579

108,824

816,834

19,546

1,120,202

2,279,611
69,461

679,620
-

679,620
-

-

-

3,638,851
69,461

2,349,072

679,620

679,620

-

-

3,708,312

1,142,665
198,475
2,841,303
1,330,570
1,988,928

15,630
(15,025)

27,927
(27,927)

31

202,355
-

1,186,222
400,830
2,841,303
1,330,570
1,946,007

31

202,355

7,704,932

221,901

$ 12,533,446

7,501,941

$

7,141,600
1,867,631

$ 12,533,446

$

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

$

168,617
1,585,777
82,515
501,084
1,130,500
55,722

9,996,432

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property taxes levied for subsequent year
Unavailable revenue

Total

82,515
-

$

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

5,331,501
1,867,631

Fire

Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

9,996,432

605

$

709,804

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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-

$

788,444

$

816,865

$

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2021

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

$

7,704,932

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore
are not reported as assets in the governmental funds.
The cost of capital assets is
Accumulated depreciation is

$ 16,270,274
(8,453,239)

Capital assets, net

7,817,035

Long-term receivables are not available to pay for current period expenditures and are
therefore unavailable in the funds.

69,461

Equity interests in joint ventures are not current financial resources and therefore are
not reported as assets in the governmental funds.
DeWitt Area Recreation Authority

56,897

Governmental funds report actual pension expenditures for the fiscal year, whereas the
governmental activities will recognize the net pension liability as of the measurement
date. Pension contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be deferred in the
statement of net position. In addition, resources related to changes of assumptions,
differences between expected and actual experience, and differences between projected
and actual pension plan investment earnings will be deferred over time in the
government-wide financial statements. These amounts consist of:
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

1,959,750
(246,309)
1,713,441

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. Long-term liabilities at year-end
consist of:
Compensated absences
Net pension liability

(196,375)
(2,469,107)
(2,665,482)

Net Position of Governmental Activities

$ 14,696,284

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
14

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

General
REVENUES
Taxes
Special assessments
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest and rents
Other

$

TOTAL REVENUES

3,049,211
363,722
1,606,689
842,202
42,110
285,766

Fire Fund
$

Police Fund

660,086
4,286

$

Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

ARPA Grant

660,086
1,252
12,707

$

31
-

$

219,939
1,624
7,664
1
-

Total
$

4,369,383
219,939
363,722
1,609,565
842,202
7,664
42,142
302,759

6,189,700

664,372

674,045

31

229,228

7,757,376

1,868,587
1,139,315
761,158
141,966

819,192
-

3,370,850
-

-

7,588
232,024
-

1,868,587
4,197,630
1,371,339
761,158
141,966

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

3,911,026

819,192

3,370,850

-

239,612

8,340,680

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

2,278,674

(154,820)

(2,696,805)

14,981
(2,867,230)

155,425
-

2,696,805
-

-

15,000
-

(2,852,249)

155,425

2,696,805

-

15,000

14,981

(573,575)

605

-

31

4,616

(568,323)

-

-

-

197,739

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Community and economic development
Recreation and culture

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
Fund balances, beginning of year
Fund balances, end of year

8,075,516
$

7,501,941

$

605

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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$

-

31

$

31

(10,384)

$

202,355

(583,304)

14,981
2,867,230
(2,867,230)

8,273,255
$

7,704,932

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

$

(568,323)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different
Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense. In the current period, these amounts are:
Capital outlay
Net effect of disposal of capital assets
Depreciation expense

$

360,707
(401)
(590,049)

Excess of depreciation expense over over capital
outlay and other items

(229,743)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not
Increase in unavailable revenue

69,461

Some items reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. These
activities consist of:
Change in equity interest in joint ventures

(13,978)

Some items reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. These
activities consist of:
(Increase) in net pension liability
Decrease in accrued compensated absences
(Increase) in deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
Increase in deferred outflows of resources related to pensions

(43,106)
27,694
(226,140)
1,164,041
922,489

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

$

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
16

179,906

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2021

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Total current assets

Sewer System

Nonmajor
Enterprise
Fund (Water
System)

$

$

2,292,580
177,239
555,280

451,628
81,492
58,601

Total

$

2,744,208
258,731
613,881

3,025,099

591,721

3,616,820

938,625
7,604,213
30,224
16,219,123

437,806
-

1,376,431
7,604,213
30,224
16,219,123

Total noncurrent assets

24,792,185

437,806

25,229,991

TOTAL ASSETS

27,817,284

1,029,527

28,846,811

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue

46,670
644,904

-

46,670
644,904

691,574

-

691,574

1,130,500

-

1,130,500

1,822,074

-

1,822,074

NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

16,249,347
9,745,863

1,029,527

16,249,347
10,775,390

TOTAL NET POSITION

$ 25,995,210

1,029,527

$ 27,024,737

Noncurrent assets
Investments
Investment in SCCMUA
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Advance from other funds
TOTAL LIABILITIES

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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$

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Penalties
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

Sewer System

Nonmajor
Enterprise
Fund (Water
System)

$

$

2,519,216
22,001

-

Total
$

2,519,216
22,001

2,541,217

-

2,541,217

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative charges
Legal, accounting, and engineering
Contractual services
Supplies
Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation

195,386
6,969
1,822,923
5,286
279,864

300
18,901
-

195,386
7,269
1,822,923
5,286
18,901
279,864

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

2,310,428

19,201

2,329,629

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

230,789

(19,201)

211,588

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Change in SCCMUA equity
Reimbursement
Permits
Tap-in fees
Rental income
Investment earnings (loss)
Interest expense

108,577
61,023
2,750
42,000
(693)
(44,439)

89,546
(4,376)
-

108,577
61,023
2,750
42,000
89,546
(5,069)
(44,439)

TOTAL NONOPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES)

169,218

85,170

254,388

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

400,007

65,969

465,976

25,595,203

963,558

26,558,761

1,029,527

$ 27,024,737

Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

$ 25,995,210

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid for administrative charges

Sewer System

Nonmajor
Enterprise
Fund (Water
System)

$

$

2,547,825
(2,152,800)
(195,386)

(19,201)
-

Total
$

2,547,825
(2,172,001)
(195,386)

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

199,639

(19,201)

180,438

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Permit fees received
Rental income
Cash received from other governmental units

2,750
61,023

30,945
-

2,750
30,945
61,023

63,773

30,945

94,718

42,000
(51,091)
(44,439)

55,746
-

42,000
4,655
(44,439)

(53,530)

55,746

2,216

2,437
(484,283)
490,249

(4,103)
(356,799)
363,049

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Tap-in fees received
Cash paid from (to) other funds
Interest paid
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received (paid)
Purchases of investments
Maturities of investments
NET CASH PROVIDED
BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE IN CASH
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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(1,666)
(841,082)
853,298

8,403

2,147

10,550

218,285

69,637

287,922

2,074,295

381,991

2,456,286

2,292,580

$

451,628

$

2,744,208

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
(loss) to net cash provided (used) by
operating activities
Depreciation
(Increase) in:
Accounts receivable
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Sewer System

Nonmajor
Enterprise
Fund (Water
System)

$

$

$

230,789

(19,201)

Total

$

211,588

279,864

-

279,864

(15,195)

-

(15,195)

(317,622)
21,803

-

(317,622)
21,803

199,639

$

(19,201)

$

180,438

Note: The Township adjusted its equity interest in Southern Clinton County Municipal Utilities Authority
(SCCMUA) operations in the Sewer System Fund for $108,577 to reflect the 2021 activity at SCCMUA.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2021
Custodial
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

$

LIABILITIES
Undistributed tax collections

2,275,550

2,264,766

NET POSITION
Restricted for individuals and agencies

$

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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10,784

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
Custodial
Funds
ADDITIONS
Collection of taxes for other governments
Deposits received

$ 19,527,168
48,199

TOTAL ADDITIONS

19,575,367

DEDUCTIONS
Payment of taxes collected for other governments
Return of deposits received

19,527,168
47,675

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS

19,574,843

Net change in fiduciary net position

524

Net position, beginning of year

10,260

Net position, end of year

$

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
DeWitt Charter Township, Michigan (the Township), was organized as a Township under provisions of the
constitution and general law of the State of Michigan. The Township is one of 16 townships in Clinton County.
The Township operates under an appointed Township Superintendent and an elected Township Board which
consists of a Supervisor, Clerk, Treasurer, and four Trustees and provides services to its residents in many areas
including general government, highways and streets, fire protection, law enforcement, and sewer utility services.
The financial statements of the Township have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governments. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles. The Township’s more significant accounting policies are
described below.
Reporting Entity
These financial statements present the financial activities of the Township (primary government), and its
component unit, an entity for which the government is considered to be financially accountable. Discretely
presented component units are reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements
to emphasize that they are legally separate from the Township.
The inclusion of the activities of various agencies is based on the manifestation of oversight criteria, relying
on such guidelines as the selection of the governing authority, the designation of management, the ability to
exert significant influence on operations, and the accountability for fiscal matters. The accountability for
fiscal matters considers the possession of the budgetary authority, the responsibility for surplus or deficit,
the controlling of fiscal management, and the revenue characteristics, whether a levy or a charge.
Consideration is also given to the scope of public service. The scope of public service considers whether the
activity is for the benefit of the reporting entity and/or its residents and is within the geographic boundaries
of the reporting entity and generally available to its citizens.
Based upon the application of these criteria, the financial statements of the Township contain all the funds
controlled by the Township Board.
Discretely Presented Component Unit
The Township US-127 BR Corridor Improvement Authority (component unit) is reported in a separate
column to emphasize that, while legally separate, the Township remains financially accountable for this
entity or the nature and significance of the relationship between this entity and the Township is such that
exclusion of this entity would render the financial statements misleading or incomplete.
The governing body of the Corridor Improvement Authority (CIA) is appointed by the Township Supervisor,
with confirmation by the Township Board; the budgets are subject to the approval of the Township Board;
the Township temporarily relinquishes part of its tax base to the entity (tax increment revenues); and the
Township has pledged its full faith and credit toward payment of the entity’s debt.
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DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Joint Ventures
The Township is a member of the Southern Clinton County Municipal Utilities Authority (SCCMUA). The
purpose of SCCMUA is to operate, maintain, administer, and manage a sewage disposal system for the benefit
of the constituent municipalities.
The governing body of SCCMUA is appointed by the constituent municipalities, and representation is based
upon the purchased capacity of each municipality. The Township is currently represented by five of the ten
members of SCCMUA’s board. The annual budget of the SCCMUA is submitted to the constituent
municipalities and must be approved by a 2/3 vote of the members elect of SCCMUA. A copy of SCCMUA’s
audit can be obtained at their administrative offices.
The members of SCCMUA and approximate percentage of ownership are as follows:
DeWitt Charter Township
City of DeWitt
Watertown Township
Bath Charter Township

56%
11%
16%
17%

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Township contributed $1,796,758 to cover its share of
operational costs and reserve activities. Additionally, an investment in SCCMUA is recorded to reflect the
current carrying value at December 31, 2021, of the cumulative effect of SCCMUA operations relating to the
Township equity share in the joint venture from inception-to-date. The Township had recorded their
portion of the initial cost of construction of SCCMUA’s facilities as capital assets in the Sewer and Water
System (Enterprise) Funds, however the portion of those costs relating to the Water System has been
eliminated as the Township transferred ownership of its water system to the Lansing Board of Water & Light
during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000.
The Township is a member of the DeWitt Area Recreation Authority (the Authority), which is a joint venture
between the Township and the City of DeWitt. The Authority was established in 2003 to provide recreation
services. The Authority’s activities are overseen by a six-member board of Directors, with each municipality
appointing three members. Each municipality provides annual appropriations to subsidize operations. The
current funding formula approved by the Authority requires the Township and the City of DeWitt to provide
approximately 67% and 33%, respectively. In 2021 the Township contributed $69,350. A copy of the
DeWitt Area Recreation Authority’s audit can be obtained from the Township’s administrative offices.
Jointly Governed Organizations
The Township participates in the following activity which is considered to be a jointly governed organization
in relation to the Township, due to there being no ongoing financial interest or responsibility:
Under Public Act 24 of 1989, the Township, in conjunction with the City of DeWitt, created the DeWitt
Public Library which is considered a District Library. In 2005, the Library began to serve a portion of
Watertown Charter Township. The DeWitt Public Library board is composed of seven members, three
of which are appointed by DeWitt Charter Township. The Township has no financial responsibility to
the Library.
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DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of Presentation
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The statement of net position and the statement of activities (the government-wide financial statements)
present information for the primary government and its component unit as a whole. All non-fiduciary
activities of the primary government are included (i.e., fiduciary fund activities are not included in the
government-wide financial statements). For the most part, interfund activity has been eliminated in the
preparation of these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support.
The statement of activities presents the direct functional expenses of the primary government and the
program revenues that support them. Direct expenses are specifically associated with a service, program,
or department and are therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues are
associated with specific functions and include charges to recipients of goods or services and grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of that function.
Revenues that are not required to be presented as program revenues are general revenues. This includes
all taxes, interest, and unrestricted State revenue sharing payments and other general revenues and shows
how governmental functions are either self-financing or supported by general revenues.
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The fund financial statements present the Township’s individual major funds and aggregated nonmajor
funds. Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. The major
individual governmental fund and the major individual enterprise fund are reported as separate columns in
the fund financial statements.
The Township reports the following major governmental fund:
➢ The General Fund is the Township’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources
of the general government except for those that are required to be accounted for in another fund.
➢ The Fire Fund is used to account for fire safety and protection services/activities within the
Township. Funding is provided in part through a local property tax levy.
➢ The Police Fund is used to account for public safety and protection services/activities within the
Township. Funding is provided in part through a local property tax levy.
➢ The ARPA Grant Fund is used to account for the restricted resources provided by the American
Rescue Plan Act.
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DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of Presentation (continued)
The Township reports the following major enterprise fund:
➢ The Sewer System Fund is used to account for the operations required to provide sewer services to
the general public, the costs (expenses, including depreciation) is financed or recovered primarily
through user charges.
The Township also reports as fiduciary funds the current tax collections fund and custodial fund (custodial
funds).
Measurement Focus
The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented using the economic
resources measurement focus, similar to that used by business enterprises or not-for-profit organizations.
Because another measurement focus is used in the governmental fund financial statements, reconciliations to
the government-wide financial statements are provided that explain the differences in detail.
All governmental funds are presented using the current financial resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, only current assets, deferred outflows of resources, current liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds
present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other
financing uses) in net current assets.
Basis of Accounting
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported
in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made regardless
of the measurement focus applied.
All governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are recognized when they become susceptible to accrual (when they become both “measurable”
and “available to finance expenditures of the current period”). The length of time used for “available” for
purposes of revenue recognition in the governmental fund financial statements is 60 days. Revenues which
are considered measurable, but not available, are recorded as a receivable and unavailable revenue.
Revenues are generally considered available when they are received in cash (unless legally restricted to
some future period) or when earned and expected to be collected soon enough after year-end to pay
liabilities of the current period.
Significant revenues susceptible to accrual include certain
intergovernmental revenues and charges for services. Most licenses and permits, fines and forfeits, and
miscellaneous revenue sources generally are recorded as revenues when received in cash because they are
not measurable until actually received. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual
basis of accounting when the related fund liability is incurred, except for interest on long-term debt which
is recorded when due.
The proprietary and custodial funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues
are recognized when they are earned, and their expenses are recognized when they are incurred.
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DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of Accounting (continued)
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
include the costs of sales and services, administrative expenses, and other costs of running the activity. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
If/when both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Township’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The General and major special revenue funds’ budgets shown as required supplementary information were
prepared on the same modified accrual basis used to reflect actual results. The budget is legally adopted at
the functional level for the General Fund and the fund level for the Special Revenue Funds. The Township
budgets and accounts for certain activities using separate funds even though those activities do not meet the
criteria of Special Revenue Funds and are reported as part of the General Fund for external reporting
purposes in accordance with GASB Statement No. 54.
The Township employs the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:
a. Prior to September 1, the Township Manager submits a proposed operating budget for the fiscal
year commencing the following January 1 to the Township Board. The operating budget includes
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.
b. Public hearings are conducted at the Township Hall to obtain taxpayer comments.
c.

Prior to November 1, the budget is adopted through passage of a Board resolution. After the budget
is adopted all transfers of budgeted amounts between activities or any revisions that alter the total
expenditures of the fund or activity must be approved by the Township Board.

d. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year.
e. The Township does not employ encumbrance accounting as an extension of formal budgetary
integration in the governmental funds. Appropriations unused at December 31 are not carried
forward to the following fiscal year.
f.

Budgeted amounts are reported as originally adopted or amended by the Township Board during
the year.
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DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments
Cash and cash equivalents consist of checking, savings, and investment trust fund accounts. The cash
equivalents are recorded at cost, which approximates fair value.
Investments include mutual funds, U.S. Government Securities, and certificates of deposit with an original
maturity of greater than 90 day from the date of purchase. All investments are stated at fair value.
In accordance with Michigan Compiled Laws, the Township is authorized to invest in the following
investment vehicles:
a. Bonds, securities, and other obligations of the United States or any agency or instrumentality of the
United States.
b. Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the three highest classifications established
by not less than two standard rating services and which matures not more than 270 days after the
date of purchase.
c.

Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts, or depository receipts of a State or
nationally chartered bank or a State or Federally chartered savings and loan association, savings
bank, or credit union whose deposits are insured by an agency of the United States government and
which maintains a principal office or branch office located in this State under the laws of this State
or the United States, but only if the bank, savings and loan association, savings bank or credit union
is eligible to be a depository of surplus funds belonging to the State under Section 6 of 1855 PA 105,
MCL 21.146.

d. The United States government or federal agency obligations repurchase agreements.
e. Bankers acceptances of United States banks.
f.

Mutual funds composed of investment vehicles which are legal for direct investment by local units
of government in Michigan.

Receivables
Receivables consist of amounts due from various individuals, governments, and businesses related to
charges for services, amounts owed to the Township from special assessments, grants, and taxes levied that
have not been collected.
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DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property Tax
The Township bills and collects its own property taxes and the tax levy for other governmental units. The
Township’s property tax revenue recognition policy and related tax calendar disclosures are as follows:
Property taxes are levied twice per year. A summer tax is levied on July 1, and a winter tax is levied on
December 1. The tax levies are due September 14 and February 14, respectively. All taxes not paid by
their due dates are deemed delinquent. Delinquent real property taxes are turned over to the Clinton
County Treasurer on March 1 of the year following the levy. The Clinton County Treasurer remits payment
to all taxing units on all delinquent real property taxes. Delinquent personal property taxes are retained
by the Township for subsequent collection.
The Township’s property tax is levied each December 1 on the taxable valuation of property located in the
Township as of the preceding December 31. Although the Township’s 2021 tax is levied and collectible on
December 1, 2021, it is the Township’s policy to recognize revenues from the current tax levy in the
subsequent year when the proceeds of the levy are budgeted and made available for the financing of
Township operations.
The Township is permitted to levy up to $4.4416 per $1,000 of taxable valuation for general governmental
service and additional amounts for special and debt services. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the
Township levied 3.9736 mills for general governmental services, 1.2421 mills for police services, and 1.2421
mills for fire services in December 2020. The total taxable value for the 2020 levy for the property within the
Township was $535,445,001.
Capital Assets
Capital assets are recorded (net of accumulated depreciation, if applicable) in the government-wide financial
statements under the governmental and business-type activities columns. Capital assets are those with an
initial individual cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life of more than one year. Capital assets are
not recorded in the governmental funds. Instead, capital acquisition and construction are reflected as
expenditures in governmental funds, and the related assets are reported in the government-wide financial
statements. All purchased capital assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at an
estimated historical cost where no historical records exist. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated
acquisition cost on the date received.
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
asset lives are not capitalized. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following
useful lives:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Sewer system/lines/pump stations
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Office furniture and equipment
Flowage rights
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20 years
25 - 40 years
75 - 100 years
30 - 50 years
30 - 40 years
4 - 20 years
14 - 25 years
50 years

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue consists of tap-in fees collected in advance and sewer usage fees the Township bills in
advance of services provided.
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the balance sheet and the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of fund balance/net position that applies to a future period and will not
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenditure/expense) until then.
In addition to liabilities, the balance sheet and the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of fund balance/net position that applies to a future period and will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until then.
The Township reports deferred outflows of resources which correspond to the Township’s net pension
liability and are related to differences between expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions,
differences between projected and actual pension plan investment earnings, and contributions made
subsequent to the measurement date. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an outflow of
resources in the period to which they apply.
The Township reports deferred inflows of resources in the statement of net position which corresponds to
the Township’s net pension liability and consists of differences between expected and actual experience.
The Township also reports deferred inflows of resources in connection with property taxes levied for the
subsequent year and state shared revenue in governmental funds that is not considered available to
liquidate liabilities of the current period.
Net Pension Liability
The net pension liability is deemed to be a noncurrent liability and is recognized in the government-wide
financial statements.
Tax Abatements
The Township’s tax revenues have been reduced by tax abatements. Management has determined these
amounts to be immaterial to the financial statements.
Compensated Absences
In accordance with the Township personnel policies and/or contracts negotiated with the various employee
groups of the Township, individual employees have vested rights upon termination of employment to
receive payment for unused vacation and sick leave under formulas and conditions specified in the
respective personnel policies and/or contracts.
Vested vacation and sick leave earned as of December 31, 2021, including related payroll taxes, is recorded
entirely in the government-wide financial statements.
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DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Long-Term Obligations
Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are recognized as a liability in the government-wide
financial statements and proprietary fund types when incurred. The portion of those liabilities expected to
be paid within the next year is a current liability with the remaining amounts shown as noncurrent.
Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due or when resources have been
accumulated for payment early in the following year. For other long-term obligations, only that portion
expected to be financed from expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund liability of a
governmental fund.
Interfund Transactions
During the course of normal operations, the Township has numerous transactions between funds, including
expenditures and transfers of resources to provide services, construct assets, and service debt. The
accompanying financial statements generally reflect such transactions as operating transfers. Transfers
between governmental or proprietary funds, if any, are netted as part of the reconciliation to the governmentwide financial statements.
The General Fund records administrative charges to various funds as revenue. All funds record these
payments as operating expenditures/expenses.
Fund Balance Classifications
Fund Balance classification comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is
bound to observe constrains imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds. The
following are the five fund balance classifications:
Nonspendable - assets that are not available in a spendable form such as inventory, prepaid expenditures,
and long-term receivables not expected to be converted to cash in the near term. It also includes funds that
are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact such as the corpus of a permanent fund or
foundation.
Restricted - amounts that are required by external parties to be used for a specific purpose. Constraints
are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors or laws, regulations or enabling legislation.
Committed - amounts constrained on use imposed by formal action of the government’s highest level of
decision-making authority (i.e., Board, Council, etc.).
Assigned - amounts intended to be used for specific purposes. This is determined by the governing body,
the budget or finance committee or a delegated municipality official.
Unassigned - all other resources; the remaining fund balance after non-spendable, restrictions,
commitments, and assignments. This class only occurs in the General Fund, except for cases of negative
fund balances. Negative fund balances are always reported as unassigned, no matter which fund the deficit
occurs in.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fund Balance Classification Policies and Procedures
For committed fund balance, DeWitt Charter Township’s highest level of decision-making authority is the
Board of Trustees. The formal action that is required to be taken to establish, modify, or rescind a fund
balance commitment is a resolution.
For assigned fund balance, the Township Trustees are authorized to assign amounts to a specific purpose.
The authorization has been delegated by the Township Trustees to the Township Manager.
For the classification of fund balances, DeWitt Charter Township considers restricted amounts to have been
spent first when an expenditure is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is
available. Also for the classification of fund balances, DeWitt Charter Township considers committed,
assigned, or unassigned amounts to have been spent in succession when an expenditure is incurred for
purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.
Comparative Data
Comparative data for the prior year has not been presented in all funds in the accompanying financial
statements since their inclusion would make the financial statements unduly complex and difficult to read.
NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
As of December 31, 2021, the Township had deposits and investments subject to the following risk:
Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits
In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Township’s deposits may not be
returned to it. As of December 31, 2021, $9,315,275 of the Township’s bank balance of $10,853,599 was
exposed to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and uncollateralized. The carrying amount of the
books for deposits at the end of the year was $9,462,890.
Custodial Credit Risk - Investments
For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty, the Township will not be
able to recover the value of its investments or the collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. The Township will minimize custodial credit risk by diversifying its investments by institution to
ensure that potential losses on individual securities do not exceed the income generated by the remainder
of the portfolio.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)
Credit Risk
State law limits investments in certain types of investments to a prime or better rating issued by nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSRO’s). Obligations of the U.S. government or obligations
explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government are not considered to have credit risk and do not require
disclosure of credit quality. As of December 31, 2021, the Township investment in the Michigan CLASS
Investment Pool was rated AAAm by S&P Global Ratings and the Township’s investments in Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation, Federal National Mortgage Association, and Government National Mortgage
Association investments were rated Aaa by Moody’s.
Interest Rate Risk
The Township will minimize interest rate risk, which is the risk that the market value of securities in the
portfolio will fall due to changes in market interest rates, by designating its investment portfolio with the
objective of obtaining a rate of return through the economic cycles considering risk constraints and cash
flow characteristics.

Fair
Value

Investment Type
Primary government
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
Federal National Mortgage Association
Government National Mortgage Association
Municipal bonds
Mutual funds
Michigan CLASS Investment Pool

$

121,110
138,224
287,307
1,848,998
117,973
3,823,492

$

6,337,104

Weighted
Average
Maturity

12.33 years
11.19 years
12.98 years
2.87 years
N/A
N/A

Concentration of Credit Risk
The Township will minimize concentration of credit risk, which is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude
of the Township’s investment in a single issuer, by diversifying the investment portfolio by security type to
ensure that potential losses on individual securities do not exceed the income generated from the remainder
of the portfolio.
Foreign Currency Risk
The Township is not authorized to invest in investments which have this type of risk.
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NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)
Fair Value Measurements
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. A fair value hierarchy is also
established which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs. There are three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:
Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical securities.
Level 2: Prices determined using other significant observable inputs. Observable inputs are inputs
that other market participants may use in pricing a security. These may include quoted prices
for similar securities, interest rates, prepayment speeds, credit risk, and others.
Level 3: Prices determined using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs may be used
in situations where quoted prices or observable inputs are unavailable or deemed less
relevant (for example, when there is little or no market activity for an investment at the end
of the period). Unobservable inputs reflect the organization’s own assumptions about the
factors market participants would use in pricing an investment and would be based on the
best information available.
As of December 31, 2021, the carrying amount and fair values for each investment type are as follows:
Level 1
Government Agency Bonds
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
Federal National Mortgage Association
Government National Mortgage Association
Municipal bonds
Mutual funds

Level 2

Level 3

Total

$

117,973

$

121,110
138,224
287,307
1,848,998
-

$

-

$

$

117,973

$ 2,395,639

$

-

$ 2,513,612
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DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)
Investments in Entities that Calculate Net Asset Value per Share
The Township holds shares in the Michigan CLASS investment pool where the fair value of the investments
are measured on a recurring basis using net asset value per share (or its equivalent) of the investment
companies as a practical expedient. The Michigan CLASS investment pool invests in U.S. Treasury
obligations, federal agency obligations of the U.S. government, high-grade commercial paper (rated “A1” or
better), collateralized bank deposits, repurchase agreements (collateralized at 102 percent by treasuries
and agencies), and approved money market funds. The program is designed to meet the needs of Michigan
public sector investors. It purchases securities that are legally permissible under state statutes and are
available for investment by Michigan counties, cities, townships, school districts, authorities, and other
public agencies.
At the year ended December 31, 2021, the fair value, unfunded commitments, and redemption rules of those
investments are as follows:

Fair
Value
Michigan CLASS Investment Pool

Redemption
Frequency
if Eligible

Redemption
Notice Period

No restrictions

None

Unfunded
Commitments

$ 3,823,492

$

-

The cash, cash equivalents, and investments referred to above have been reported in either the cash and
cash equivalents or investments captions on the financial statements, based upon criteria disclosed in Note
1. The following summarizes the categorization of these amounts as of December 31, 2021:
Primary
Government
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments - current
Investments - noncurrent

$

Component
Unit

Fiduciary
Funds

Total

9,885,808
612,751
2,890,042

$

135,843
-

$

2,275,550
-

$ 12,297,201
612,751
2,890,042

$ 13,388,601

$

135,843

$

2,275,550

$ 15,799,994

NOTE 3 - ADVANCES RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE
The following schedule details advances receivable and payable related to the primary government December
31, 2021:

Advance from General Fund to:
Sewer System Fund

$

The advances were to finance capital acquisitions.
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NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2021, was as follows:
Balance
Jan. 1, 2021
Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress

$

Total capital assets not
being depreciated

2,868,470
-

Additions

$

69,268

Balance
Dec. 31, 2021

Deletions

$

-

$

2,868,470

69,268

4,008,521
4,875,352
349,481
898,988
155,124
2,545,351
299,794

127,566
133,083
30,790

(6,106)
(85,408)
-

4,008,521
4,875,352
349,481
1,020,448
155,124
2,593,026
330,584

13,132,611

291,439

(91,514)

13,332,536

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Flowage rights
Vehicles
Office equipment and furniture

(2,674,226)
(2,980,660)
(52,421)
(689,683)
(49,639)
(1,337,277)
(170,397)

(200,886)
(128,880)
(11,650)
(56,521)
(3,102)
(166,848)
(22,162)

6,106
85,007
-

(2,875,112)
(3,109,540)
(64,071)
(740,098)
(52,741)
(1,419,118)
(192,559)

Total accumulated depreciation

(7,954,303)

(590,049)

91,113

(8,453,239)

5,178,308

(298,610)

Capital assets being depreciated
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Flowage rights
Vehicles
Office equipment and furniture
Total capital assets being depreciated

Net capital assets being depreciated
Net capital assets

$

8,046,778

$

(229,342)

-

2,868,470
69,268

(401)
$

Depreciation expense was changed to the following governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Recreation and culture
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2,937,738

$

110,510
214,214
36,878
228,447

$

590,049

(401)

4,879,297
$

7,817,035

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)
Balance
Jan. 1, 2021
Business-type Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land

$

Capital assets being depreciated
Sewer system
Equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated

30,224

Additions

$

Balance
Dec. 31, 2021

Deletions

-

$

-

$

30,224

23,220,057
74,707

-

-

23,220,057
74,707

23,294,764

-

-

23,294,764

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Sewer system
Equipment

(6,721,070)
(74,707)

(279,864)
-

-

(7,000,934)
(74,707)

Total accumulated depreciation

(6,795,777)

(279,864)

-

(7,075,641)

Net capital assets being depreciated

16,498,987

(279,864)

-

16,219,123

-

$ 16,249,347

Net capital assets

$ 16,529,211

$

(279,864)

$

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations (including current portion) of the Township for
the year ended December 31, 2021:
Balance
Jan. 1, 2021
Governmental Activities
Other long-term obligations
Compensated absences

$

224,069

Additions

$

250,947

Deletions

$ (278,641)

Balance
Dec. 31, 2021

Amount
Due Within
One Year

$

$

196,375

156,262

Compensated Absences
In accordance with the Township personnel policies and/or contracts negotiated with the various employee
groups of the Township, individual employees have vested rights upon termination of employment to receive
payment for unused vacation and sick leave under formulas and conditions specified in the respective personnel
policies and/or contracts. The dollar amount of these vested rights, including related payroll taxes, amounted
to $196,376 for vacation and sick at December 31, 2021. Of this amount, $156,262 has been reported as a current
liability and $40,113 has been reported as a noncurrent liability.
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NOTE 6 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS
Permanent reallocation of resources between funds of the reporting entity is classified as interfund transfers.

Transfers to Fire Fund from:
General Fund

$

155,425

Transfers to Police Fund from:
General Fund

$

2,696,805

Transfers to nonmajor governmental funds from:
General Fund

$

15,000

Transfers were used to move unrestricted resources to finance operating costs that the Township must account
for in other funds.
NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS
Defined Benefit Plan
The Township participates in the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (MERS) of Michigan. MERS is an
agent multiple-employer, statewide public employee pension plan established by the Michigan’s Legislature
under Public Act 135 of 1945 and administered by a nine-member Retirement Board. MERS issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. This
report may be obtained by accessing MERS website at www.mersofmich.com.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
For the purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (MERS) of Michigan and additions to/deductions from MERS’
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by MERS. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
Benefits Provided
The plan provides certain retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Public
Act 427 of 1984, as amended, established, and amends the benefit provisions of the participants in MERS. The
MERS plan covers all eligible police employees at the Township.
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NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)
Defined Benefit Plan (continued)
Benefits Provided (continued)
Retirement benefits for nonsupervisory police are calculated at 2.50% of the employee’s three-year final average
compensation times the employee’s years of service with a maximum of 80% of final average compensation.
Retirement benefits for supervisory police are calculated at 2.50% of the employee’s five-year final average
compensation times the employee’s years of service with a maximum of 80% of final average compensation.
Normal retirement age is 60 with an unreduced benefit at age 55 with 25 years of service, a reduced benefit at age
50 with 25 years of service, or age 55 with 15 years of service. Deferred retirement benefits vest after 10 years of
credited service but are not paid until the date retirement would have occurred had the member remained an
employee. Employees are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after six years of service and for duty related
disability benefits upon hire. Disability benefits are determined in the same manner as retirement benefits but are
payable immediately and if duty-related without an actuarial reduction for retirement before age 60 is not applied.
An employee who leaves service may withdraw his or her contributions, plus any accrued interest.
Benefit terms, within the parameters established by MERS, are generally established and amended by authority
of the Township Board, generally after negotiations of the terms with the affected unions.
At the December 31, 2020 valuation date, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active employees

10
5
13
28

Contributions
The Township is required to contribute amounts at least equal to the actuarially determined rate, as established
by the MERS Retirement Board. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance
the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded
accrued liability. The employer may establish contribution rates to be paid by its covered employees.
For the year ended December 31, 2021, the active employee contribution rates were 7.28% of annual payroll for
the nonsupervisory division, and 15.00% of annual payroll for the supervisory division. The Township’s average
required contribution rate was 20.12% of covered payroll.
Payable to the Pension Plan
At December 31, 2021, there were no amounts outstanding by the Township for contributions to the pension
plan required for the year ended December 31, 2021.
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NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)
Defined Benefit Plan (continued)
Net Pension Liability
The Township’s net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2020, and the total pension liability used
to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an annual actuarial valuation as of that date.
Changes in the net pension liability during the measurement year were as follows:
Total Pension
Liability
(a)

Changes in Net Pension Liability
Balances at December 31, 2019

$

Changes for the Year
Service cost
Interest on total pension liability
Changes in benefits
Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including employee refunds
Administrative expense
Net changes
Balances as of December 31, 2020

$

40

7,257,461

Increase (Decrease)
Plan Fiduciary
Net Position
(b)
$

4,831,460

Net Pension
Liability
(a)-(b)
$

2,426,001

141,864
543,547
(11,971)
122,176
234,643
(352,938)
-

213,651
94,214
689,035
(352,938)
(9,747)

141,864
543,547
(11,971)
122,176
234,643
(213,651)
(94,214)
(689,035)
9,747

677,321

634,215

43,106

7,934,782

$

5,465,675

$

2,469,107

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
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NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)
Defined Benefit Plan (continued)
Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Township recognized pension expense of $342,771. The Township
reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
Differences in experience

$

318,925

Differences in assumptions

Total

*

$

13,446

403,708

-

-

232,863

1,237,117

-

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date*

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

$ 1,959,750

$

246,309

The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources resulting from contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction in the net pension liability for the year ending
December 31, 2022.

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Year Ending
December 31,

Pension
Expense

2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter

$

143,395
135,454
35,308
60,218
50,974
50,975

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability in the December 31, 2020, annual actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:
Inflation: 2.50%
Salary increases: 3.00% in the long-term plus a percentage based on age related scale to reflect merit,
longevity, and promotional pay increases.
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NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)
Defined Benefit Plan (continued)
Actuarial Assumptions (continued)
Investment rate of return: 7.35%, net of investment expenses, including inflation.
The valuation incorporates fully generational mortality. The base mortality tables used are constructed as
noted and are based on amount weighted sex distinct rates. Pre-retirement mortality - 1. the Pub-2010
Juvenile Mortality Tables, 2. the Pub-2010 Employee Mortality Tables, and 3. the Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree
Tables. Non-disabled retired plan members and beneficiaries - 1. 106% of the Pub-2010 Juvenile Mortality
Tables, 2. 106% of the Pub-2010 Employee Mortality Tables, and 3. 106% of the Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree
Tables. Disabled retired plan members - 1. The Pub-2010 Juvenile Mortality Tables, 2 - PubNS-2010
Disabled Retiree Tables.
The actuarial assumptions used in valuation were based on the results of the 2014-2018 Five-Year Experience
Study.
Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is 7.60%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumes that employer and employee contributions will be made at the rates agreed
upon for employees and the actuarially determined rates for employers.
Change in Assumptions
The actuarial assumptions were changed during the year as follows:
Increase in merit and longevity pay assumption.
Projected Cash Flows
Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to pay all
projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine
the total pension liability.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a model method in
which the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of investment and
administrative expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
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NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)
Defined Benefit Plan (continued)
Projected Cash Flows (continued)
The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

Asset Class

Target Allocation

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

Expected
Money-Weighted
Rate of Return

60.00%
20.00%
20.00%

5.25%
1.25%
7.25%

3.15%
0.25%
1.45%

Global Equity
Global Fixed Income
Private Investments

100.00%
Inflation
Administrative expenses netted above

2.50%
0.25%

Investment rate of return

7.60%

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the net pension liability of the Township, calculated using the discount rates of 7.60%,
as well as what the Township’s net pension liability would be using a discount rate that is 1% lower (6.60%) or
1% higher (8.60%) than the current rate.

Net pension liability

1% Decrease

Current
Discount Rate

1% Increase

$ 3,644,114

$ 2,469,107

$ 1,513,405

Defined Contribution Plans
TOWNSHIP GENERAL
The Township is the sponsor of a defined contribution retirement plan for the sole benefit of its employees
excluding the supervisory and nonsupervisory police personnel for the Township. The DeWitt Charter
Township Pension Plan is a money purchase defined contribution pension benefit plan. Contributions are based
on a pre-established wage-based contribution schedule with the Township contributing 100% of the amount.
Employees may elect to contribute additional amounts of their compensation. During the year ended December
31, 2021, the Township made contributions for all eligible participating employees equal to 10-15% of their base
compensation.
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NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)
Defined Contribution Plans (continued)
TOWNSHIP GENERAL (continued)
All eligible employees participate in the plan. The contributions fund the premiums for ordinary life insurance
tax-deferred annuities and various pooled investment funds with the ICMA Retirement Corporation.
For the year ended December 31, 2021, the DeWitt Charter Township Defined Contribution Retirement Plan had
a covered payroll of $1,592,116. The Township made employer contributions to the retirement plan in the
amount of $165,147. Members of the plan made employee contributions to the retirement plan in the amount
of $11,870.
CHIEF OF POLICE
The Township is the sponsor of a defined contribution retirement plan for the sole benefit of the Chief of Police
for the Township. The DeWitt Charter Township Pension Plan is a money purchase defined contribution pension
benefit plan administered by the Michigan Municipal Employees’ Retirement System. Contributions are based
on a pre-established wage-based contribution schedule with the Township contributing 100% of the amount.
Employees may not contribute additional amounts. During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Township
made contributions equal to 10% of the base compensation. The Chief of Police is the only employee eligible to
participate.
For the year ended December 31, 2021, the DeWitt Charter Township Defined Contribution Retirement Plan had
a covered payroll of $88,978. The Township made employer contributions to the retirement plan in the amount
of $8,898.
POLICE GENERAL
The Township is the sponsor of a defined contribution retirement plan for the sole benefit of police employees
hired after September 1, 2020. The DeWitt Charter Township Pension Plan is a money purchase defined
contribution pension benefit plan administered by the Michigan Municipal Employees’ Retirement System.
Contributions are based on a pre-established wage-based contribution schedule with the Township contributing
100% of the amount. Employees may elect to contribute additional amounts of their compensation. During the
year ended December 31, 2021, the Township made contributions for all eligible participating employees equal
to 10% of their base compensation.
For the year ended December 31, 2021, the DeWitt Charter Township Defined Contribution Retirement Plan had
a covered payroll of $48,909. The Township made employer contributions to the retirement plan in the amount
of $4,891. Members of the plan made employee contributions to the retirement plan in the amount of $978.
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NOTE 8 - RESTRICTED NET POSITION
Restrictions of net position shown in the government-wide financial statements indicate that restrictions
imposed by the funding source or some other outside source which precludes their use for unrestricted
purposes. The following are the various net position restrictions as of December 31, 2021:

Governmental Activities
Public safety
Budget stabilization
Street lighting

$

18,613
198,475
183,742

$

400,830

NOTE 9 - RISK MANAGEMENT
The Township participates in a pool, the Michigan Municipal League Workers’ Compensation Fund, with other
municipalities for workers’ compensation losses. The pool is organized under Public Act 317 of 1969, as
amended. In the event the pool’s claims and expenses for a policy year exceed the total normal annual premiums
for said years, all members of the specific pool’s policy year may be subject to special assessment to make up the
deficiency. The Township has not been informed of any special assessments being required.
The Township also participates in a State pool, the Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority, with other
municipalities for property and casualty losses. The pool is organized under Public Act 138 of 1982, as amended.
The Township has no liability for additional assessments based on the claims filed against the pool nor do they
have any right to dividends.
NOTE 10 - CONTINGENT LIABILITY
The Township participates in a number of Federal and State assisted grant programs which are subject to
compliance audits. The periodic program compliance audits of many of the programs have not yet been
completed or final resolution has not been received. Accordingly, Township’s compliance with applicable grant
requirements will be established at some future date. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time although the Township expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
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NOTE 11 - DETAILS OF FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS
The following are the fund balance constraints as of December 31, 2021:

General Fund
Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Prepaids
Advance to other funds
Restricted
General government
Budget stabilization
Public safety
Police training
Drug forfeiture
Public works
Street lighting
Committed
Nonoperating expenditures
Assigned
General government
Subsequent year's expenditures
Public works
Transportation system reserve
Equipment reserve
Recreation and culture
Parks and facilities
Unassigned
TOTAL FUND BALANCE

$

12,165
1,130,500

Fire Fund

$

15,630
-

$

ARPA Fund

27,927
-

$

-

$

-

Total

$

55,722
1,130,500

-

-

-

-

1,498
17,115
183,742

198,475
1,498
17,115
183,742

2,841,303

-

-

-

-

2,841,303

14,244

-

-

-

-

14,244

31

-

357,224
805,407
153,695
1,946,007

198,475

357,224
805,407
153,695
1,988,928
$

Police Fund

Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

7,501,941

(15,025)
$

605

(27,927)
$

-

$

31

$

202,355

$

7,704,932

NOTE 12 - UPCOMING ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. This Statement will increase the usefulness of
government’s financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that
previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources
based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the
foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. The Township is
currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted during the
2022 fiscal year.
In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription‐based Information Technology Arrangements. This
Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription‐based information
technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). This Statement (1) defines a
SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right‐to‐use subscription asset ‐ an intangible asset ‐ and a
corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription
payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To
the extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs are based on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases,
as amended. The Township is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements
when adopted during the 2023 fiscal year.
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NOTE 13 - UNCERTAINTIES
The COVID‐19 outbreak in the United States has caused business disruption through mandated and voluntary
closings of many businesses. While the disruption is currently expected to be temporary, there is considerable
uncertainty around the duration of the closings. Therefore, the Township expects this matter to potentially
negatively impact its operating results. However, the related financial impact and duration cannot be reasonably
estimated at this time.
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GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE (NON-GAAP BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Budgeted Amounts
Original
REVENUES
Taxes
Current property taxes
Delinquent property taxes
Tax collection fees
Marijuan taxes
Trailer taxes
Total taxes
Licenses and permits
Building and zoning permits
Intergovernmental
Federal grants
State grants
State shared revenue
State liquor licenses
Local community stabilization share
Total intergovernmental
Charges for services
Administration charges
Franchise fees
Court fees
Inspection fees
Building registration fees
Park fees and programs
Cemetery lots and grave openings
Fire runs and protection
Police fees - OUIL recovery
Alarm ordinance revenue
Total charges for services
Interest and rents
Interest - regular
Interest - tax collections
Rental fees
Total interest and rents

$

2,127,268
1,500
206,250
5,500

Final
$

2,127,268
1,500
206,250
5,500

Actual
$

2,111,423
395
253,858
10,000
4,965

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)
$

(15,845)
(1,105)
47,608
10,000
(535)

2,340,518

2,340,518

2,380,641

368,550

368,550

363,722

(4,828)

150,243
1,204,684
9,000
8,000

150,243
70,000
1,204,684
9,000
8,000

50,319
1,523,901
10,438
22,031

(99,924)
(70,000)
319,217
1,438
14,031

1,371,927

1,441,927

1,606,689

164,762

195,386
313,000
65,000
128,050
2,000
30,000
14,500
5,000
8,000
1,500

195,386
313,000
65,000
128,050
2,000
30,000
14,500
5,000
8,000
1,500

195,386
314,201
27,732
227,752
945
32,991
30,143
5,358
7,062
632

1,201
(37,268)
99,702
(1,055)
2,991
15,643
358
(938)
(868)

762,436

762,436

842,202

79,766

43,000
4,000
1,395

43,000
4,000
1,395

(9,796)
5,228
1,330

(52,796)
1,228
(65)

48,395

48,395

(3,238)

(51,633)
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GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE (NON-GAAP BASIS) (continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Budgeted Amounts
Original
REVENUES (continued)
Other
Special assessments
Reimbursements
Other sales
Total other
TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Township board
Supervisor
Township manager
Elections
Assessor
Clerk
Board of review
Treasurer
Building and grounds
Community center
Township hall
Other
Total general government
Public works
Drains
Highways and streets
Total public works
Community and economic development
Building and zoning
Planning department
Total community and
economic development

$

260,000
11,000

Final

$

260,000
11,000

Actual

$

4,415
272,496
7,228

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

$

4,415
12,496
(3,772)

271,000

271,000

284,139

13,139

5,162,826

5,232,826

5,474,155

241,329

39,250
27,530
265,098
2,100
242,696
226,853
1,380
240,414
488,180
41,750
160,415
154,500

39,250
27,680
265,098
14,100
242,696
241,853
1,380
257,414
518,180
72,250
249,284
156,750

38,607
27,599
261,600
8,966
216,983
219,650
727
255,495
497,429
69,493
160,862
111,176

643
81
3,498
5,134
25,713
22,203
653
1,919
20,751
2,757
88,422
45,574

1,890,166

2,085,935

1,868,587

217,348

35,400
500,000

35,400
1,130,000

15,934
1,123,381

19,466
6,619

535,400

1,165,400

1,139,315

26,085

474,307
284,282

509,307
304,282

479,953
281,205

29,354
23,077

758,589

813,589

761,158

52,431
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GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE (NON-GAAP BASIS) (continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Budgeted Amounts
Original
EXPENDITURES (continued)
Current
Recreation and culture
Parks and recreation

$

142,835

Final

$

195,685

Actual

$

141,966

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

$

53,719

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

3,326,990

4,260,609

3,911,026

349,583

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

1,835,836

972,217

1,563,129

590,912

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out

10,000
200,000
(1,875,135)

10,000
252,850
(2,902,560)

14,981
682,850
(2,792,230)

4,981
430,000
110,330

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

(1,665,135)

(2,639,710)

(2,094,399)

545,311

$ (1,667,493)

(531,270)

Net change in fund balance
(Budgetary basis)

$

170,701

Budgetary perspective difference

(42,305)

Net change in fund balance (GAAP basis)

$

51

(573,575)

$

1,136,223

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
FIRE FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

Budgeted Amounts
Original
REVENUES
Taxes
Other

$

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public safety
EXCESS OF REVENUES
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

$

Final

664,959
-

$

Actual

664,959
-

$

660,086
4,286

$

(4,873)
4,286

664,959

664,959

664,372

838,383

950,808

819,192

131,616

(173,424)

(285,849)

(154,820)

131,029

173,424

285,849

155,425

(130,424)

-

-

605

605

-

-

-

-

-
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$

-

$

605

(587)

$

605

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
POLICE FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

Budgeted Amounts
Original
REVENUES
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Other

$

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public safety
EXCESS OF REVENUES
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

664,959
-

$

664,959
-

$

660,086
1,252
12,707

$

(4,873)
1,252
12,707

664,959

674,045

9,086

2,341,669

3,469,669

3,370,850

98,819

(1,676,710)

(2,804,710)

(2,696,805)

107,905

1,676,711

2,676,711

2,696,805

20,094

-

127,999

-

-

(127,999)

$

Actual

664,959

1

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

Final

1
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$

(127,999)

$

-

$

127,999

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
ARPA GRANT FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

Budgeted Amounts
Original
REVENUES
Interest

$

EXPENDITURES
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

$

Final
-

$

Actual
-

$

31

$

31

-

-

-

-

-

-

31

31

-

-

-

-

-
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$

-

$

31

$

31

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN EMPLOYER’S NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
LAST SEVEN MEASUREMENT YEARS (ULTIMATELY TEN YEARS WILL BE DISPLAYED)
(AMOUNTS WERE DETERMINED AS OF 12/31 OF EACH FISCAL YEAR)
2020
Total Pension Liability
Service cost
Interest
Change of benefit terms
Difference between expected and actual experience
Change in assumptions
Benefit payments including employee refunds

$

Net Change in Total Pension Liability

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income (loss)
Benefit payments including employee refunds
Administrative expense

$

2018

151,231
515,766
(3,273)
144,715
242,273
(329,431)

$

149,988
444,866
(1,424)
165,766
(257,014)

$

2015

136,423
422,914
(5,142)
(47,061)
(222,016)

$

2014

124,951
383,176
(1,900)
59,884
287,472
(212,851)

$

125,537
357,741
(136,542)

419,649

502,182

285,118

640,732

346,736

7,257,461

6,536,180

6,116,531

5,614,349

5,329,231

4,688,499

4,341,763

$ 7,934,782

$ 7,257,461

$ 6,536,180

$ 6,116,531

$ 5,614,349

$ 5,329,231

$ 4,688,499

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

213,651
94,214
689,035
(352,938)
(9,747)

204,760
92,761
584,396
(329,431)
(10,072)

634,215

542,414

4,831,460

4,289,046

Plan Fiduciary Net Position, ending

$ 5,465,675

Township's Net Pension Liability

$ 2,469,107

Plan Fiduciary Net Position, beginning

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage
of the Total Pension Liability

Township's Net Pension Liability as a percentage
of covered payroll

160,397
484,085
(211)
66,729
(291,351)

2016

721,281

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Covered payroll

$

2017

677,321

Total Pension Liability, beginning
Total Pension Liability, ending

141,864
543,547
(11,971)
122,176
234,643
(352,938)

2019

69%
$

965,171

256%

205,392
97,547
(177,153)
(291,351)
(8,701)

139,881
71,436
403,836
(222,016)
(7,965)

109,836
61,088
(54,563)
(212,851)
(7,971)

385,172

4,463,312

3,912,316

3,527,144

3,631,605

3,377,683

$ 4,831,460

$ 4,289,046

$ 4,463,312

$ 3,912,316

$ 3,527,144

$ 3,631,605

$ 2,426,001

$ 2,247,134

$ 1,653,219

$ 1,702,033

$ 1,802,087

$ 1,056,894

$ 1,029,970

236%
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66%
$ 1,097,100

205%

73%
$ 1,042,415

159%

(104,461)

119,356
62,912
216,164
(136,542)
(7,968)

550,996

67%

(174,266)

202,168
91,549
522,552
(257,014)
(8,259)

70%
$

946,726

180%

253,922

66%
$

902,302

200%

77%
$

907,148

117%

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS (ULTIMATELY TEN FISCAL YEARS WILL BE DISPLAYED)
(AMOUNTS WERE DETERMINED AS OF 12/31 OF EACH FISCAL YEAR)
2021
Actuarially determined contributions
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution

$

222,117

2020
$

1,237,117

2019

198,651

213,651

Contribution deficiency (excess)

$ (1,015,000)

$

Covered payroll

$ 1,104,057

$ 1,036,720

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll

112%

$

(15,000)

2018

189,760

$

204,760
$

(15,000)

$ 1,057,884

21%

19%
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2017

190,392

$

205,392
$

(15,000)

$ 1,090,909

19%

2016

187,168

$

202,168
$

(15,000)

$ 1,073,990

19%

2015

139,881

$

139,881

109,836

109,836

$

-

$

-

$

985,697

$

868,016

14%

13%

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
NOTE 1 - BUDGETARY/GAAP RECONCILIATION
DeWitt Charter Township budgets the activities of various funds separately from the General Fund. For financial
reporting purposes and the GAAP-basis basic financial statements, however, these funds are combined with the
General Fund as required by GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions. The budgetary perspective difference shown on the Budgetary Comparison Schedule (Non-GAAP
Basis) reconciles the change in fund balance to the GAAP-basis basic financial statements and the details related
to these amounts are as follows:

Net change in fund balance (budgetary basis)

$

To adjust for revenues generated related to various
activities accounted for in separate funds

715,545

To adjust transfers in and out from the budgetary basis schedule
Net change in fund balance (GAAP basis)

(531,270)

(757,850)
$

(573,575)

NOTE 2 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN
Changes of benefits terms: There were no significant changes in benefit terms during plan year 2020.
Changes in assumptions:

Increases in merit and longevity pay assumptions.
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
GENERAL FUND
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2021

Operating
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Accounts
Taxes
Due from other governmental units
Advance to other funds
Prepaids
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

$

1,267,921
1,609,926

Parks and
Facilities

425 Reserve
$

155,824
995,001
459,102
12,165

2,796,992
-

$

2,329
41,982
1,130,500
-

Transportation
System Reserve

158,649
-

$

-

104,057
257,705

Equipment
Reserve
$

397
-

Budget
Stabilization

805,407
-

$

-

Total

198,475
-

$

-

5,331,501
1,867,631
158,550
995,001
501,084
1,130,500
12,165

$

4,499,939

$

3,971,803

$

158,649

$

362,159

$

805,407

$

198,475

$

9,996,432

$

74,869
60,661

$

-

$

4,954
-

$

4,935
-

$

-

$

-

$

84,758
60,661

TOTAL LIABILITIES

135,530

-

4,954

4,935

-

-

145,419

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property taxes levied for subsequent year
Unavailable revenue

2,279,611
69,461

-

-

-

-

-

2,279,611
69,461

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

2,349,072

-

-

-

-

-

2,349,072

12,165
14,244
1,988,928

1,130,500
2,841,303
-

153,695
-

357,224
-

805,407
-

198,475
-

1,142,665
198,475
2,841,303
1,330,570
1,988,928

2,015,337

3,971,803

153,695

357,224

805,407

198,475

7,501,941

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
TOTAL FUND BALANCES
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

$

4,499,939

$

3,971,803

$

59

158,649

$

362,159

$

805,407

$

198,475

$

9,996,432

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
GENERAL FUND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Operating
REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Interest and rents
Other

$

2,380,641
363,722
1,606,689
842,202
(3,238)
284,139

425 Reserve
$

668,570
32,082
-

$

38
-

$

12,942
1,627

$

Total
Before
Eliminations

Budget
Stabilization

Equipment
Reserve

Transportation
System Reserve

Parks and
Facilities

286
-

$

-

$

3,049,211
363,722
1,606,689
842,202
42,110
285,766

Total

Eliminations
$

-

$

3,049,211
363,722
1,606,689
842,202
42,110
285,766

5,474,155

700,652

38

14,569

286

-

6,189,700

-

6,189,700

1,868,587
1,139,315
761,158
141,966

-

-

-

-

-

1,868,587
1,139,315
761,158
141,966

-

1,868,587
1,139,315
761,158
141,966

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

3,911,026

-

-

-

-

-

3,911,026

-

3,911,026

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

1,563,129

700,652

38

14,569

286

-

2,278,674

-

2,278,674

14,981
682,850
(2,792,230)

(137,850)

-

(630,000)

-

10,000
-

14,981
692,850
(3,560,080)

(2,094,399)

(137,850)

-

(630,000)

-

10,000

(2,852,249)

-

(2,852,249)

562,802

38

(615,431)

286

10,000

(573,575)

-

(573,575)

3,409,001

153,657

805,121

188,475

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Public works
Community and economic development
Recreation and culture

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

(531,270)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

2,546,607

Fund balances, beginning of year
Fund balances, end of year

$

2,015,337

$

3,971,803

$

153,695

972,655
$

60

357,224

$

805,407

$

198,475

7,501,941

8,075,516

-

8,075,516
$

14,981
(2,867,230)

(692,850)
692,850

$

-

$

7,501,941

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - CONSTRUCTION CODE
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

REVENUES
Licenses and permits
Building and zoning permits
Charges for services
Inspection fees
Building registration fees

$

363,722
227,752
945

Total construction code revenues

592,419

EXPENDITURES
Community and economic development
Building and zoning
Planning department

479,953
281,205
761,158

Total construction code expenditures
Current year excess of revenues over expenditures

(168,739)

Prior years' excess of revenues (under) expenditures

(2,585,538)

Cumulative excess of revenues (under) expenditures

$ (2,754,277)
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DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2021

Special Revenue
Street
Lighting

Police
Training
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Special assessments receivable
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Total

$

1,498
-

$

120,773
82,515

$

17,115
-

$

139,386
82,515

$

1,498

$

203,288

$

17,115

$

221,901

$

-

$

19,546

$

-

$

19,546

FUND BALANCES
Restricted
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

Drug
Forfeiture

1,498
$

1,498
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183,742
$

203,288

17,115
$

17,115

202,355
$

221,901

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
Special Revenue
Street
Lighting

Police
Training
REVENUES
Special assessments
Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeits
Interest

$

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public safety
Public works
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCES
Fund balances, beginning of year
Fund balances, end of year

$

1,624
-

$

219,939
-

Drug
Forfeiture
$

Total

7,664
1

$

219,939
1,624
7,664
1

1,624

219,939

7,665

229,228

1,624
-

232,024

5,964
-

7,588
232,024

1,624

232,024

5,964

239,612

-

(12,085)

1,701

(10,384)

-

15,000

-

15,000

-

2,915

1,701

4,616

1,498

180,827

15,414

197,739

1,498
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$

183,742

$

17,115

$

202,355

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2021

Custodial Funds
Current Tax
Custodial
Collections
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

$

LIABILITIES
Undistributed tax collections
NET POSITION
Restricted for individuals and agencies

10,784

$

-

$

64

10,784

Total

2,264,766

$

2,264,766

$

-

2,275,550

2,264,766

$

10,784

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
Custodial Funds
Current Tax
Custodial
Collections
ADDITIONS
Collection of taxes for other governments
Deposits received

$

TOTAL ADDICTIONS
DEDUCTIONS
Payment of taxes collected for other governments
Return of deposits received
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS
Net change in fiduciary net position
Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

$

65

Total

48,199

$ 19,527,168

48,199

19,527,168

19,575,367

47,675

19,527,168
-

19,527,168
47,675

47,675

19,527,168

19,574,843

524

-

524

10,260

-

10,260

10,784

-

$

-

$ 19,527,168
48,199

$

10,784

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
COMPONENT UNIT FUND
BALANCE SHEET - CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
DECEMBER 31, 2021

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable
TOTAL ASSETS
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property taxes levied for subsequent year

$

135,843
42,311

$

178,154

$

26,706

FUND BALANCE
Unassigned

151,448

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE

$

178,154

Note: Reconciliation of the governmental fund balance sheet to the statement of net position for this component
unit is not required as the fund balance was equal to net position as of December 31, 2021.
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DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
COMPONENT UNIT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
REVENUES
Taxes

$

EXPENDITURES

39,678
-

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

39,678

Fund balance, beginning of year

111,770

Fund balance, end of year

$

151,448

Note: Reconciliation of the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance of this component
unit’s governmental fund to the statement of activities is not required as the net change in fund balance was
equal to the change in net position for the year ended December 31, 2021.
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Have 80% of all department goals met within 12 months.
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2022 Goal Performance Dashboard

M

an
a

Create, Develop and implement workforce development
sessions within 12 months.

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
4

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

As

se
s

sin

g

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Continue a GIS review and onsite visits of
Residential/Commercial class properties and update 1,000
photos of residential homes.
Conduct the necessary Agricultural appraisals and re-measure
23 improved agricultural properties.
Attend continuing educational classes as mandated by the
State Tax Commission to meet State criteria for MAAO
certification for the Assessor and Assistant Assessor and
continuing education hours for MCAT certification renewal for
Assessing Dept. Support staff.

0

0

0

4

0

0

0

4

0

0

0

Cl
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&
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Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Research, coordinate, and implement a cemetery
beautification project within Hurd cemetery within 12 months.
Using memorial funds, coordinate and implement a cemetery
beautification project within Gunnisonville cemetery.
Complete an initial phase of Gunnisonville cemetery expansion
by preparing 2 acres for development.

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

4

0
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Enhance business practices and import processes for mortgage
company batch tax payments and bill pay customer payments
through third-party service providers.
Integrate operational efficiencies into the park pavilion and
community center rentals. Streamline the reservation process
for residents and visitors. Expand parks and recreation
resources online.
Utilize publications and social media to educate and
communicate with residents on tax and utility matters.
Compose 12 monthly E-news articles; four Facebook posts;
and two newsletters columns of relevance for residents.
A complete inventory of all departmental equipment and the
creation of a retention schedule spreadsheet which will be
used for replacement of equipment.
Improve departmental reporting by having officers
documenting more complaints which are responded to in
order to track and build a better database regarding offenders,
addresses and complaints.
To enhance the image of the DeWitt Charter Township Police
Department by being an integral part of our community by
participating in 15 community events (parades, speaking
engagements, school related functions, etc.).

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

4

0

0

0

4

0

0

0

4

0

0

0

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

4

0

0

0

4

0

0

0

4

0

0

0

Fir

e

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Advance the professional education of the Fire Inspector
through the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) and
Michigan Fire Inspectors Society (MFIS) within 12 months.
Assist in the development and design of a Municipal Building
South complex within 12 months.
Place into service a LUCAS chest compression system for
cardiac arrests within 3 months.
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3

0

0

0

10
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Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Implement Façade Improvement Program to help support
economic development and revitalization effort within 12
months.
funding of transportation system via additional general fund
dollars, grants, transportation millage, special assessments
and/or additional State funding within 12 months.
Implement engineering studies to support the adopted Nonmotorized Transportation Plan within 12 months.
Develop and provide educational materials to foster a green
environment within 6 months and explore options for
development standards that promote conservation and
environmental sustainability within 12 months.

4

0

0

0

4

0

0

0

4

0

0

0

4

0

0
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Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Use the Dangerous Building Ordinance to streamline the
process of eliminating blighted/unsafe structures within 10
months.

4

0

0

0

Research, develop and implement a scanning project where all
Building Department files will be scanned into address folders
in BS&A for the purpose of streamlining data retrieval within
12 months.
q p
gy

4

0

0

0

4

0

0

0

order to proficiently provide excellent service enabling the
department to move forward toward a paperless and seamless
program.

Color Scale
Not Started
Behind / Not Complete
In Progress
Close to Complete / Complete

5/3/22, 7:46 AM

Lansing's Irene Dunham, Michigan's oldest resident, dies at age 114

LOCAL

Irene Dunham, the last surviving student of Bath
School bombing, Michigan's oldest resident, has died
Rachel Greco
Lansing State Journal
Published 9:55 a.m. ET May 2, 2022

DEWITT TOWNSHIP — Irene Dunham, Michigan's oldest living resident and the oldest surviving student who attended the
Bath Consolidated School before it was bombed in 1927, has died.
Dunham, 114 and a longtime Lansing resident, died Sunday, her son Bruce Dunham confirmed Monday.
Though her mind was sharp, "her body just finally gave up," he said.
She was the 10th-oldest person in the world and the third-oldest in the U.S., according to records from the Gerontology
Research Group, a group of researchers that verifies and tracks "supercentenarians."
"To say she had an amazing life would be an understatement," Bruce Dunham said. "She’s been through so much."

'A walking history book'
His mother was "a walking history book," Bruce Dunham said.
Born Irene Babcock, she grew up on a 141-acre family farm located about 4 miles from Bath with her parents and eight
younger siblings. Her father grew rye and corn.
During the influenza pandemic of 1918, she fell ill but recovered.
Then in 1927, at age 19, a sore throat kept Irene Dunham home from classes at Bath Consolidated School the day Andrew
Kehoe blew it up with explosives he had planted in the building.
The 1,000 pounds of dynamite Kehoe placed in the basement of the building on May 18, 1927, killed 38 classmates and six
adults. Dozens of others were injured, including Irene Dunham's brother. Kehoe died by his own hand in a separate
explosion.
The graduation ceremony for the class of 1927 didn’t happen that year. Irene Dunham got her diploma 50 years later when
Bath High School’s 1977 graduating class invited the 1927 graduates to their ceremony.
Later in life, when Irene Dunham got colon cancer, doctors believed it would kill her, but she survived.
She lived through the Great Depression, both world wars and two pandemics.
Her husband Laurits Dunham died in 1972. Until two years ago, Irene Dunham paid her own bills and taxes and tended to
her own garden.
Bruce Dunham said she often told him the secret to a long life was "hard work."
"Then she would add, 'outdoors in the garden,'" he said. "When I was a kid and my friends came over she'd put them to
work."
Irene Dunham would instruct them to rake leaves, pull weeds and help in the yard, he said.
https://www.lansingstatejournal.com/story/news/local/2022/05/02/lansings-irene-dunham-michigans-oldest-resident-dies-age-114/9613036002/?utm_s…
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"She kept the dandelions out of her yard by hand," Bruce Dunham said.
READ MORE:
Lansing's Irene Dunham becomes Michigan's oldest resident
Bath School bombing: Oldest surviving student recalls 'how awful it was'
Delta Twp. is set for a $90M rebuild of water treatment plant

Setting 'quite an example'
Until 2020 Dunham lived in the Lansing home where she raised her family and resided for more than eight decades.
She moved to Gunnisonville Meadows Senior Assisted Living in DeWitt Township.
Irene Dunham set "quite an example for people," daughter-in-law Bonnie Dunham said.
"Through hard times she persevered and her faith helped carry her through those times, and she had many," she said. "She
managed to get through them and was positive."
"I used to tell her she was a tough old bird and she laughed," Bruce Dunham said. "She liked being called that."
Her last surviving brother, George Babcock, a World War II veteran, died last fall. He was 102.
Five years ago, Irene Dunham recounted the aftermath of the school bombing in Bath for a State Journal reporter, saying at
the time, "I wish I could really tell you, dear, how awful it was."
Grandson Scott Rees, 43, said he was glad she lived long enough to celebrate the birth of her great-great-greatgranddaughter, September Rambo, born April 27.
"I think two words that really come to mind when I think about her are resilience and joy," he said. "She’s had a good long
life, a happy life but it was a really challenging one as well, seeing all that she has."
"I've called her every day for 20 years to check on her," Bruce Dunham said. "Now it's going to be odd. It's like a hole in your
life, you know?"
Contact Rachel Greco at rgreco@lsj.com. Follow her on Twitter @GrecoatLSJ .
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SUPERVISOR
Rick Galardi
CLERK
Adam Cramton

Charter Township

TREASURER
Sandy Stump

1401 W. Herbison Road, DeWitt, MI 48820-7900

TO:

Township Board

FROM:

Andrew Dymczyk, Township Manager

SUBJECT:

Administrative Assistant I – Police Department Hire

DATE:

May 5, 2022

TRUSTEES
David Fedewa
Steve Smith
Brian Ross
David Seeger
MANAGER
Andrew Dymczyk

Due to the recent resignation of a long term employee, the Township posted for an
Administrative Assistant I position within the Police Department. Assistant Manager Coleman
and Lt. Jones conducted interviews on April 28th and would recommend the hiring of Shelley
Stine for the .75 FTE position.
Attached is the job description, 2022 wage schedule and resume of Shelley Stine.
STRATEGIC PLAN:
Strategic: Fiscal and Organizational Excellence
Strategies: Maintain sound fiscal policy and budgets that allow the Township to
address service needs and maintain community quality
Objectives: Evaluate individual Departments for options
SUGGESTED ACTION:
Approve the hiring of Shelley Stine for the position of part-time Administrative Assistant I at
Grade 2 Step 6 in the Police Department contingent upon the successful completion of the preemployment physical.

H:\Andrew\Board\2022\05.09.22\Admin Ass't I - police dept.doc

DEWITT CHARTER TOWNSHIP
JOB DESCRIPTION
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSIST ANT I
Supervised By:
Supervises:

Assigned supervisor in assigned department
No supervisory responsibility

Position Summary:
Under the supervision of an assigned superior, performs clerical, administrative and records
management funct_ions with extensive public and customer service interaction. Required duties
include skill in records management, basic bookkeeping, data entry and database upkeep, customer
service and similar activities. Particular duties will be defined by the scope of assigned department
activities and related clerical responsibilities. In particular cases the assigned work requires a high
degree of confidentiality.

Essential Job Functions:
An employee in this position may be called upon to do any or ali of the following essential functions. These
examples do not include all of the duties, which the employee may be expected to perfonn. To perfonn this job
successfully, an individual must-be able to perform each essential function satisfactorily.

1.

' 2.

I

\

Receives complaints, requests for service or informational requests in person and over the
phone. Processes requests following prescribed procedures or refers inquiry to appropriate
party.
Prepares form§, correspondence, reports, memos, receipts, vouchers, permits and other similar
documents ~dior materials.

3.

Types, enters data, _copies, files, and performs other clerical tasks as assigned.

4.

Prepares and maintains records, files, charts, data, schedules, and similar information.

5.

Schedules workload through defined systems, communicates with field or other personnel and
maintains related scheduling, work order and customer services information and databases,

6.

Reviews and ensures the accuracy and completeness of records, forms, documents,
attachments, data, and other such materials.

7.

Engages in bookkeeping activities such as posting, reconciling statements, tracking and
assembling payroll information, or other similar activities.
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8.

May maintain cash drawers, receipt payment, account for monies received, reconcile accounts
and prepare deposits. May disburse funds through defined processes and procedures.

9.

Prepares billings, maintains customer accounts, interacts with customers, resolves issues,
maintains related databases and follows related procedural directives.

10. Assists in issuing and processing various permits, licenses and applications and service
requests, maintaining related records, processing any related notifications or records and
scheduling any related activities.
11. ·Requisitions, processes and maintains supplies and office equipment.
12. Interacts with other departments, governmental agencies, service providers, professionals and
others to exchange and record information, process required forms and reports and submit or
receive correspondence.
13. Required to learn specialized software to perform the specific duties of the assigned
department. Must be proficient in Microsoft Suite applications including word processing,
spreadsheet and data base :functions.

14. Will be trained in back-up duty for other clerical positions, possibly in multiple work areas.
15. Performs other assigned work as required.

Required Knowledge, Skills, Abilities and Minimum Qualifications:
The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skills, abilities and minimum qualifications
necessary to perform the essential functions of the position. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable
individuals with disabilities to perform the job.

Requirements include the following:
•

High school diploma with two years of experience in an office or business setting, with
customer service, general bookkeeping and records management responsibility, or an
equivalent amount of education and experience.

•

Ability to successfully complete all typing and data entry skill testing.

•

A Michigan Vehicle Operator's License may be required for particular assignments that
require field duties and/or travel to other locations.

•

Demonstrated proficiency in Microsoft Suite applications including word processing,
spreadsheet, and data base use.

•

Ability to gain proficiency in depm1rnent-specific software applications.

Administrative Assistant I
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•

Ability to use basic office equipment such as telephone, calculator, photocopier, facsimile
and email/internet/world wide web for search, information and data transfer.

•

Ability to type and enter data or extract data with speed and accuracy.

•

Ability to gain an understanding of the structure, policies, procedures, and regulations of
municipal government and the assigned department.

•

Knowledge of general office operations and clerical and secretarial procedures and
practices.

•

Ability to gather data and prepare accurate and timely records, reports, notices, memos and
letters.

•

Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with employees,
supervisors; and the general public.

•

Ability to convey and understand information effectively and promptly through speaking,
hearing, reading and writing.

Physical Demands and Work Environment:
\

The physical demands and work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee
encounters while performing the essential functions of the job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to communicate in
person and by telephone, read regular and small print, view and produce written and electronic
documents and enter data on a computer keyboard with repetitive keystrokes. The employee must
be mobile in an office setting, stand, sit, stoop and kneel, use hands to finger, handle, or feel and
reach with hands and arms. The employee must occasionally lift and/or move items of light weight.
The typical work environment of this job is a business office setting where the noise level is quiet
and sometimes moderate. Some assignments may require field work or travel to another
location. In these cases the employee may be exposed to inclement weather.

Adopted by Board of Trustees on February 24, 2014.

% Increase
Grade
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8*
9*
9A**
10*

DeWitt Charter Township
2022 Wage Schedule - effective January 1, 2022
Classification and Wage Scale

1.0250
1
12.48
15.85
17.54
18.43
21.01
22.06
23.61
60,971.05
68,286.57
32.83
72,384.65

Ass't Chief
Captains (2)
Lieutenants (3)
Engineer

2
12.95
16.45
18.20
19.12
21.80
22.89
24.49
63,257.60
70,847.13
34.06
75,099.56
3501.58
2801.79
2100.69
700.44

3
13.42
17.05
18.86
19.81
22.59
23.72
25.38
65,544.15
73,408.88
35.29
77,813.26

4
13.89
17.64
19.52
20.51
23.38
24.54
26.26
67,829.50
75,969.43
36.52
80,528.17

yearly
yearly
yearly
yearly

Steps

5
14.36
18.23
20.17
21.20
24.17
25.37
27.15
70,116.05
78,529.98
37.75
83,241.87

6
14.82
18.83
20.83
21.90
24.96
26.19
28.03
72,402.60
81,090.53
38.99
85,956.78

Fire Photographer
Fire Marshal
Fire Support Staff

Trainee
Trainee with Medical License only
Trainee with Fire Fighter I & II only
Trainee with Medical License and Fire Fighter I & II
Regular rate with Medical License only
Regular rate with Fire Fighter I & II only
Regular rate with Medical License and Fire Fighter I & II
Training Pay
Grade
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

7
15.30
19.43
21.49
22.59
25.75
27.02
28.92
74,689.15
83,652.28
40.22
88,670.48

8
15.77
20.02
22.15
23.28
26.54
27.84
29.81
76,974.50
86,212.83
41.45
91,385.39

9
16.24
20.62
22.79
23.97
27.32
28.68
30.69
79,261.05
88,773.38
42.68
94,099.09
16.38
21.31
10.39

10.35
11.65
11.65
12.95
17.56
17.56
19.50
12.50

Position
Police Department Assistant
Admin Assistant I
Maintenance Worker, Firefighter
Admin Assistant II, Fire Inspector, Code Enforcement
Deputy Clerk & Treasurer, Maintenance Supervisor
Assistant to the Township Manager, Planner, Assistant Assessor
Deputy Building Official
Assessor, Community Dev., Ass't Manager
Fire Chief, Chief of Police, Chief Building Official

*Exempt
**Non Exempt/Hourly

SUPERVISOR
Rick Galardi

TRUSTEES
David Fedewa
Brian Ross
David Seeger
Steven Smith

CLERK
Adam Cramton
TREASURER
Sandy Stump

1401 W. Herbison Road, DeWitt, MI 48820-7900

TO:

Board of Trustees

FROM:

Adam Cramton, Clerk

SUBJECT:

Metro Act Approval – DayStarr

DATE:

May 5, 2022

MANAGER
Andrew Dymczyk

In 2002, the State of Michigan passed PA 48, known as the Metro Act. This created a standard
agreement between utility companies and local jurisdictions for the use of right-of-way. In turn,
the Township receives a yearly distribution from the State based upon the number of miles. The
Township is required to use these funds to offset the cost of maintaining the right-of-way. This
agreement with DayStarr LLC (dba DayStarr Communications) is for an initial duration of
fifteen (15) years, and can be extended for five (5) years up to three (3) times, for a total of thirty
(30) years.

SUGGESTED ACTION:
Authorize the Township Clerk to execute a Metro Act Right of Way Permit with DayStarr LLC
(dba DayStarr Communications) expiring May 9, 2037, pending legal review.

H:\Adam\Memos\2022 Memos\Memo 20220505 DayStarr Metro Act Approval.doc
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TO:

DeWitt Charter Township Board of Trustees

FROM:

Adam Cramton, Clerk

SUBJECT:

Election Inspector Wage Scale

DATE:

May 5, 2022

MANAGER
Andrew Dymczyk

Effective January 2018, Clerk Mosier and the Board approved the current wage scale for all
DeWitt Township Election workers:
• Chairpersons - $13.00
• Assistant Chairpersons - $11.00
• Election Inspectors - $10.00
At the time, Clerk Mosier described the pressures associated with maintaining a competitive
election wage including the inevitable comparison to the current minimum wage, remaining
comparable to other jurisdictions, and maintaining an adequate number of election workers (over
100). Everything that Clerk Mosier described still exists, and now we can add to it the
seemingly never-ending threat of a global pandemic, increased attention on the right to carry
firearms in precinct, and the current environment of election misinformation and distrust.
City of DeWitt Clerk Lisa Grysen and I initially discussed raising wages for our Election
workers prior to the November 2020 Presidential Election, and we were not able to accomplish
the task. Both communities did pay a “hazard bonus” to our workers for working during the
pandemic. Once again, we have coordinated and we are both proposing the following wage
scale for our respective communities:
• Chairpersons - $15.00
• Assistant Chairpersons - $13.00
• Election Inspectors - $12.00
It is important that the wage increase is coordinated with the City of DeWitt as we serve the
same greater community of voters. Clerk Grysen will be requesting the same increase for her
election workers.

SUGGESTED ACTION:
To establish the following Election Inspector Pay Schedule, effective June 1, 2022, as follows:
Chairperson hourly rate at $15.00 per hour, Assistant Chairperson hourly rate at $13.00 per hour,
and Election Inspector hourly rate of $12.00 per hour. Training pay to remain $30.00 for
Certification Training, and $20.00 for ePollbook and other miscellaneous trainings.

H:\Adam\Memos\2022 Memos\Memo 20220505 Election Inspector Wage Scale.doc

